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Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) under the Securities Act of 1933
Commission File No. 333-162041

Offer to Exchange All Outstanding
91/2% Initial Senior Notes due 2016

Guaranteed on a senior basis by certain subsidiaries
($350,000,000 aggregate principal amount outstanding)

for
91/2% Exchange Senior Notes due 2016

Guaranteed on a senior basis by certain subsidiaries
Compagnie Générale de Géophysique-Veritas

We are offering to exchange all of our outstanding unregistered 91/2% Senior Notes due 2016 issued on June 9, 2009
for new registered 91/2% Senior Notes due 2016. The outstanding notes and the new notes are sometimes collectively
referred to as the notes. The terms of the new notes are identical to the terms of the outstanding notes except that the
new notes are registered under the Securities Act of 1933 (the �Securities Act�) and, therefore, are freely transferable.

Please consider the following: Information about the Notes:

� You should carefully review the Risk Factors beginning
on page 17 of this prospectus.
� Our offer to exchange outstanding notes for new notes
will be open until 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on
December 29, 2009, unless we extend the exchange offer.
� The exchange offer is not conditional upon any
minimum aggregate principal amount of outstanding
notes being tendered.
� Tenders of outstanding notes may be withdrawn any time
prior to the expiration of the exchange offer.
� The exchange of outstanding notes for new notes will not
be a taxable event for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
� You should also carefully review the procedures for
tendering the outstanding notes beginning on page 42 of
this prospectus.
� If you fail to tender your outstanding notes, you will
continue to hold unregistered securities and your ability
to transfer them could be adversely affected.
� No public market currently exists for the notes.
Application has been made to admit the new notes to
listing on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and to trading
on the Euro MTF market.

� The notes will mature on May 15, 2016.
� We will pay interest on the notes semi-annually on
May 15 and November 15 of each year, beginning
November 15, 2009, at the rate of 91/2% per annum.
� We may redeem the notes on or after May 15, 2013 at
the redemption prices set forth on page 52 of this
prospectus.
� We have the option until May 15, 2012, to redeem up
to 35% of the original aggregate principal amount of
the notes originally issued and the notes with the net
proceeds of certain types of equity offerings.
� At any time prior to May 15, 2013, we may also
redeem all or a part of the notes at a redemption price
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes plus
the applicable premium described in this prospectus.
� We may also redeem all, but not fewer than all, of the
notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the notes in the event of certain
changes affecting tax laws.
� The notes are our senior unsecured obligations and
will rank equally in right of payment with all of our
other existing and future senior unsecured indebtedness
and senior in right of payment to all our existing and
future subordinated indebtedness.
� The notes will be initially guaranteed on a senior
unsecured basis by certain of our subsidiaries. The
notes and the subsidiary guarantees will be effectively
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subordinated to all our secured obligations, all secured
obligations of our subsidiaries that guarantee the notes
and all obligations of our subsidiaries that do not
guarantee the notes.
� If we undergo a change of control or sell some of our
assets, we may be required to offer to purchase notes
from you.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or
disapproved of these securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation
to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is November 30, 2009
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This prospectus is part of a registration statement we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. You
should rely only on the information or representations provided in this prospectus. We have not authorized any
person to provide information other than that provided in this prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to
provide you with different information. We are not making an offer of these securities in any jurisdiction
where the offer is not permitted. You should not assume that the information in this prospectus is accurate as
of any date other than the date on the front of this document.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the �Exchange Act�) applicable to
foreign private issuers. In accordance with the Exchange Act, we electronically file reports, including annual reports
on Form 20-F and interim reports on Form 6-K, and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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You may obtain these reports and other information by sending a written request to CGGVeritas, Tour
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Maine-Montparnasse, 33 avenue de Maine, BP 191, 75755 Paris CEDEX 15, France, Attention: Investor Relations
Officer, Telephone: +33 1 64 47 45 00.

You can inspect and copy these reports, and other information, without charge, at the Public Reference Room of the
Commission located at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of
the Public Reference Room by calling the Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330. The Commission also maintains an
Internet site at http://www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information
regarding issuers that file electronically with the Commission. In addition, you can inspect material filed by us at the
offices of the New York Stock Exchange, 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005, on which American
Depositary Shares representing shares of our common stock are listed. As a foreign private issuer, we are not subject
to the proxy rules under Section 14 or the short-swing insider profit disclosure rules under Section 16 of the Exchange
Act.

All information referred to above will, for so long as the notes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, also be
available, without charge, at the specified office of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg during usual business hours on
any weekday (Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted) from the date of this prospectus.

PRESENTATION OF INFORMATION

In this prospectus, references to �United States� or �U.S.� are to the United States of America, references to �U.S. dollars�, �$�
or �U.S.$� are to United States dollars, references to �France� are to the Republic of France, references to �NOK� are to
Norwegian kroner and references to �euro� or ��� are to the single currency introduced at the start of the third stage of
European Economic and Monetary Union pursuant to the Treaty Establishing the European Union.

Unless otherwise indicated, statements in this prospectus relating to market share, ranking and data are derived from
management estimates based, in part, on independent industry publications, reports by market research firms or other
published independent sources. Any discrepancies in any table between totals and the sums of the amounts listed in
such table are due to rounding.

As used in this prospectus, �CGG� refers to Compagnie Générale de Géophysique and its subsidiaries, except as
otherwise indicated, �Veritas� refers to Veritas DGC Inc. and its subsidiaries before the merger between CGG and
Veritas and to CGGVeritas Services Holding (U.S.) Inc. following such merger, except as otherwise indicated, and
�CGGVeritas�, �the CGGVeritas Group�, �the Group�, �we�, �us� and �our� refer to Compagnie Générale de Géophysique-Veritas
and its subsidiaries, except as otherwise indicated.

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

The Commission allows us to �incorporate by reference� the information we file with the Commission in other
documents, which means:

� incorporated documents are considered part of this prospectus;

� we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents; and

� information that we file with the Commission after the date of this prospectus automatically updates and
supersedes this prospectus.

We incorporate by reference each of the following documents:
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� our annual report on Form 20-F for the financial year ended December 31, 2008 filed with the Commission on
April 22, 2009;

� our report on Form 6-K submitted to the Commission on May 28, 2009 with respect to the amendments to our
senior credit facility agreement and French revolving facility agreement

� our report on Form 6-K submitted to the Commission on July 9, 2009 providing a vessel utilization update for
the second quarter of 2009;

ii
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� our report on Form 6-K submitted to the Commission on July 30, 2009 containing our unaudited interim
financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2009;

� our report on Form 6-K submitted to the Commission on July 31, 2009 announcing our second quarter 2009
results;

� our report on Form 6-K submitted to the Commission on October 8, 2009 providing a vessel utilization update
for the third quarter of 2009;

� our report on Form 6-K submitted to the Commission on October 26, 2009 announcing the addition of
Jean-Georges Malcor to our management team effective January 1, 2010;

� our report on Form 6-K submitted to the Commission on November 10, 2009 containing our unaudited
interim financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2009; and

� our report on Form 6-K submitted to the Commission on November 10, 2009 announcing our third quarter
2009 results.

In addition, we incorporate by reference each of the following documents that we will file with the Commission after
the date of this prospectus from now until the first anniversary of the effective date of the registration statement
pertaining to the new notes:

� reports filed under Section 13(a), 13(c) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and

� any future reports filed on Form 6-K that indicate that they are incorporated by reference in this prospectus.

You may obtain a copy of any of the documents referred to above (excluding exhibits) at no cost by contacting us at
the following address:

CGGVeritas
Tour Maine-Montparnasse

33 avenue de Maine
BP 191, 75755

Paris CEDEX 15 France
Attention: Investor Relations Officer

Telephone: +33 1 64 47 45 00

To obtain timely delivery, you must request any document no later than five business days before the date of the
expiration of this exchange offer, meaning no later than December 21, 2009.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus includes and incorporates by reference �forward-looking statements� within the meaning of the federal
securities laws, which involve risks and uncertainties, including, without limitation, certain statements made in �Item 4:
Information on the Company� and �Item 5: Operating and Financial Review and Prospects� in our 2008 annual report
incorporated by reference herein. You can identify forward-looking statements because they contain words such as
�believes�, �expects�, �may�, �should�, �seeks�, �approximately�, �intends�, �plans�, �estimates�, or �anticipates� or similar expressions
that relate to our strategy, plans or intentions. These forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties
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that may change at any time, and, therefore, our actual results may differ materially from those that we expected. We
have based these forward-looking statements on our current views and assumptions about future events. While we
believe that our assumptions are reasonable, we caution that it is very difficult to predict the impact of known factors,
and, of course, it is impossible for us to anticipate all factors that could affect our actual results. All forward-looking
statements are based upon information available to us on the date of this prospectus.

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations (�cautionary statements�) are
disclosed under �Risk Factors� and elsewhere in this prospectus, including, without limitation, in conjunction with the
forward-looking statements included in this prospectus. All forward-looking information in

iii
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this prospectus and subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us, or persons acting on our
behalf, are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements. Some of the factors that we believe could
affect our actual results include:

� the impact of the current economic and credit environment;

� developments affecting our international operations;

� the social, political and economic risks of our global operations;

� our ability to develop an integrated strategy for CGGVeritas;

� difficulties and delays in achieving synergies and cost savings;

� our ability to integrate successfully the businesses or assets we acquire;

� any write-downs of goodwill on our balance sheet;

� our ability to sell our seismic data library;

� exposure to foreign exchange rate risk;

� our ability to finance our operations on acceptable terms;

� exposure to the credit risk of customers;

� the timely development and acceptance of our new products and services;

� ongoing operational risks and our ability to have adequate insurance against such risks;

� difficulties and costs in protecting intellectual property rights and exposure to infringement claims by others;

� difficulties in temporarily or permanently reducing the capacity of our fleet;

� changes in international economic and political conditions and, in particular, in oil and gas prices;

� our clients� ability to unilaterally terminate certain contracts in our backlog;

� the effects of competition;

� the level of capital expenditures by the oil and gas industry and changes in demand for seismic products and
services;

� the seasonal nature of our revenues;

� the costs of compliance with governmental regulation, including environmental, health and safety laws;

� our substantial indebtedness and the restrictive covenants in our debt agreements;
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� our ability to access the debt and equity markets during the periods covered by the forward-looking
statements, which will depend on general market conditions, including the ongoing crisis in the financial
markets, and on our credit ratings for our debt obligations;

� exposure to interest rate risk; and

� our success at managing the foregoing risks.

We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise. We caution you that the foregoing list of important factors may not contain all
of the material factors that are important to you. In addition, in light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the
forward-looking events discussed in this prospectus might not occur. When considering forward-looking statements,
you should keep in mind the risk factors and other cautionary statements included in this prospectus, including those
described in the �Risk Factors� section of this prospectus.

iv
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights selected information from this prospectus to help you understand our business and the terms
of the notes. You should carefully read all of this prospectus, including the consolidated financial statements and
related notes, to understand fully our business and the terms of the notes, as well as some of the other considerations
that may be important to you in making your investment decision. You should pay special attention to the �Risk
Factors� section of this prospectus to determine whether an investment in the notes is appropriate for you.

Compagnie Générale de Géophysique-Veritas

We are a global participant in the geophysical seismic industry, as both a manufacturer of geophysical equipment and
a provider of a wide range of services (including seismic data acquisition and related processing and interpretation
software) principally to clients in the oil and gas exploration and production industry. Our operations are organized
into two segments: Services and Equipment, in accordance with our internal reporting system, which we use to
manage and measure our performance.

Our geophysical Equipment segment operates through our subsidiary Sercel, the market leader in the development and
production of seismic acquisition systems and specialized equipment in the land and offshore seismic markets.

Our geophysical Services segment is composed of the following activities:

� land contract: seismic data acquisition for land, transition zones and shallow water on behalf of a specific
client;

� multi-client land: seismic data acquisition for land, transition zones and shallow water licensed to a number of
clients on a non-exclusive basis;

� marine contract: seismic data acquisition offshore on behalf of a specific client;

� multi-client marine: seismic data acquisition offshore and licensed to a number of clients on a non-exclusive
basis; and

� processing and imaging: processing, imaging and interpretation of geophysical data, data management and
reservoir studies for clients.

We had consolidated operating revenues of �1,773.3 million and �2,602.5 million and consolidated operating income of
�124.5 million and �540.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and the year ended December 31,
2008, respectively. See �Summary Consolidated Financial Information�.

CGG and Veritas together have 110 years of combined operating experience and a recognized track record of
technological leadership in the science of geophysics. We believe we are well placed to capitalize on the growing
importance of seismic technology to enhance the exploration and production performance of our broad base of clients,
which includes independent, international and national oil companies.

Compagnie Générale de Géophysique-Veritas is the parent company of the CGGVeritas Group. We are a société
anonyme incorporated under the laws of the Republic of France and operating under the French Commercial Code.
Our registered office is at Tour Maine Montparnasse, 33, avenue du Maine, 75015 Paris, France.
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Our Business

Our geophysical Services segment accounted for 77% and our geophysical Equipment segment accounted for 23% of
our consolidated operating revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2009. Our geophysical Services
segment accounted for 71% and our geophysical Equipment segment accounted for 29% of our consolidated operating
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2008.

1
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The following table sets forth our consolidated operating revenues by activity in millions of euros and the percentage
of consolidated operating revenues represented thereby, for the periods indicated:

Nine months
ended

September 30, Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007

(in millions of euros, except percentages)

Total land seismic Acquisition � 266.3 15% � 454.4 17% � 461.5 19%
Contract 220.6 13% 350.3 13% 327.3 14%
Multi-client 45.7 2% 104.1 4% 134.2 6%
Total marine seismic Acquisition 847.6 49% 1,112.7 43% 986.4 41%
Contract 664.2 38% 712.9 27% 531.2 22%
Multi-client 183.4 11% 399.8 16% 455.2 19%
Processing and imaging 219.7 13% 270.1 11% 263.2 11%

Total Services 1,333.6 77% 1,837.3 71% 1,711.1 72%
12 days elimination(1) � � � � (16.5) �

Total Services after elimination 1,333.6 77% 1,837.3 71% 1,694.6 71%
Equipment 399.7 23% 765.2 29% 679.5 29%

Total � 1,733.3 100% � 2,602.5 100% � 2,374.1 100%

Notes:

(1) The merger with Veritas took effect on January 12, 2007. The �1,711.1 million figure above is composed of
Services segment business line revenues for each of CGG and Veritas from and including January 1, 2007. We
have consequently eliminated from this figure Veritas revenues in an amount of �16.5 million attributable to 2007
Veritas revenues between January 1 and January 12, 2007, the effective date of the merger of CGG and Veritas.
Because our internal reporting systems did not permit us to identify the CGGVeritas Services segment business
lines to which such twelve days of Veritas revenues should be allocated, we have eliminated such twelve days of
revenues from such �1,711.1 million figure to arrive at total Services revenues (including Veritas revenues after
the merger date) of �1,694.6 million for the financial year ended December 31, 2007.

We generate revenues (by location of customers) on a worldwide basis. For the nine months ended September 30,
2009, 21% of our consolidated operating revenues were from North America, 7% from South and Central Americas,
45% from Europe, Africa and the Middle East, and 27% from Asia Pacific. For the year ended December 31, 2008,
28% of our consolidated operating revenues were from North America, 8% from South and Central Americas, 40%
from Europe, Africa and the Middle East, and 24% from Asia Pacific.

The following table sets forth our consolidated operating revenues by region in millions of euros and the percentage of
consolidated operating revenues represented thereby, for the periods indicated:
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Nine months
ended

September 30, Year ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007

(in millions of euros, except percentages)

North America � 348.6 21% � 725.0 28% � 734.6 31%
Central and South Americas 126.9 7% 203.2 8% 244.0 10%
Europe, Africa and Middle East 786.4 45% 1,045.2 40% 767.2 32%
Asia Pacific 471.4 27% 629.1 24% 628.3 27%

Total � 1,733.3 100% � 2,602.5 100% � 2,374.1 100%

Services

Land Business Line

Land seismic acquisition includes all seismic surveying techniques where the recording sensor is either in direct
contact with, or in close proximity to, the ground. Our land business line offers integrated services, including

2
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the acquisition and on site processing of seismic data on land, in transition zones and on the ocean floor (seabed
surveys). We undertake land surveys on both a contract and multi-client basis.

We are a significant land seismic acquisition contractor worldwide, including in North America, and particularly in
difficult terrain. For the nine months ended September 30, 2009 we operated on average 14 land crews worldwide. In
2008, we had an average of 22 active land crews performing specialized 3D and 2D seismic surveys. Total land
seismic acquisition activities accounted for 15% of our consolidated operating revenues for the nine months ended
September 30, 2009 and 17% of our consolidated operating revenues in 2008. Contracts for land seismic acquisition
accounted for 12% and land multi-client surveys accounted for 3% of our consolidated operating revenues for the nine
months ended September 30, 2009. Contracts for land seismic acquisition accounted for 13% and land multi-client
surveys accounted for 4% of our consolidated operating revenues in 2008.

Marine Business Line

We provide a full range of 3D marine seismic services, principally in the Gulf of Mexico, the North Sea and off the
coasts of West Africa and Brazil, as well as in the Asia-Pacific region.

We undertake both contract and multi-client marine seismic surveys. Contract surveys generally provide for us to be
paid a fixed fee per square kilometer of data acquired. When we acquire marine seismic data on a contract basis, the
customer contracts to pay for and directs the scope and extent of the survey and retains ownership of the data
obtained. In regions where there is extensive petroleum exploration, such as Brazil, the Gulf of Mexico, West Africa,
the Mediterranean Sea and the North Sea, we also undertake multi-client surveys, in which we fund the survey
ourselves and retain ownership of the seismic data. This enables us to provide multiple companies access to the data
by way of license. As a result, we have the potential to obtain multiple and higher revenues, while our customers who
license the data have the opportunity to pay lower prices. The capacity to both acquire and process marine seismic
data is an important element of our overall strategy to maintain and develop our leading position in marine seismic
data acquisition and processing.

Total marine activities accounted for 49% of our consolidated operating revenues in the nine months ended
September 30, 2009 and 43% of our consolidated operating revenues in 2008. Marine seismic acquisition contracts
accounted for 38% and multi-client marine accounted for 11% of our consolidated operating revenues in the nine
months ended September 30, 2009. Marine seismic acquisition contracts accounted for 27% and multi-client marine
accounted for 16% of our consolidated operating revenues in 2008.

We operated a combined fleet of 19 vessels at the end of 2008 (before the integration of Wavefield), including eight
high capacity vessels, seven mid-capacity vessels and four small 3D/2D vessels. All of these vessels were equipped
with Sercel�s solid or fluid streamers. In 2008, we continued performance upgrades, with the Alizé now capable of
towing 14 streamers. Following our acquisition of Wavefield, we operated a fleet of 27 vessels composed of 13
large-capacity vessels with eight to 14 streamers, seven medium-capacity vessels with four to six streamers and seven
smaller 3D/2D vessels. In response to decreased demand for marine surveys in the current market, we implemented a
restructuring plan in June 2009 to downsize our offshore fleet to 20 vessels. See �Our Strategy � Activity respond to
current market conditions�. Three 3D vessels, the Harmattan, the Fohn and the Orion, were decommissioned in the
second and third quarters of 2009. We plan to de-rig two 2D vessels in the fourth quarter of 2009, following the
completion of the contract on which they are currently being used. Two additional 2D vessels are scheduled for
decommissioning in 2010 and will be used as source vessels until that time.

Processing and Imaging Business Line
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We provide seismic data processing and reservoir services through our network of data processing centers and
reservoir teams located around the world. We operated 41 worldwide processing and imaging centers, including 13
dedicated client centers at September 30, 2009. Contract revenues from our Processing and Imaging business line
accounted for 13% of our consolidated operating revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 11% of
our consolidated operating revenues in 2008.
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We process seismic data acquired by our land and marine seismic acquisition crews as well as seismic data acquired
by non-affiliated third parties. Marine seismic data has been a significant source of the growth in demand for our data
processing services. In addition, we reprocess previously processed data using new techniques to improve the quality
of seismic images. Demand for processing and imaging remained strong worldwide in 2008, driven by marine data
volumes, especially with the rapid market adoption of wide-azimuth in the Gulf of Mexico and the growing demand
for our advanced imaging capabilities.

Equipment

We conduct our equipment development and production operations through Sercel and its subsidiaries. We believe
Sercel is the market leader in the development and production of seismic acquisition systems and specialized
equipment in the land and offshore seismic markets. Sercel is operated as an independent division and makes most of
its sales (85% for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 92% for 2008) to purchasers other than
CGGVeritas. Sercel currently operates seven seismic equipment manufacturing facilities, located in Nantes and Saint
Gaudens in France, Houston, Singapore, Alfreton in England, Larbert in Scotland and Calgary. In China, Sercel
operates through Sercel-JunFeng Geophysical Equipment Co Ltd (�JunFeng�), based in Hebei (China), in which Sercel
acquired a 51% equity stake in 2004 and through Xian-Sercel a manufacturing joint venture with BGP, in which
Sercel holds a 40% interest. In addition, three sites in Toulouse, Les Ulis and Brest (France) are dedicated to borehole
tools and submarine acoustic instrumentation, respectively.

Total Equipment activities accounted for 23% of our consolidated operating revenues in the nine months ended
September 30, 2009 and 29% of our consolidated operating revenues in 2008.

Industry Conditions

Overall demand for geophysical services and equipment is dependent on spending by oil and gas companies for
exploration, production development and field management activities. This spending depends in part on present and
expected future oil and gas prices and the ability of our customers, particularly the small independent oil and gas
companies, to secure financing for their projects. We believe that the short-term outlook for the geophysical services
sector, particularly the offshore segment, is characterized by a slowdown in demand and an overcapacity in supply
resulting in a significant decrease in both volumes and prices. These conditions have also led to a recent decrease in
volumes of sales in our equipment segment. We believe that two fundamental factors have contributed to this
situation.

First, global geopolitical uncertainty, particularly following the current economic and financial crisis, has translated
into a strong drop in oil prices and has not created the confidence and visibility that are essential in our clients�
decision-making processes. Consequently, clients have delayed their decision-making or their projects or have
canceled projects.

Second, given the level of energy prices in 2007 and much of 2008, the geophysical services market has developed
strongly especially in offshore acquisition and in supporting geophysical equipment. The worldwide offshore fleet of
large 3D vessels (with more than six streamers) increased from 36 vessels at the end of 2005 to approximately
60 vessels by the end of 2008, with stable capacity expected in 2009 following the decommissioning of some old
vessels and the postponement or cancellation of some new-build vessels. We believe that following the decline in oil
prices in the second half of 2008 and the first quarter of 2009, demand in seismic services has significantly decreased,
which, together with the increase in the global fleet, has led to over-capacity in the offshore acquisition market and
consequent downward pressure on prices. We have recently implemented capacity reductions, and certain of our
major competitors have announced their intention to do the same. See �Our Strategy � Actively respond to current
market conditions� below.
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Adverse economic and financing conditions have also affected levels of discretionary spending by oil and gas
companies in our land business line, particularly by independent oil companies, and in North America. Such
conditions, together with delayed decision-making by our clients, have also significantly adversely affected
multi-client after sales. In addition, we recently have had to extend the length of payment terms for certain of our
clients. These factors have resulted in an increase in our working capital needs.
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Although the current adverse economic, financing and industry conditions did have an adverse effect on our results of
operations for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009, our results for the six months ended June 30, 2009
benefited from prices for our marine contract services that were established during previous periods under more
favorable market conditions. The effects of the current adverse economic, financing and industry conditions have been
more pronounced in our results of operations since September 30, 2009.

Nevertheless, we believe that the medium-term outlook for the geophysical services sector, particularly the offshore
segment, and the demand for geophysical equipment is fundamentally positive for a number of reasons:

� First, oil and gas companies (including both the international oil companies and the national oil companies)
and the large oil and gas consuming nations have perceived a growing and potentially lasting imbalance
between reserves and future demand for hydrocarbons. A rapid rise in world consumption requirements,
particularly in China and India, resulted in demand for hydrocarbons growing more rapidly than anticipated
prior to the current economic downturn. At the same time, oil and gas companies have increased their focus
on existing production capacities and reserves replacement.

� Second, the recognition of a potential future imbalance between hydrocarbon supply and demand, combined
with low reserve replacement rates, has led in the recent past and we expect that it could lead in the future to
sustained capital expenditure in exploration and production. The seismic services market generally benefits
from this spending since seismic services are an important element in the search for new reserves and
optimization of existing reservoirs from pure exploration (early cycle) to reservoir development, management
and production (late cycle).

The strong technological developments in seismic equipment and services over the last decade have advanced their
use in reservoir development and production, broadening the use of seismic techniques over the lifecycle of reservoirs.

Each year, three to four million barrels of new oil have to be found in deeper and more complex basins to offset
declining reserve rates. We expect these fundamental trends to continue to drive increased demand for high-end
seismic equipment and services in the medium term. We believe that CGGVeritas is in a strong position to benefit
from these long-term favorable industry conditions.

Our Strategy

We intend to continue to strengthen our competitive position in the global geophysical services and equipment
markets by capitalizing on growth opportunities resulting from both the application of new technologies in every
sector of the oil and gas business�from exploration to production and reservoir management�and from our worldwide
presence.

To achieve this objective, we have adopted the following strategies:

Actively respond to current market conditions

The volatile and adverse global market, economic and financing conditions commencing in late 2008 and the
decreased level of capital expenditures by oil and gas companies have adversely affected demand for seismic products
and services. In response to current conditions, we are rigorously reducing costs across our organization by adjusting
our manufacturing and crew costs in line with our market outlook.

In response to decreased demand for marine surveys in the current market, we implemented a restructuring plan in
June 2009 to downsize our offshore fleet to 20 vessels. Three 3D vessels, the Harmattan, the Fohn and the Orion,
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were decommissioned in the second and third quarters of 2009. This restructuring plan will result in the de-rigging of
seven seismic vessels (three 3D vessels (the Harmattan, the Fohn and the Orion) and two 2D vessel in 2009 and two
2D vessels in 2010) and in redundancies. The cost of the restructuring plan is approximately �65 million, of which
�37.5 million represents the write-down of vessels and related assets and de-rigging expenses. In addition, we have a
twelve-year time-charter agreement with Eidesvik Offshore for the supply of two newly-built, large-capacity seismic
vessels, under which we will pay the owner and manager of the vessels approximately $500 million ratably over the
term of the lease. The two vessels were originally scheduled to be delivered in 2010.
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We have agreed with Eidesvik Offshore to amend the arrangement to provide for the delivery of the first vessel in
June 2010 and the delivery of the second vessel in September 2011. By reducing the size of our operating fleet, we
intend to align market supply with demand and reduce our fixed operating costs, while preserving capacity in core
areas.

In addition, we are taking a disciplined approach to capital spending in order to focus on our priority of free cash flow
generation in 2009. We plan to decrease capital spending on our multi-client library to $300 million in 2009 from
$500 million in 2008. We are also maintaining strong research and development spending levels and further
increasing our focus on leadership in advanced technology.

Focus on growth areas for geophysical services

We believe that our proprietary equipment and software provide us with a competitive advantage in specific growth
markets, such as data acquisition in transition zones and difficult terrain, where recent technological advances have
made seismic acquisition more feasible. We intend to focus on developing our technological capabilities in emerging
markets for geophysical services, such as reservoir appraisal and production monitoring. We also believe that we have
unique experience and expertise in complex land seismic acquisition projects in both desert and arctic regions.
Further, we believe our geographic footprint will allow us to respond to the growing demand for seismic imaging and
reservoir solutions.

We also intend to maintain our position in the marine and land seismic market for multi-client data. We believe that a
strong position in this market segment enhances our global competitive position and may provide opportunities for
continuing future sales. In developing our multi-client data library, we carefully select survey opportunities in order to
maximize our return on investment. We also intend to apply the latest advances in depth imaging technology to a
selected part of our existing library.

Given the growing importance of geophysics in reservoir characterization, we intend to further develop the synergies
between our data processing and reservoir services. This approach places us in a better position to meet the
requirements of our clients with an extensive range of integrated services. With the increasing market use of
wide-azimuth in the Gulf of Mexico and the growing demand for advanced imaging capabilities, we also intend to
increase our processing capability in developing disciplines, such as reservoir description and monitoring, including
wide-azimuth, multi-component and 4D studies. We also plan to continue promoting and developing our dedicated
processing centers within our clients� offices and developing our regional centers. We are also actively continuing the
convergence of our legacy software technologies in order to achieve full synergy expected in 2009.

Develop technological synergies for products and capitalize on new generation equipment

We believe Sercel is the leading manufacturer of land, marine and subsea geophysical equipment. We plan to continue
developing synergies among the technologies available to Sercel and to capitalize fully on our position as a market
leader. Through our research and development, we seek to improve existing products and maintain an active new
product development program in all segments of the geophysical equipment market (land, marine and ocean-bottom).

Develop and utilize innovative technology

The significant technological developments in seismic services over the last decade have produced a marked change in
the sector. The development of 4D and wide-azimuth techniques (providing time lapse views and enhanced
illumination of the reservoir as well as improved image resolution) now allows operators to better locate and monitor
reservoir performance. This possibility broadens the use of seismic techniques from pure exploration (early cycle) into
a tool for reservoir development, management and production (late cycle). Importantly, these techniques require more
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vessel time than traditional data acquisition. For example, three to six times more vessel time is required to shoot
wide-azimuth data than traditional 3D.

We believe that growth in demand for geophysical services will continue to be driven in part by the development of
new technologies. The industry is increasingly demanding clearer seismic imaging and better visibility, particularly
underneath salt layers. We expect multi-azimuth, wide azimuth, multi-component (3C/4C)
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surveys and time-lapse (4D) surveys to become increasingly important for new production-related applications,
particularly in the marine sector, and expect specialized recording equipment for difficult terrain to become more
important in land seismic data acquisition, particularly in transition zones, shallow water and arctic areas. We believe
that to remain competitive, geophysical services companies will need to combine advanced data acquisition
technology with consistently improving processing capacity in order to reduce further delivery times for seismic
services.

Our strategy is to continue our high level of research and development investment to reinforce our technological
leadership. We also intend to take advantage of our full range of integrated services to enhance our position as a
market leader in:

� land and transition zone seismic data acquisition systems and know-how;

� innovative marine or seabed acquisition systems and services;

� seismic data processing and reservoir services; and

� manufacturing of land, marine and subsea data acquisition equipment.

Emphasize client service

We believe it is important to operate in close proximity to our clients to develop a better understanding of their
individual needs and to add measurable value to their business processes. We respond to these needs by creating new
products or product enhancements that improve the quality of data and reduce the data delivery time to clients. We
believe that our regional multi-client and dedicated data processing centers in our clients� offices provide us with an
advantage in identifying contract opportunities, optimizing service to clients and developing products responsive to
new market demands, such as seismic techniques applied to reservoir management. We believe that we are well
positioned to benefit from the industry trend towards increased outsourcing. This trend is leading oil and gas
companies to place greater emphasis on relationships and service quality (including health, safety and protection of
the environment) in their selection of third party service providers, including geophysical services providers.

Provide integrated services

We are committed to providing clients with a full array of seismic data services, from acquisition and processing to
data interpretation and management. We believe that integration of compatible technology and equipment increases
the accuracy of data acquisition and processing, enhances the quality of our client service and thereby improves
productivity in oil and gas exploration and production. Our clients increasingly seek integrated solutions to better
evaluate known reserves and improve the ratio of recoverable hydrocarbons from producing fields. We are continuing
to develop our ability to provide geosciences solutions through a combination of various exploration and production
services, including technical data management, reservoir characterization and interpretation of well information.

Develop well-positioned data libraries

We intend to take advantage of our recent vintage, well-positioned seismic data libraries and will capitalize on our
strong experience in the wide azimuth technology. The industry�s growing interest in wide-azimuth technology to
explore complex geological environments has translated into high pre-funding levels for the Gulf of Mexico. Walker
Ridge and Garden Banks surveys may generate interest from deep offshore large oil and gas companies. Onshore, our
land library offers additional potential in North America. Our seismic data library is a strength in a market where a
global library portfolio is increasingly attractive to clients.
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Develop reservoir applications

Seismic data is currently mainly used by oil and gas companies for exploration purposes. However, we are
progressively extending our core business towards compiling and analyzing seismic data of existing reservoirs.
Through high-resolution images and our expertise in 4D seismic and permanent monitoring, we aim to assist
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hydrocarbon producers in better characterizing and predicting the static properties and dynamic behavior of their
reservoirs.

Enhance our cash liquidity position

We are also taking steps to enhance our cash liquidity position, increase our flexibility under our credit facilities,
extend our existing debt maturities, and bolster our balance sheet in an uncertain global economic environment. To
those ends, on June 9, 2009 we issued the outstanding notes. In addition, on May 21, 2009 we amended our senior
facilities agreement and on May 28, 2009 we amended our French revolving facility agreement. These amendments
(i) increase our flexibility under the financial covenants by modifying the interest coverage and leverage ratios,
(ii) include an additional covenant limiting capital expenditures, (iii) allow us to dispose of additional seismic vessels
in exchange for joint venture interests and (iv) increase our ability to incur unsecured senior debt. In consideration of
these additional amendments, we (i) repaid $100 million of our term loan B facility on May 21, 2009 and
(ii) increased the applicable percentage for all borrowing under the senior facilities and French revolving facility by
100 basis points. On October 30, 2009, we repaid an additional $100 million of our term loan B facility. See
�Description of Certain Indebtedness�.

Recent Developments

On June 24, 2009 Sercel was awarded a contract by Compania Mexicana de Exploraciones S.A de C.V. (Comesa) for
the purchase of a Unite cable-free acquisition system that will be used to carry out multiple seismic projects for Pemex
in southern Mexico.

On September 9, 2009 we were awarded a contract by Pemex to acquire and process 75,000 km2 of 3D seismic data
offshore Gulf of Mexico. The program is expected to start in October 2009 and extend through 2013. Total contract
value is approximately $465 million.

On October 9, 2009, we exercised the extension option of our time charter agreement with Eidesvik for the seismic
vessel Vantage. The time charter agreement was extended for a period of two years starting April 2010 corresponding
to a total commitment of approximately $15 million.

On October 30, 2009, we repaid $100 million of our term loan B facility, in addition to the $100 million repaid on
May 21, 2009.

8

Edgar Filing: CGGVERITAS SERVICES HOLDING (U.S.) INC. - Form 424B3

Table of Contents 26



Table of Contents

Summary of the Exchange Offer

On June 9, 2009, we completed a private offering of the outstanding notes outside the United States in reliance on
Regulation S under the Securities Act and to certain qualified institutional buyers within the United States in reliance
on Rule 144A under the Securities Act. We entered into a registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers in
the private offering of the outstanding notes in which we agreed to deliver to you this prospectus and to complete the
exchange offer within 210 days after the date we issued the outstanding notes. You are entitled to exchange in the
exchange offer your outstanding notes for new notes with substantially identical terms.

You should read the discussion under the headings � � Summary of the Terms of the New Notes� beginning on page 12
and �Description of the Notes� beginning on page 48 for further information regarding the new notes.

We summarize the terms of the exchange offer below. You should read the discussion under the heading �The
Exchange Offer� beginning on page 40 for further information regarding the exchange offer and resale of the new
notes.

The Exchange Offer We are offering to exchange up to $350 million aggregate principal
amount of new notes for up to $350 million aggregate principal amount of
the outstanding notes. Outstanding notes may be exchanged only in
integral multiples of $100,000.

Expiration Date The Exchange Offer will expire at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on
December 29, 2009, or such later date and time to which we extend it.

Withdrawal of Tenders You may withdraw your tender of outstanding notes prior to the expiration
date, unless previously accepted for exchange. We will return to you,
without charge, promptly after the expiration or termination of the
exchange offer any outstanding notes that you tendered but that were not
accepted for exchange.

Conditions to the Exchange Offer We will not be required to accept outstanding notes for exchange if the
exchange offer would be unlawful or would violate any interpretation of
the staff of the Commission. The exchange offer is not conditioned upon
any minimum aggregate principal amount of outstanding notes being
tendered. Please read the section �The Exchange Offer � Conditions to the
Exchange Offer� beginning on page 41 for more information regarding the
conditions to the exchange offer.

Procedures for Tendering Outstanding
Notes

If your outstanding notes are held through The Depository Trust Company
(�DTC�) and you wish to participate in the exchange offer, you may do so
through the automated tender offer program of DTC. If you tender under
this program, you will agree to be bound by the letter of transmittal that
we are providing with this prospectus as though you had signed the letter
of transmittal. By signing or agreeing to be bound by the letter of
transmittal, you will represent to us that, among other things:

�  any new note you receive will be acquired in the ordinary course of your
business;
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�  you have no arrangement or understanding with any person to participate
in the distribution of the outstanding notes or the new notes;

�  you are not engaged in and do not intend to engage in the distribution of
the new notes;
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�  if you are a broker-dealer that will receive new notes for your own
account in exchange for outstanding notes, that the outstanding notes to be
exchanged for new notes were acquired by you as a result of
market-making or other trading activities and you will deliver a
prospectus, as required by law, in connection with any resale of such new
notes; and

�  you are not our �affiliate�, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act, nor
a broker-dealer tendering outstanding notes acquired directly from us for
your own account.

Special Procedures for Beneficial
Owners

If you own a beneficial interest in outstanding notes that are registered in
the name of a broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other
nominee, and you wish to tender the outstanding notes in the exchange
offer, you should contact the registered holder promptly and instruct the
registered holder to tender on your behalf.

Guaranteed Delivery Procedures If you wish to tender your outstanding notes and cannot comply, prior to
the expiration date, with the applicable procedures under the automated
tender program of DTC, you must tender your outstanding notes
according to the guaranteed delivery procedures described in �The
Exchange Offer � Guaranteed Delivery Procedures� beginning on page 44.

Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax
Considerations

The exchange of outstanding notes for new notes in the exchange offer
will not be a taxable event for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Please
read �Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Exchange
Offer� beginning on page 93.

Use of Proceeds We will not receive any cash proceeds from the issuance of new notes.

The Exchange Agent

We have appointed The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, National Association as exchange agent for the
exchange offer. You should direct questions and requests for assistance, requests for additional copies of this
prospectus or of the letter of transmittal and requests for the notice of guaranteed delivery to the exchange agent
addressed as follows:

For Delivery by Mail, Overnight Delivery or Delivery By Hand:

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, National Association, as Exchange Agent

601 Travis Street, 16th Floor
Houston, Texas 77002

Attention: Global Corporate Trust�Kash Asghar
Telephone: 713-483-6649

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, National Association, in each of its capacities including, but not
limited to, Trustee, Principal Paying Agent, Registrar and exchange agent, has not participated in the preparation of
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Right Under Registration Rights
Agreement

If we fail to complete the exchange offer as required by the registration
rights agreement, we will be obligated to pay liquidated damages to
holders of the outstanding notes. Please read �Outstanding Notes
Registration Rights Agreement� beginning on page 89 for more
information regarding your rights as a holder of outstanding notes.

Listing Application has been made for the new notes to be listed on the Euro MTF
market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

Governing Law New York.

Trustee and Principal Paying Agent The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, National Association.

Luxembourg Paying Agent Dexia Banque Internationale à Luxembourg.

11
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Summary of the Terms of the New Notes

Securities Offered U.S.$350,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 91/2% Exchange Senior
Notes due 2015.

Maturity May 15, 2016.

Interest Payment Dates We will pay interest on the notes semi-annually in arrears on May 15 and
November 15 of each year, commencing November 15, 2009.

Guarantees Initially, the notes will be guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by
Alitheia Resources Inc., CGG Americas, Inc., CGG Canada Services Ltd.,
CGG Marine Resources Norge A/S, CGGVeritas Land (U.S.) Inc.,
CGGVeritas Services Holding B.V., CGGVeritas Services Holding (U.S.)
Inc., CGGVeritas Services (U.S.) Inc., Veritas DGC Asia Pacific Ltd.,
Veritas Geophysical (Mexico) LLC, Veritas Investments Inc. and Viking
Maritime Inc., (the �Services Guarantors�), and Sercel Inc., Sercel Canada
Ltd. and Sercel Australia Pty Ltd. (the �Equipment Guarantors�, and
together with the Services Guarantors, the �Initial Guarantors�). Our other
subsidiaries, including CGGVeritas Services (Norway), will not initially
guarantee the notes and, in certain circumstances, we may elect to have
certain guarantors released from their guarantees of the notes.

The Initial Guarantors have fully and unconditionally guaranteed, on a
joint and several basis, the payment of all interests, principal and other
amounts, if any, under the notes and the indenture for the notes.

The Services Guarantors (excluding their subsidiaries that have not
guaranteed the notes) generated, before consolidation entries,
�229.3 million of revenues, �34.8 million of operating income and
�23.7 million of net income in the nine-month period ended September 30,
2009 and held �4,325.2 million of total assets before consolidation entries
as at September 30, 2009. The Services Guarantors generated, before
consolidation entries, �585.2 million of revenues, �184.9 million of
operating income and �89.7 million of net income in the year ended
December 31, 2008 and held �4,573.6 million of total assets before
consolidation entries as at December 31, 2008.

The Equipment Guarantors (excluding their subsidiaries that have not
guaranteed the notes) generated, before consolidation entries,
�171.3 million of revenues, �21.7 million of operating income and
�17.7 million of net income in the nine-month period ended September 30,
2009 and held �288.6 million of total assets before consolidation entries as
at September 30, 2009. The Equipment Guarantors generated, before
consolidation entries, �389.8 million of revenues, �79.9 million of operating
income and �55.5 million of net income in the year ended December 31,
2008 and held �302.4 million of total assets before consolidation entries as
at December 31, 2008.
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in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009 and in the year ended
December 31, 2008, respectively, and 87% of
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consolidated total assets as at both September 30, 2009 and December 31,
2008.

Ranking The notes will be our senior unsecured obligations, ranking equally in
right of payment with all our other existing and future senior unsecured
indebtedness, including our 71/2% Senior Notes due 2015 and our
73/4% Senior Notes due 2017, and senior in right of payment to all our
existing and future subordinated indebtedness. The notes and the
subsidiary guarantees will be effectively subordinated to all our secured
obligations and all secured obligations of the subsidiaries that guarantee
the notes, including any indebtedness under our senior facilities or under
the French revolving facility, to the extent of the value of the collateral. In
addition, the notes will be effectively subordinated to all current and
future indebtedness and other obligations, including trade payables, of our
subsidiaries that do not guarantee the notes. As at September 30, 2009, we
had �632.4 million of outstanding indebtedness, including accrued interest,
effectively senior to the notes, of which �616.2 million was secured. The
indenture permits us and our subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness
(including additional secured indebtedness), subject to certain conditions.

Optional Redemption We may redeem all or a part of the notes at any time on or after May 15,
2013 at the redemption prices described in this prospectus. We may
redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the notes prior to
May 15, 2012 using the proceeds of certain equity offerings. At any time
prior to May 15, 2013, we may redeem all or part of the notes at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes plus
the applicable premium described in this prospectus.

Change of Control If we undergo a change of control, each holder may require us to
repurchase all or a portion of the notes held by such holder at 101% of the
principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest.

Redemption for Changes in Tax Law We will be required to pay additional amounts to the holders of the notes
to compensate them for any amounts deducted from payments to them in
respect of the notes on account of certain taxes and other governmental
charges. If we become obligated to pay such additional amounts as a result
of a change in law, the notes will be subject to redemption, in whole but
not in part, at our option at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount
of the notes.

Certain Covenants and Events of
Default

The indenture governing the notes contains certain covenants and events
of default that, among other things, limit our ability and that of certain of
our subsidiaries to:

�  incur or guarantee additional indebtedness or issue preferred shares;

�  pay dividends or make other distributions;
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�  create or incur restrictions on the ability to pay dividends or make other
payments to us;

�  enter into transactions with affiliates;

�  issue or sell capital stock of subsidiaries;

�  engage in sale-and-leaseback transactions; and

�  sell assets or merge or consolidate with another company.

All of these limitations are subject to a number of important qualifications.
In addition, the starting dates for the calculation of the availability under
the various �baskets� relating to restricted payments, indebtedness, liens and
other covenants are the same as those under the indentures governing our
existing senior notes, namely either January 1, 2005 or April 28, 2005
(depending on the particular basket). If at any time the notes receive
ratings of BBB- or higher from Standard & Poor�s Ratings Services and
Baa3 or higher from Moody�s Investors Services, Inc., and no default or
event of default has occurred and is continuing, certain restrictions,
covenants and events of default will cease to be applicable to the notes for
so long as the notes maintain such ratings.

For further information regarding the new notes, see �Description of the Notes�.

Principal Executive Office

Our headquarters are located at Tour Maine-Montparnasse, 33 avenue de Maine, BP 191, 75755 Paris Cedex 15,
France, and our telephone number is +33 1 64 47 45 00.

Risk Factors

See �Risk Factors� beginning on page 17 for a discussion of certain factors to be considered in connection with an
investment in the new notes.
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SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following summary historical consolidated financial information as at and for the three years ended December 31,
2008 is derived from our consolidated audited financial statements, which were audited by Ernst & Young et Autres
and Mazars and are included in our 2008 annual report incorporated by reference in this prospectus. The following
summary historical consolidated financial information for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2009 and 2008
is unaudited and is derived from our unaudited financial statements included in our current report on Form 6-K
submitted to the Commission on November 10, 2009 and incorporated by reference in this prospectus. The unaudited
financial statements include all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring accruals, which we consider necessary for
a fair presentation of our financial position and results of operations for these periods. The results of operations for the
nine-month periods presented below are not necessarily indicative of the results for the full fiscal year.

The summary financial data included below should be read in conjunction with, and are qualified in their entirety by
reference to, our consolidated financial statements incorporated by reference in this prospectus and �Item 5: Operating
and Financial Review and Prospectus� in our 2008 annual report incorporated by reference in this prospectus and
�Item 2: Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� in our current report
on Form 6-K submitted to the Commission on November 10, 2009 and incorporated by reference in this prospectus.
The summary financial data included below are for CGG prior to the merger with Veritas, which was completed on
January 12, 2007, and for CGGVeritas thereafter. Our consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (�IFRS�) as adopted by the European Union.

As at and for the nine As at and for the
months ended year ended
September 30, December 31,

2009 2008 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(unaudited) (unaudited)

(in millions of euros except for per share data and ratios)

Statement of operations
data:
Operating revenues 1,773.3 1,835.6 2,602.5 2,374.1 1,329.6 869.9 687.4
Other revenues from
ordinary activities 6.7 0.7 1.7 1.2 1.8 1.9 0.4
Cost of operations (1,320.6) (1,233.3) (1,722.5) (1,622.3) (890.0) (670.0) (554.0)
Gross profit 419.4 603.0 881.7 753.0 441.4 201.8 133.8
Research and
development expenses,
net (45.1) (35.5) (43.8) (51.3) (37.7) (31.1) (28.8)
Selling, general and
administrative expenses (180.5) (182.5) (256.1) (231.0) (126.4) (91.2) (78.6)
Other revenues
(expenses), net (69.3) 9.2 (36.4) 18.4 11.7 (4.4) 19.3
Operating income 124.5 392.2 540.6 489.1 289.0 75.1 45.7
Cost of financial debt,
net (77.9) (59.8) (83.8) (109.1) (25.4) (42.3) (27.8)
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Variance on derivative
on convertible bonds � � � � (23.0) (11.5) (23.5)
Other financial income
(loss) (9.9) (2.9) (11.5) (5.2) (8.8) (14.5) 0.8
Income taxes (5.0) (116.5) (108.3) (129.4) (83.2) (26.6) (10.9)
Equity in income of
investees 5.3 2.4 3.0 4.2 10.1 13.0 10.3
Net income (loss) 37.0 221.2 340.0 249.6 158.7 (6.8) (5.4)
Attributable to minority
interests 4.4 7.7 7.2 4.1 1.6 1.0 1.0
Attributable to
shareholders 32.6 213.5 332.8 245.5 157.1 (7.8) (6.4)
Net income (loss) per
share:
Basic(1) 0.22 1.55 2.41 1.82 1.81 (0.13) (0.11)
Diluted(2) 0.22 1.54 2.39 1.80 1.77 (0.13) (0.11)
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As at and for the nine As at and for the
months ended year ended
September 30, December 31,

2009 2008 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(unaudited) (unaudited)

(in millions of euros except for per share data and ratios)

Balance sheet data:
Cash and cash
equivalents 559.5 317.5 516.9 254.3 251.8 112.4 130.6
Working capital(3) 386.2 476.7 458.0 367.1 210.4 154.1 116.4
Property, plant &
equipment, net 752.1 644.6 822.4 660.0 455.2 480.1 204.1
Multi-client surveys, net 535.6 542.4 535.6 435.4 71.8 93.6 124.5
Goodwill 1,977.0 2,001.0 2,055.1 1,928.0 267.4 252.9 62.5
Total assets 5,281.5 5,013.6 5,634.2 4,647.0 1,782.1 1,565.1 971.2
Gross debt(4) 1,495.7 1,416.5 1,546.0 1,361.0 405.6 409.6 252.4
Shareholders� equity 2,907.1 2,645.9 2,960.1 2,401.6 877.0 698.5 393.2

Other financial
historical data and
other ratios:
EBITDAS(5) 505.9 751.2 1,058.4 997.3 483.0 221.4 178.2
Capital expenditures
(property, plant &
equipment)(6) 152.9 118.8 155.4 230.5 149.3 125.1 49.8
Capital expenditures for
multi-client surveys 191.8 283.4 343.4 371.4 61.5 32.0 51.1
Net debt(7) 936.2 1,099.0 1,029.1 1,106.7 153.8 297.2 121.8
Ratio of earnings to
fixed charges 1.5x 6.0x 5.8x 4.1x 9.0x 1.4x 1.6x

Notes:

(1) For the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, basic per share amounts have been calculated on the
basis of 150,797,818 and 137,498,471 weighted average outstanding shares, respectively. For the year ended
December 31, 2008, basic per share amounts have been calculated on the basis of 137,910,388 weighted average
outstanding shares. Basic per share amounts before 2008 have been restated in order to reflect our five for one
stock split effective as of June 3, 2008 with the equivalent of 134,567,140 weighted average outstanding shares
in 2007, 86,859,635 weighted average outstanding shares in 2006, 60,479,625 weighted average outstanding
shares in 2005 and 58,407,030 weighted average outstanding shares in 2004.

(2) For the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, diluted per share amounts have been calculated on the
basis of 150,797,818 and 137,498,471 weighted average outstanding shares, respectively. For the year ended
December 31, 2008, diluted per share amounts have been calculated on the basis of 139,064,883 weighted
average outstanding shares. Diluted per share amounts before 2008 have been restated in order to reflect our five
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for one stock split effective as of June 3, 2008 with the equivalent of 136,078,995 weighted average outstanding
shares in 2007, 88,656,930 weighted average outstanding shares in 2006, 60,479,625 weighted average
outstanding shares in 2005 and 58,407,030 weighted average outstanding shares in 2004.

(3) �Working capital� is defined as net trade accounts and notes receivable, net inventories and work-in-progress, tax
assets, other current assets and assets held for sale less trade accounts and notes payable, accrued payroll costs,
income tax payable, advance billings to customers, deferred income, current provisions and other current
liabilities.

(4) �Gross debt� is defined as financial debt, including current maturities, capital leases, bank overdrafts and accrued
interest.

(5) �EBITDAS� is defined as earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortization and share-based compensation
cost. Share-based compensation includes both stock options and shares issued under our share allocation plans.
EBITDAS is presented as additional information because we understand that it is one measure used by certain
investors to determine our operating cash flow and historical ability to meet debt service and capital expenditure
requirements. However, other companies may present EBITDAS and similar measures differently than we do.
EBITDAS is not a measure of financial performance under IFRS and should not be considered as an alternative
to cash flow from operating activities or as a measure of liquidity or an alternative to net income as indicators of
our operating performance or any other measures of performance derived in accordance with IFRS. See �Item 5:
Operating and Financial Review and Prospects � Liquidity and Capital Resources � EBITDAS� in our 2008 annual
report and �Item 2: �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations �
Liquidity and Capital Resources � EBITDAS� in our current report on Form 6-K submitted to the Commission on
November 10, 2009, both incorporated by reference in this prospectus, for a reconciliation of EBITDAS to net
cash provided by operating activities.

(6) �Capital expenditures� is defined as purchases of property, plant and equipment plus equipment acquired under
capital lease and suppliers of fixed assets.

(7) �Net debt� is defined as bank overdrafts and financial debt including current portion (including capital lease debt)
net of cash and cash equivalents. Net debt is presented as additional information because we understand that
certain investors believes that netting cash against debt provides a clearer picture of the financial liability
exposure. However, other companies may present net debt differently than we do. Net debt is not a measure of
financial performance under IFRS and should not be considered as an alternative to any other measures of
performance derived in accordance with IFRS. See �Item 5: Operating and Financial Review and Prospects �
Liquidity and Capital Resources � Net Debt� in our 2008 annual report and �Item 2: �Management�s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations � Liquidity and Capital Resources � Net Debt� in our
current report on Form 6-K submitted to the Commission on November 10, 2009, both incorporated by reference
in this prospectus, for a reconciliation of net debt to financing items of the CGGVeritas balance sheet.
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in the notes involves risks. Before investing in the notes, you should carefully consider the following
risk factors and all information contained in this prospectus. Additional risks and uncertainties of which we are
not aware or that we believe are immaterial may also adversely affect our business, financial condition, liquidity,
results of operations or prospects. If any of these events occur, our business, financial condition, liquidity, results
of operations or prospects could be materially and adversely affected. If that happens, we may not be able to pay
interest or principal on the notes when due and you could lose all or part of your investment.

Risks related to our business

The current economic and credit environment and lower oil and natural gas prices could have a continuing
adverse effect on demand for certain of our products and services, our results of operations, our cash flows, our
financial condition and our ability to borrow.

Commencing in late 2008 and continuing to the present, global market and economic conditions have been volatile
and adverse. Concerns over energy costs, geopolitical issues, the availability and cost of credit, the mortgage markets
and declining residential real estate markets have contributed to this increased volatility and diminished expectations
for the global economy. These factors, combined with volatile oil prices, declining business and consumer confidence
and increased unemployment, have precipitated a global recession. In the past, economic contractions have weakened
demand and lowered prices for oil and natural gas, which has tended to reduce the levels of exploration for oil and
natural gas. Historically, demand for our products and services has been sensitive to the level of exploration spending
by oil and gas companies; the demand for our products and services will be reduced if the level of exploration
expenditures is reduced. See �Risks related to our industry � The volume of our business depends on the level of capital
expenditures by the oil and gas industry, and reductions in such expenditures may have a material adverse effect on
our business�.

The current conditions in the credit and capital markets and the general slowdown of the global economy are likely to
have a significant adverse impact on industrial and commercial performance and the solvency of many companies in
general, which may affect some of our customers and suppliers. Interest rates have fluctuated recently, the cost of
financing has increased and this increase will likely reduce our and our customers� and suppliers� profits and expected
returns on investment. Given the current credit environment, particularly the tightening of the credit markets, there can
be no assurance that our customers will be able to borrow money on a timely basis or on reasonable terms, which
could have a negative impact on their demand for our products, lead to renegotiations or cancellations of customer
orders and impair the ability of our customers to pay us for our products and services on a timely basis, or at all.
Suppliers may also fail to provide goods and services as agreed. These developments could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

The recent turmoil in the credit markets and its potential impact on the liquidity of major financial institutions may
also have an adverse effect on our ability to fund our business strategy through borrowings under either existing or
new debt facilities in the public or private markets and on terms we believe to be reasonable. Continued weakness in
the financial markets could have a material adverse effect on our ability to refinance all or a portion of our
indebtedness and to otherwise fund our operational requirements.

It is difficult to predict how long the current economic conditions will persist, whether they will deteriorate further,
and which of our products and services will be adversely affected. We may have impairment losses as events or
changes in circumstances occur which reduce the fair value of an asset below its carrying amount. As a result, these
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conditions could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations, and we may be subject to increased
disputes and litigation because of these events and issues.
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We are subject to risks related to our international operations that could harm our business and results of
operations.

With operations worldwide, including in emerging markets, our business and results of operations are subject to
various risks inherent in international operations. These risks include:

� instability of foreign economies and governments;

� risks of war, terrorism, piracy, civil disturbance, seizure, renegotiation or nullification of existing
contracts; and

� foreign exchange restrictions, sanctions and other laws and policies affecting taxation, trade and investment.

We are exposed to these risks in all of our foreign operations to some degree, and such exposure could be material to
our financial condition and results of operations in emerging markets where the political and legal environment is less
stable.

We cannot assure that we will not be subject to material adverse developments with respect to our international
operations or that any insurance coverage we have will be adequate to compensate us for any losses arising from such
risks.

Revenue generating activities in certain foreign countries may require prior United States government approval in the
form of an export license and may otherwise be subject to tariffs and import/export restrictions. These laws can
change over time and may result in limitations on our ability to compete globally. In addition, non-U.S. persons
employed by our separately incorporated non-U.S. entities may conduct business in some foreign jurisdictions that are
subject to U.S. trade embargoes and sanctions by the U.S. Office of Foreign Assets Control. We have typically
generated revenue in these countries through the performance of data processing and reservoir consulting services and
the sale of software licenses and software maintenance. We have current and ongoing relationships with customers in
these countries. We have procedures in place to conduct these operations in compliance with applicable U.S. laws.
However, failure to comply with U.S. laws on equipment and services exports could result in material fines and
penalties and/or damage to our reputation. In addition, our presence in these countries could reduce demand for our
securities among certain investors.

We and certain of our subsidiaries and affiliated entities also conduct business in countries that experience
government corruption. We are committed to doing business in accordance with all applicable laws and our codes of
ethics, but there is a risk that we, our subsidiaries or affiliated entities or their respective officers, directors, employees
or agents may act in violation of applicable laws, including the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977. Any such
violations could result in substantial civil and/or criminal penalties and might materially adversely affect our business
and results of operations or financial condition.

We are subject to certain risks related to acquisitions, including the merger with Veritas, and these risks may
materially adversely affect our revenues, expenses, operating results and financial condition.

In the past we have grown by acquisitions, some of which, such as the merger with Veritas in 2007 or the Wavefield
acquisition in December 2008, were quite significant. Such operations, whether completed, pending or likely to be
completed in the future, present various financial and management-related risks that can be material, such as
integration of the acquired businesses in a cost-effective manner; implementation of a combined business strategy;
diversion of CGGVeritas management�s attention; outstanding or unforeseen legal, regulatory, contractual, labor or
other issues arising from the acquisitions; additional capital expenditure requirements; retention of customers;
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combination of different company and management cultures; operations in new geographic markets; the need for more
extensive management coordination; and retention, hiring and training of key personnel. Should any of these risks
associated with acquisitions materialize, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

More particularly, the merger with Veritas involved the integration of two companies, CGG and Veritas, that had
previously operated independently and as competitors. Achieving the anticipated long-term benefits of the merger
depends in particular on achieving the initially-anticipated cost synergies, the redeployment of both
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companies� respective support resources and the combination and integration of their significant global activities.
There can be no assurance that these objectives are being achieved or will be achieved successfully.

We may need to write down goodwill from our balance sheet.

We have been involved in a number of business combinations in the past, leading to the recognition of large amounts
of goodwill on our balance sheet. Goodwill totaled �1,977.0 million on our balance sheet as at September 30, 2009 and
�2,055.1 million on our balance sheet as at December 31, 2008. Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units (�CGUs�)
(as described in note 11 to our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2008 incorporated
by reference in this prospectus). The recoverable amount of a CGU is estimated at each balance sheet date and is
generally determined on the basis of a group-wide estimate of future cash flows expected from the CGU in question.
The estimate takes into account the possibility of significant underperformance in cash generation relative to
previously-expected results, which may arise, for example, from the underperformance of certain assets, the
decommissioning or coldstacking of vessels or a change or deterioration in the industry conditions and/or the
economic environment. On this basis, at each balance sheet date, if we expect that a CGU�s recoverable amount will
fall below the amount of goodwill recorded on the balance sheet due to substantial underperformance, we may write
down that goodwill in part or in whole. Such a write-down would not in itself have an impact on cash flow, but could
have a substantial negative impact on our operating income and net income, and as a result, on our shareholders� equity
and net debt/equity ratio.

We invest significant amounts of money in acquiring and processing seismic data for multi-client surveys and for
our data library without knowing precisely how much of the data we will be able to sell or when and at what price
we will be able to sell the data.

We invest significant amounts of money in acquiring and processing seismic data that we own. By making such
investments, we are exposed to the following risks:

� We may not fully recover the costs of acquiring and processing the data through future sales. The amounts of
these data sales are uncertain and depend on a variety of factors, many of which are beyond our control. In
addition, the timing of these sales is unpredictable, and sales can vary greatly from period to period.
Technological or regulatory changes or other developments could also materially adversely affect the value of
the data. Additionally, each of our individual surveys has a limited book life based on its location, so a
particular survey may be subject to significant amortization even though sales of licenses associated with that
survey are weak or non-existent, thus reducing our profits.

� The value of our multi-client data could be significantly adversely affected if any material adverse change
occurs in the general prospects for oil and gas exploration, development and production activities in the areas
where we acquire multi-client data or if there is a general decline in the oil and gas industry.

� Any reduction in the market value of such data will require us to write down its recorded value, which could
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Our results of operations may be significantly affected by currency fluctuations.

We derive a substantial amount of our revenues from international sales, subjecting us to risks relating to fluctuations
in currency exchange rates. Our revenues and expenses are mainly denominated in U.S. dollar and euro, and to a
significantly lesser extent, in Canadian dollar, Brazilian real, Australian dollar, British pound and the Norwegian
kroner. Historically, a significant portion of our revenues that were invoiced in euros related to contracts that were
effectively priced in U.S. dollars, as the U.S. dollar often serves as the reference currency when bidding for contracts
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to provide geophysical services.

Fluctuations in the exchange rate of the euro against such other currencies, particularly the U.S. dollar, have had in the
past and will have in the future a significant effect upon our results of operations, which are reported in euros. The
merger with Veritas very significantly increased both the dollar-denominated revenues and expenses of the Group, as
Veritas�s revenues and expenses were historically denominated largely in U.S. dollars. Thus, for financial reporting
purposes, depreciation of the U.S. dollar against the euro will negatively affect our reported
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results of operations since U.S. dollar-denominated earnings that are converted to euros are stated at a decreased
value. Moreover, and in addition to the impact of the conversion of the U.S. dollar at a decreased value, since we
participate in competitive bids for data acquisition contracts that are denominated in U.S. dollars, the depreciation of
the U.S. dollar against the euro harms our competitive position against companies whose costs and expenses are
denominated to a greater extent in U.S. dollars. While we attempt to reduce the risks associated with such exchange
rate fluctuations through our hedging policy, we cannot assure that we will maintain our profitability level or that
fluctuations in the values of the currencies in which we operate will not materially adversely affect our future results
of operations. As of the date of this prospectus, our annual fixed expenses in euros are equal to approximately
�500 million and as a consequence, an unfavorable variation of $0.10 in the exchange rate between the U.S. dollar and
the euro would reduce our operating income by approximately $50 million.

The following table shows our exchange rate exposure as of September 30, 2009.

$ million

Assets 1,943
Liabilities   (1,894)

Net position before hedging 49
Off-balance sheet positions (94)

Net position after hedging (45)

Our net foreign-exchange exposure is principally to the U.S. dollar and currencies pegged to the U.S. dollar. We seek
to reduce our foreign-exchange position by selling our future receivables as soon as they enter the backlog and taking
out dollar-denominated loans supported by long-term assets. Although we attempt to reduce the risks associated with
exchange rate fluctuations, we cannot assure that fluctuations in the values of the currencies in which we operate will
not materially adversely affect our future results of operations.

As a result of our compliance with IAS 12 (Income Taxes), our results of operation are also exposed to the effect of
exchange rate variations on our deferred tax amounts when the functional currency for an entity that owns an asset is
not the same as the currency used for taxation purposes. This is the case for several Norwegian subsidiaries that own
offshore assets (vessels and equipment) for which the functional currency is the U.S. dollar, whereas the taxable
currency is the Norwegian kroner. We estimate that as of the date of this prospectus, a decrease of NOK 1 in the value
of the Norwegian kroner relative to the U.S. dollar would increase our deferred tax liability by approximately
$7 million.

Our working capital needs are difficult to forecast and may vary significantly, which could result in additional
financing requirements that we may not be able to meet on satisfactory terms, or at all.

It is difficult for us to predict with certainty our working capital needs. This difficulty is due primarily to working
capital requirements related to the marine seismic acquisition business and related to the development and
introduction of new lines of geophysical equipment products. For example, under specific circumstances, we may
have to extend the length of payment terms we grant to customers (and have recently done so) or may increase our
inventories substantially. We may therefore be subject to significant and rapid increases in our working capital needs
that we may have difficulty financing on satisfactory terms, or at all, due notably to limitations in our debt
agreements.
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Technological changes and new products and services are frequently introduced in the market, and our technology
could be rendered obsolete by these introductions, or we may not be able to develop and produce new and enhanced
products on a cost-effective and timely basis.

Technology changes rapidly in the seismic industry, and new and enhanced products are frequently introduced in the
market for our products and services, particularly in our equipment manufacturing and data processing and
geosciences sectors. Our success depends to a significant extent upon our ability to develop and produce new and
enhanced products and services on a cost-effective and timely basis in accordance with industry demands. While we
commit substantial resources to research and development, we may encounter resource constraints or technical or
other difficulties that could delay the introduction of new and enhanced products and services in the future. In
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addition, the continuing development of new products risks making our older products obsolete. New and enhanced
products and services, if introduced, may not gain market acceptance and may be materially adversely affected by
technological changes or product or service introductions by one of our competitors.

The nature of our business subjects us to significant ongoing operating risks for which we may not have adequate
insurance or for which we may not be able to procure adequate insurance on acceptable terms, if at all.

Our seismic data acquisition activities, particularly in deepwater marine areas, are often conducted under harsh
weather and other hazardous operating conditions. These operations are subject to risks of loss to property and injury
to personnel from fires, accidental explosions, ice floes and high seas. These types of events could result in loss from
business interruption, delay, equipment destruction or other liability. We carry insurance against the destruction of or
damage to our seismic equipment and against business interruption for our data processing activities in amounts we
consider appropriate in accordance with industry practice. However, our insurance coverage may not be adequate in
all circumstances or against all hazards, and we may not be able to maintain adequate insurance coverage in the future
at commercially reasonable rates or on acceptable terms.

We depend on proprietary technology and are exposed to risks associated with the misappropriation or
infringement of that technology.

Our results of operations depend in part upon our proprietary technology. We rely on a combination of patents,
trademarks and trade secret laws to establish and protect our proprietary technology. We currently hold or have
applied for approximately 160 patents in various countries for products and processes. These patents last between four
and twenty years, depending on the date of filing and the protection accorded by each country. In addition, we enter
into confidentiality and license agreements with our employees, customers and potential customers that limit access to
and distribution of our technology. However, actions that we take to protect our proprietary rights may not be
adequate to deter the misappropriation or independent third-party development of our technology. Although we are
not currently involved in any material litigation regarding our intellectual property rights or the possible infringement
of intellectual property rights of others, such litigation may be brought in the future. In addition, the laws of certain
foreign countries do not protect proprietary rights to the same extent as either the laws of France or the laws of the
United States, which may limit our ability to pursue third parties that misappropriate our proprietary technology.

Our failure to attract and retain qualified employees may materially adversely affect our future business and
operations.

Our future results of operations will depend in part upon our ability to retain our existing highly skilled and qualified
employees and to attract new employees. A number of our employees are highly skilled scientists and technicians.

We compete with other seismic products and services companies and, to a lesser extent, companies in the oil industry
for skilled geophysical and seismic personnel, particularly in times when demand for seismic services is relatively
high. A limited number of such skilled personnel is available, and demand from other companies may limit our ability
to fill its human resources needs. If we are unable to hire, train and retain a sufficient number of qualified employees,
this could impair our ability to compete in the geophysical services industry and to develop and protect our
know-how. Our success also depends to a significant extent upon the abilities and efforts of members of our senior
management, the loss of whom could materially adversely affect our business and results of operations.

CGG has had losses in the past and there is no assurance of our profitability for the future.

CGG recorded net shareholders� losses in 2004 and 2005 of �6.4 million and �7.8 million, respectively, although
excluding the accounting impact under IFRS of our 7.75% subordinated convertible bonds due 2012 denominated in
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U.S. dollars, our net income would have been positive. We cannot assure you that we will be profitable in future
periods.
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Risks related to our industry:

The volume of our business depends on the level of capital expenditures by the oil and gas industry, and reductions
in such expenditures may have a material adverse effect on our business.

Demand for our products and services has historically been dependent upon the level of capital expenditures by oil
and gas companies for exploration, production and development activities. These expenditures are significantly
influenced by oil and gas prices and by expectations regarding future oil and gas prices. Oil and gas prices may
fluctuate based on relatively minor changes in the supply of and demand for oil and gas, expectations regarding future
supply of and demand for oil and gas and certain other factors beyond our control. Lower or volatile oil and gas prices
tend to limit the demand for seismic services and products.

Factors affecting the prices of oil and gas include:

� demand for oil and gas;

� worldwide political, military and economic conditions, including political developments in the Middle East,
economic growth levels, the availability of financing and the ability of OPEC to set and maintain production
levels and prices for oil;

� levels of oil and gas production;

� the price and availability of alternative fuels;

� policies of governments regarding the exploration for and production and development of oil and gas reserves
in their territories; and

� global weather conditions.

We believe that the current crisis in the credit markets, the general slowdown of the global economy, global
geopolitical uncertainty, the rapid decrease in the price of oil price to near $40 per barrel as of March 2, 2009, and
approximately $78 per barrel as of November 11, 2009, far from its record peak of $145 per barrel as of July 3, 2008,
as well as the decrease in gas prices in North America, could cause hydrocarbon companies to suddenly delay or
cancel some of their development projects and, as a consequence, reduce their need for seismic services. We have
already experienced decreased demand for seismic products and services in the first nine months 2009 as a result of
such conditions. The markets for oil and gas historically have been volatile and are likely to continue to be so in the
future. Given these uncertainties, we cannot predict future demand for seismic services and products.

Our backlog includes contracts that can be unilaterally terminated at the client�s option.

In accordance with industry practice, contracts for the provision of seismic services typically can be canceled at the
sole option of the oil or gas client without payment of significant cancellation costs to the service provider. As a
result, even if contracts are not recorded in backlog unless they represent a firm commitment by the client, there can
be no assurance that such contracts will be wholly executed by us and generate actual revenue, or even that the total
costs already incurred by us in connection with the contract would be covered in full by any cancellation clause.

We are subject to intense competition in the markets where we carry out our operations, which could limit our
ability to maintain or increase our market share or to maintain our prices at profitable levels.
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Most of our contracts are obtained through a competitive bidding process, which is standard for the seismic services
industry in which we operate. Competitive factors in recent years have included price, crew availability, technological
expertise and reputation for quality, safety and dependability. While no single company competes with us in all of our
segments, we are subject to intense competition in each of our segments. We compete with large, international
companies as well as smaller, local companies. In addition, we compete with major service providers and
government-sponsored enterprises and affiliates. Some of our competitors operate more data acquisition crews than
we do and have greater financial and other resources. These and other competitors may be better positioned to
withstand and adjust more quickly to volatile market conditions, such as fluctuations in oil and gas prices and
production levels, as well as changes in government regulations. In addition, if geophysical service competitors
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increase their capacity (or do not reduce capacity if demand decreases), the excess supply in the seismic services
market could apply downward pressure on prices. We believe that following the decline in oil prices in the second half
of 2008 and its slow recovery in 2009 to date and the current economic downturn, demand in seismic services has
significantly decreased, which, together with the increase in the global fleet in recent years, has led to over-capacity in
the offshore acquisition market and consequent downward pressure on prices. The negative effects of the competitive
environment in which we operate could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Our fleet of vessels may be subject to temporary or permanent measures to reduce capacity as a result of conditions
in the seismic market.

Following our acquisition of Wavefield, we operated a fleet of 27 vessels composed of 13 large-capacity vessels with
eight to 14 streamers, seven medium-capacity vessels with four to six streamers and seven smaller 3D/2D vessels. In
response to decreased demand for marine surveys in the current market, we implemented a restructuring plan in June
2009 to downsize our offshore fleet to 20 vessels. We now own three 3D vessels and two 3D/2D vessels, hold
purchase options on three 3D vessels, and operate the 11 other 3D vessels and four other 3D/2D vessels under time
charters running from one to seven years, with a weighted average term of five years. The restructuring plan will
result in the de-rigging of seven seismic vessels (three 3D vessels (the Harmattan, the Fohn and the Orion) and two
2D vessel in 2009 and two 2D vessels in 2010) and in redundancies. The cost of the restructuring plan is
approximately �65 million, of which �37.5 million represents the write-down of vessels and related assets and de-rigging
expenses.

In addition, we have a twelve-year time-charter agreement with Eidesvik Offshore for the supply of two newly-built,
large-capacity seismic vessels, under which we will pay the owner and manager of the vessels approximately
$500 million ratably over the term of the lease. The two vessels were originally scheduled to be delivered in 2010. We
have agreed with Eidesvik Offshore to amend the arrangement to provide for the delivery of the first vessel in June
2010 and the delivery of the second vessel in September 2011.

Reductions in vessel capacity may decrease our ability to generate revenues or to maintain market share, particularly if
demand for offshore services increases. Alternatively, economic conditions in the seismic market could lead us to
further reduce our marine acquisition capacity, either permanently, by decommissioning the oldest vessels in our fleet,
or temporarily, by ceasing to use of certain vessels for a period. Any decommissioning or retirement of our vessels
would result in additional costs, including possible payments to the vessels� owners or managers and employee
termination costs. We could also enter into joint venture arrangements with third parties with respect to certain of our
vessels, which would require us to share with such third parties the revenue to be generated by those vessels.

We have high levels of fixed costs that are incurred regardless of our level of business activity.

We have high fixed costs and data acquisition activities that require substantial capital expenditures. As a result,
downtime or low productivity due to reduced demand, weather interruptions, equipment failures or other causes could
result in significant operating losses.

The revenues we derive from land and marine seismic data acquisition vary significantly during the year.

Our land and marine seismic data acquisition revenues are partially seasonal in nature. The offshore data acquisition
business is, by its nature, exposed to unproductive interim periods due to necessary repairs or transit time from one
operational zone to another during which revenue is usually not recognized. Other factors that cause variations from
quarter to quarter include the effects of weather conditions in a given operating area, the internal budgeting process of
some important clients relative to their exploration expenses, and the time needed to mobilize production means
and/or obtain the administrative authorizations necessary to commence data acquisition contracts.
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Our business is subject to governmental regulation, which may adversely affect our future operations.

Our operations are subject to a variety of federal, provincial, state, foreign and local laws and regulations, including
environmental, health and safety and labor laws. We invest financial and managerial resources to comply
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with these laws and related permit requirements. Our failure to do so could result in fines or penalties, enforcement
actions, claims for personal injury or property damages, or obligations to investigate and/or remediate contamination.
Failure to obtain the required permits on a timely basis may also prevent us from operating in some cases, resulting in
crew downtime and operating losses. Moreover, if applicable laws and regulations, including environmental, health
and safety requirements, or the interpretation or enforcement thereof, become more stringent in the future, we could
incur capital or operating costs beyond those currently anticipated. The adoption of laws and regulations that directly
or indirectly curtail exploration by oil and gas companies could also materially adversely affect our operations by
reducing the demand for our geophysical products and services.

Risks related to our indebtedness

Our substantial debt could adversely affect our financial health and prevent us from fulfilling our obligations.

We have a significant amount of debt. As at September 30, 2009, our net debt, total assets and shareholders� equity
were �936.2 million, �5,281.5 million and �2,907.1 million, respectively. As at December 31, 2008, our net debt, total
assets and shareholders� equity were �1,029.1 million, �5,634.2 million and �2,960.1 million, respectively. We cannot
assure you that we will be able to generate sufficient cash to service our debt or sufficient earnings to cover fixed
charges in future years.

Our substantial debt could have important consequences. In particular, it could:

� increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions;

� require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our indebtedness,
thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow to fund capital expenditures and other general corporate
purposes;

� limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our businesses and the industries in which we
operate;

� place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt; and

� limit, along with the financial and other restrictive covenants of our indebtedness, among other things, our
ability to borrow additional funds.

Our debt agreements contain restrictive covenants that may limit our ability to respond to changes in market
conditions or pursue business opportunities.

The indentures governing the notes offered hereby, our existing 71/2% Senior Notes due 2015 and 73/4% Senior
Notes due 2017 (hereinafter the �Senior Notes�) and the agreements governing our credit facilities (including our senior
credit facilities dated January 12, 2007 (hereinafter the �senior facilities�) and our French revolving facility dated
February 7, 2007 (hereinafter the �French revolving facility�)) contain, or will contain, restrictive covenants that limit
our ability and the ability of certain of our subsidiaries to, among other things:

� incur or guarantee additional indebtedness or issue preferred shares;

� pay dividends or make other distributions;

� purchase equity interests or reimburse subordinated debt prior to its maturity;
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� create or incur certain liens;

� enter into transactions with affiliates;

� issue or sell capital stock of subsidiaries;

� engage in sale-and-leaseback transactions; and

� sell assets or merge or consolidate with another company.
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These limitations are subject to a number of important qualifications and exceptions. In addition, the starting dates for
the calculation of the availability under the various �baskets� relating to restricted payments, indebtedness, liens and
other covenants in the notes offered hereby are the same as those under the indentures governing our existing senior
notes, namely either January 1, 2005 or April 28, 2005 (depending on the particular basket).

Complying with the restrictions contained in some of these covenants requires us to meet certain ratios and tests,
notably the maximum ratio of total net debt to EBITDA, the minimum ratio of EBITDA to total interest costs and the
maximum amount of capital expenditures included in our senior facilities. The requirement that we comply with these
provisions may materially adversely affect our ability to react to changes in market conditions, take advantage of
business opportunities we believe to be desirable, obtain future financing, fund needed capital expenditures, or
withstand a continuing or future downturn in our business.

If we are unable to comply with the restrictions and covenants in the indentures governing our Senior Notes, senior
facilities agreement, the French revolving facility agreement and other current and future debt agreements, there
could be a default under the terms of these indentures and agreements, which could result in an acceleration of
repayment.

If we are unable to comply with the restrictions and covenants in the indentures governing our Senior Notes or in
other current or future debt agreements, including the senior facilities agreement and the French revolving facility
agreement, there could be a default under the terms of these indentures and agreements. Our ability to comply with
these restrictions and covenants, including meeting financial ratios and tests, may be affected by events beyond our
control. As a result, we cannot assure that we will be able to comply with these restrictions and covenants or meet
such financial ratios and tests. In the event of a default under these agreements, lenders could terminate their
commitments to lend or accelerate the loans and declare all amounts borrowed due and payable. Borrowings under
other debt instruments that contain cross-acceleration or cross-default provisions may also be accelerated and become
due and payable. If any of these events occur, our assets might not be sufficient to repay in full all of our outstanding
indebtedness and we may be unable to find alternative financing. Even if we could obtain alternative financing, it
might not be on terms that are favorable or acceptable to us.

We and our subsidiaries may incur substantially more debt.

We and our subsidiaries may incur substantial additional debt (including secured debt) in the future. The terms of the
indentures governing our Senior Notes, the senior facilities agreement, the French revolving facility agreement and
our other existing senior indebtedness limit, but do not prohibit, us and our subsidiaries from doing so. As at
September 30, 2009, we had drawn �35.7 million under our existing credit facilities. The Group also benefited at such
date from other long-term confirmed and undrawn credit lines amounting to �156.8 million.

If new debt is added to our current debt levels, the related risks for us could intensify.

To service our indebtedness, we require a significant amount of cash, and our ability to generate cash will depend
on many factors beyond our control.

Our ability to make payments on and to refinance our indebtedness, and to fund planned capital expenditures depends
in part on our ability to generate cash in the future. This ability is, to a certain extent, subject to general economic,
financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control.

We cannot assure that we will generate sufficient cash flow from operations, that we will realize operating
improvements on schedule or that future borrowings will be available to us in an amount sufficient to enable us to
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service and repay our indebtedness or to fund our other liquidity needs. If we are unable to satisfy our debt
obligations, we may have to undertake alternative financing plans, such as refinancing or restructuring our
indebtedness, selling assets, reducing or delaying capital investments or seeking to raise additional capital. We cannot
assure that any refinancing or debt restructuring would be possible, that any assets could be sold or that, if sold, the
timing of the sales and the amount of proceeds realized from those sales would be favorable to us or that additional
financing could be obtained on acceptable terms. Disruptions in the capital and credit markets, as have been
experienced during 2008 and 2009 to date, could adversely affect our ability to meet our liquidity needs or to
refinance our indebtedness, including our ability to draw on our existing credit facilities or enter into new credit
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facilities. Banks that are party to our existing credit facilities may not be able to meet their funding commitments to us
if they experience shortages of capital and liquidity or if they experience excessive volumes of borrowing requests
from us and other borrowers within a short period of time.

Increases in interest rates could adversely affect our results of operations.

We may have to subscribe part of our borrowings with financial institutions at variable interest rates depending upon
the duration of the drawing periods, which can range from one to 60 months. As a result, interest expenses vary in line
with movements in short-term interest rates. In particular, our senior credit facilities are subject to interest based on
U.S. dollar LIBOR. As a result, our interest expenses may increase significantly if short-term interest rates increase.
Each 50 basis point increase in the U.S. dollar LIBOR would increase our interest expense by $3 million per year.

However, this risk is mitigated by the fact that a large proportion of our debt consists of fixed-rate bonds, along with
some fixed-rate finance leases and fixed-rate medium-term bank credit facilities with variable maturities.

The following table shows our variable interest rate exposure by maturity as of September 30, 2009 and December 31,
2008.

Overnight
to

More
than

September 30, 2009 1 year 1 to 5 years 5 years
(In millions of euros)

Financial liabilities(1) (62.1) (524.5) �
Financial assets(2) 393.5 � �
Net position before hedging(3) 331.4 (524.5) �

Overnight
to

More
than

December 31, 2008 1 year 1 to 5 years 5 years
(In millions of euros)

Financial liabilities(1) (117.9) (607.0) �
Financial assets(2) 346.9 � �
Net position before hedging(3) 229.0 607.0 �
Off-balance sheet position � � �
Net position after hedging(3) � � �

Notes:

(1) Excluding bank overdrafts and accrued interest but including employee profit-sharing

(2) Invested cash and equivalents

(3) Net assets/(liabilities)

Edgar Filing: CGGVERITAS SERVICES HOLDING (U.S.) INC. - Form 424B3

Table of Contents 59



As of September 30, 2009, our variable-rate assets (net of liabilities) due in less than one year totaled �331.4 million.

Risks Related to the Notes

Your right to receive payments on the notes is effectively junior to most of our existing indebtedness and possibly
all of our future borrowings.

The notes effectively rank behind all of our secured indebtedness, to the extent of the value of assets which secure
such indebtedness, including borrowings under our term loan B facility and U.S. revolving facility and any
borrowings under our French revolving facility. In the event of any foreclosure, dissolution, winding-up, liquidation,
reorganization, administration or other bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding of an entity that has secured obligations,
holders of secured indebtedness will have prior claims to our assets or the relevant guarantor�s assets that constitute
their collateral.

Only certain of our subsidiaries will initially guarantee the notes. Our other subsidiaries have no obligation to pay
amounts due on the notes and will not initially guarantee the notes. As a result, the notes are structurally
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subordinated to existing and future third party indebtedness and other liabilities, including trade payables, of those
non-guarantor subsidiaries. The Initial Guarantors generated, before consolidation entries, �400.6 million of revenue,
�56.5 million of operating income and �41.4 million of net income in the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and
held �4,613.3 million of total assets (before consolidation entries) as at September 30, 2009. The Initial Guarantors
(excluding their subsidiaries that have not guaranteed the notes) generated, before consolidation entries, �975.0 million
of revenue, �264.8 million of operating income and �145.2 million of net income in the year ended December 31, 2008
and held �4,876.0 million of total assets (before consolidation entries) as at December 31, 2008. The Initial Guarantors
represented 23% and 37% of consolidated revenues in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009 and in the
year ended December 31, 2008, respectively, and 87% of consolidated total assets as at both September 30, 2009 and
December 31, 2008.

In the event of a bankruptcy, liquidation or reorganization or similar proceeding relating to us, our subsidiaries or our
respective properties, holders of the notes will participate with our trade creditors and all other holders of our senior
unsecured indebtedness in the assets remaining. In any of these cases, we may not have sufficient funds to pay all of
our creditors, and holders of the notes may receive less, ratably, than the holders of secured debt.

As at September 30, 2009, we had �632.4 million of outstanding indebtedness, including accrued interest, effectively
senior to the notes, of which �616.2 million was secured.

We will rely in part on our subsidiaries for funds necessary to meet our financial obligations, including the notes.

We conduct a significant proportion of our activities through our subsidiaries. We will depend in part on those
subsidiaries for dividends and other payments to generate the funds necessary to meet our financial obligations,
including the payment of principal and interest on the notes. We cannot assure you that the earnings from, or other
available assets of, these operating subsidiaries, together with our own operations, will be sufficient to enable us to
pay principal or interest on the notes when due.

Although the occurrence of specific change of control events affecting us will permit you to require us to
repurchase your notes, we may not be able to repurchase your notes.

Upon the occurrence of specific change of control events affecting us, you will have the right to require us to
repurchase your notes at 101% of their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest. Our ability to repurchase
your notes upon such a change of control event would be limited by our access to funds at the time of the repurchase
and the terms of our debt agreements, which agreements could restrict or prohibit such a repurchase. Upon a change of
control event, we may be required immediately to repay the outstanding principal, any accrued interest on and any
other amounts owed by us under our senior facilities and our French revolving facility. The source of funds for these
repayments would be our available cash or cash generated from other sources. However, we cannot assure you that we
will have sufficient funds available upon a change of control to make these repayments and any required repurchases
of tendered notes.

French insolvency laws may not be as favorable to you as the insolvency laws of the United States or other
countries.

We conduct a part of our business activity in France and, to the extent that the center of our main interests is deemed
to be in France, we could be subject to French insolvency proceedings affecting creditors, including court-assisted
pre-insolvency proceedings (mandat ad hoc proceedings or conciliation proceedings (procédure de conciliation)),
court-controlled insolvency proceedings (safeguard proceedings (procédure de sauvegarde) and reorganization or
liquidation proceedings (redressement ou liquidation judiciaire)). In general, French insolvency legislation favors the
continuation of a business and protection of employment over the payment of creditors and could limit your ability to
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enforce your rights under the notes. The following is a general discussion of insolvency proceedings governed by
French law for informational purposes only and does not address all the French legal considerations that may be
relevant to holders of the notes.
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Grace periods

In addition to insolvency laws discussed below, you could, like any other creditor, be subject to Article 1244-1 of the
French Civil Code (Code civil).

Pursuant to the provisions of this article, French courts may, in any civil proceeding involving the debtor, defer or
otherwise reschedule over a maximum period of two years the payment dates of payment obligations and decide that
any amounts, the payment date of which is thus deferred or rescheduled, will bear interest at a rate that is lower than
the contractual rate (but not lower than the legal rate) or that payments made shall first be allocated to repayment of
principal. A court order made under Article 1244-1 of the Code civil will suspend any pending enforcement measures,
and any contractual interest or penalty for late payment will not accrue or be due during the period ordered by court.

Court-assisted pre-insolvency proceedings

Pre-insolvency proceedings may only be initiated by the debtor company itself, in its sole discretion, provided that it
experiences or anticipates legal, economic or financial difficulties (i) while still being able to pay its debts as they fall
due out of its available assets (i.e. the company is not in cessation des paiements) in case of mandat ad hoc or
conciliation proceedings, or (ii) while being in cessation des paiements for less than 45 days in case of conciliation
proceedings only.

Mandat ad hoc and conciliation proceedings are informal proceedings carried out under the supervision of the
president of the court. The competent court will appoint a trustee (as the case may be, a mandataire ad hoc or a
conciliateur) in order to help it reach an agreement with its creditors in particular by reducing or rescheduling its
indebtedness. The debtor may propose, in the filing for the commencement of the proceedings, the appointment of a
particular person as trustee. Such proceedings are non-binding since the court-appointed trustee has no power to force
the parties to accept a deal.

Mandat ad hoc proceedings.  Such proceedings are confidential. The agreement reached by the parties (if any) will be
reviewed by the court but, unlike in conciliation proceedings, French law does not provide for specific consequences
attached to such review.

Conciliation proceedings.  If an agreement is reached among the parties in the context of conciliation proceedings, it
may be either recognized (constaté) by the president of the court or, at the request of the debtor (and provided that
certain conditions are satisfied), sanctioned (homologué) by the court.

While recognition (constatation) of the agreement by the president of the court does not entail any specific
consequences, other than to render the agreement immediately enforceable and binding upon the parties thereto,
sanction (homologation) by the court has the following consequences:

� creditors who, as part of the sanctioned agreement, provide new money or goods or services designed to
ensure the continuation of the business of the distressed company (other than shareholders providing new
equity) will enjoy priority of payment over all pre-petition and post-petition claims (other than certain
post-petition employment claims and procedural costs), in the event of subsequent safeguard proceedings,
judicial reorganization proceedings or judicial liquidation proceedings; or

� in the event of subsequent judicial reorganization proceedings or judicial liquidation proceedings, the date of
the cessation des paiements cannot be determined by the court as of a date earlier than the date of the sanction
of the agreement, except in case of fraud.
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Court-controlled insolvency proceedings

The following French insolvency proceedings may be initiated by or against a company in France:

(a) safeguard proceedings (procédure de sauvegarde), if such company, while not being in cessation des
paiements, is facing difficulties which it cannot overcome; or

(b) judicial reorganization (redressement judiciaire) or judicial liquidation (liquidation judiciaire) proceedings
if such company is in cessation des paiements.
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The proceedings may be initiated before the relevant court:

� in the event of (a) above, upon petition by the company only; and

� in the event of (b) above, on the court�s own initiative or upon petition by the company, any creditor or the
public prosecutor.

While a company does not have an obligation to apply for safeguard proceedings, it is required to petition for the
opening of judicial reorganization or judicial liquidation proceedings within 45 days of becoming unable to pay its due
debt out of its available assets. If it does not, and has not petitioned the relevant court for the opening of such
proceedings or is not in conciliation proceedings, directors and, as the case may be, de facto managers of the
company, are subject to civil liability.

A court-appointed administrator, whose name can be suggested by the debtor, investigates the business of the
company during an initial observation period, which may last for up to 12 months (plus an additional six months
under exceptional circumstances). In safeguard proceedings, the administrator�s mission is limited to either supervising
the debtor�s management or primarily assisting it in preparing a safeguard plan of the company. In judicial
reorganization proceedings, the administrator�s mission is usually to assist the management and to make proposals for
the reorganization of the company, which proposals may include the sale of all or part of the company�s business to a
third party. At any time during this observation period, the court can order the liquidation of the company if its rescue
has become manifestly impossible.

Creditors� committees and adoption of the safeguard or reorganization plan.  In the case of large companies (with
more than 150 employees or turnover greater than �20 million), two creditors� committees (one for credit institutions
having a claim against the debtor and the other for suppliers having a claim that represents more than 3% of the total
amount of the claims of all the debtor�s suppliers) have to be established. To be eligible to vote, claims must be
notified by the debtor to the administrator and certified by the debtor�s statutory auditors.

If there are any outstanding debt securities in the form of �obligations� (such as bonds or notes), a general meeting
gathering all holders of such debt securities will be established whether or not there are different issuances and no
matter what the applicable law of those �obligations� is (the �bondholders general meeting�). The notes offered hereby
constitute �obligations� for purposes of a safeguard or reorganization proceeding.

These committees and the bondholders� general meeting will be consulted on the safeguard or reorganization plan
drafted by the debtor�s management during the observation period.

In the first instance, the plan must be approved by each of the two creditors� committees. Each committee must
announce whether its members approve or reject such plan within 30 days of its proposal by the company. Such
approval requires the affirmative vote of the majority of the creditors holding at least two-thirds of the amounts of the
claims held by members of such committee that participated in such vote.

Following the approval of the plan by the two creditors� committees, the plan will be submitted for approval to the
bondholders� general meeting. The approval of the plan at such meeting requires the affirmative vote of the majority of
bondholders representing at least two-thirds of the principal amount of the obligations held by creditors who voted in
the bondholders� general meeting.

Following approval by the creditors� committees and the bondholders� general meeting, the plan has to be approved by
the relevant court. In considering such approval, the court has to verify that the interests of all creditors are sufficiently
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protected. Once approved by the relevant court, the safeguard or reorganization plan accepted by the committees and
the bondholders� general meeting will be binding on all the members of the committees and all bondholders (including
those who voted against the adoption of the plan). A safeguard or reorganization plan may include debt deferrals, debt
write-offs as well as debt-to-equity swaps.

With respect to creditors who are not members of the committees, in the event no committees are established, or in the
event any of the committees or the bondholders� general meeting has refused to give its consent to the plan, the plan
will not be approved by the court and the procedure relating to the consultation of the creditors will be
re-implemented. In those circumstances, the court has the right to accept or reduce debt deferrals or write-offs with
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respect to the claims of creditors who have consented to such measures, but it may only impose uniform debt deferrals
(with interest) for a maximum period of 10 years with respect to the claims of non-consenting creditors.

The �hardening period� (période suspecte) in judicial reorganization and liquidation proceedings The date when the
debtor becomes unable to pay its due debts is deemed to be the date of the court decision commencing the judicial
reorganization or judicial liquidation proceedings. However, in the decision commencing judicial reorganization or
liquidation proceedings or in a subsequent decision, a court may decide that the date when the debtor became unable
to pay its debts be deemed to be an earlier date of up to 18 months prior to the court decision commencing the
proceedings. The date when the debtor became in cessation des paiements is important because it marks the beginning
of the �hardening period� (période suspecte). Certain transactions entered into by the debtor during the suspect period
are, by law, void or voidable.

Void transactions include transactions or payments entered into during the suspect period that may constitute
voluntary preferences for the benefit of some creditors to the detriment of other creditors. These include transfers of
assets for no consideration, contracts under which the reciprocal obligations of the debtor significantly exceed those of
the other party, payments of debts not due at the time of payment, payments made in a manner which is not commonly
used in the ordinary course of business, security granted for debts previously incurred, and provisional measures,
unless the right of attachment or seizure predates the date of suspension of payments and share options granted or sold
during the suspect period.

Voidable transactions include (i) transactions entered into, (ii) payments made when due or (iii) certain provisional
and final attachment measures taken, in each case, if such actions are taken after the debtor was in cessation of
payments and the party dealing with the debtor knew that the debtor was in cessation of payments at the time.
Transactions relating to the transfer of assets for no consideration are also voidable when carried out during the
six-month period prior to the beginning of the hardening period.

Status of creditors during safeguard, judicial reorganization or judicial liquidation proceedings.  As a general rule,
creditors domiciled in France whose debts arose prior to the commencement of insolvency proceedings must file a
proof of claim (déclaration de créances) with the creditors� representative within two months of the publication of the
court decision in the Bulletin Officiel des annonces civiles et commerciales; this period is extended to four months for
creditors domiciled outside France. Creditors who have not submitted their claims during the relevant period are,
except with respect to very limited exceptions, precluded from receiving distributions made in connection with the
insolvency proceedings. Employees are not subject to such limitations and are preferential creditors under French law.

From the date of the court decision commencing the insolvency proceedings, the debtor is prohibited from paying
debts outstanding prior to this date, subject to specified exceptions which essentially cover the set-off of related debts
and payments, authorized by the bankruptcy judge or made to recover assets for which recovery is justified by the
continued operation of the business. During this period, creditors are prevented from initiating any individual legal
action against the debtor with respect to any claim arising prior to the court decision commencing the insolvency
proceedings if the objective of such legal action is:

� to obtain an order for payment of a sum of money by the debtor to the creditor (however, the creditor may
require that a court determine the amount due); or

� to terminate or cancel a contract for non-payment of amounts owed by the creditor.

They are also barred from taking any action against the debtor, including enforcing security interests.
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Contractual provisions such as those contained in the indenture that would accelerate the payment of the debtor�s
obligations upon the occurrence of certain insolvency events are not enforceable under French law. The opening of
liquidation proceedings does, however, automatically accelerate the maturity of all of the debtor�s obligations, unless
the court allows the business to continue for a period of no more than three months (renewable once) if it considers
that a sale of part or all of the business is possible. In this case, the debtor�s obligations are deemed mature on the day
the court approves the sale of the business.

The administrator may also terminate or, provided that the debtor fully performs its post-petition contractual
obligations, continue on-going contracts.
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If the court adopts a safeguard plan or a reorganization plan, claims of creditors included in the plan will be paid
according to the terms of the plan. The court can also set a time period during which the assets that it deems to be
essential to the continued business of the debtor may not be sold without its consent.

If the court adopts a plan for the sale of the business (plan de cession), the proceeds of the sale will be allocated for
the repayment of the creditors according to the ranking of the claims. If the court decides to order the judicial
liquidation of the debtor, the court will appoint a liquidator in charge of selling the assets of the company and settling
the relevant debts in accordance with their ranking.

French insolvency law assigns priority to the payment of certain preferential creditors, including employees, officials
appointed by the insolvency court, creditors who, as part of the sanctioned conciliation agreement, have provided new
money or goods or services, post-petition creditors, certain secured creditors essentially in the event of liquidation
proceedings and the French Treasury.

Courts, under certain circumstances, may void the guarantees of the notes provided by certain of our subsidiaries.

Our creditors or the creditors of one or more guarantors of the notes or a liquidator, administrator or other controller
appointed to a guarantor could challenge the guarantees as fraudulent transfers, conveyances, preferences, insolvent
transactions or uncommercial transactions or on other grounds (including because of the absence of a corporate benefit
to the guarantor or due to financial assistance principles) under applicable U.S. federal or state law, applicable
Canadian federal or provincial law, applicable Australian law, applicable Norwegian law or the applicable law
governing the country of incorporation of any future guarantors. While the relevant laws vary from one jurisdiction to
another, the entering into the guarantees by certain of our subsidiaries could be found to be a fraudulent transfer,
conveyance, preference, insolvent transaction or uncommercial transaction or otherwise void or unenforceable if a
court were to determine that, for example, one or more of the following apply to the provision of the guarantee:

� a guarantor delivered its guarantee with the intent to defeat, hinder, delay, defraud or otherwise interfere with
its existing or future creditors;

� the guarantor did not receive fair consideration or benefit for the delivery of the guarantee and the guarantor
was insolvent at the time it delivered the guarantee;

� the guarantor delivered its guarantee in contravention of laws relating to the provision of financial assistance;

� the guarantor was insolvent at the time of execution of the guarantee or was rendered insolvent by reason of
its execution of the guarantee or the observance of its obligations under the guarantee;

� a reasonable person in the guarantor�s circumstances would not have entered into the transaction having regard
to the benefits (if any) to the guarantor, the detriment to the guarantor and the respective benefits to other
parties;

� the guarantor was engaged, or was about to engage, in a business or transaction for which its remaining assets
constituted unreasonably small capital to carry on its business;

� the guarantor intended to incur, or believed it would incur, debts beyond its ability to pay the debts as they
matured;

� the guarantor was a defendant in an action for money damage, or had a judgment for money damages
docketed against it (if, in either case, after final judgment, the judgment is unsatisfied); or

Edgar Filing: CGGVERITAS SERVICES HOLDING (U.S.) INC. - Form 424B3

Table of Contents 69



� the availability of certain equitable remedies that are in the discretion of the courts.

To the extent a court voids a guarantee as a fraudulent transfer, preference, insolvent transaction or uncommercial
transaction or conveyance or holds it unenforceable for any other reason, holders of notes would cease to have any
direct claim against the guarantor that delivered the guarantee. If a court were to take this action, the guarantor�s assets
would, in certain jurisdictions, be applied first to satisfy the guarantor�s liabilities,
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including trade payables and preferred stock claims, if any, before any portion of its assets could be distributed to us
to be applied to the payment of the notes. We cannot assure you that a guarantor�s remaining assets would be sufficient
to satisfy the claims of the holders of notes relating to any voided portions of the guarantees. In other jurisdictions
(such as Australia), if a guarantee is so voided or held unenforceable, you will cease to have any claim against the
guarantor.

Because we are organized under the laws of France, you may be unable to recover in civil proceedings for U.S.
securities laws violations.

Judgments of U.S. courts, including those predicated on the civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of
the United States, may not be enforceable in French courts. As a result, holders of notes who obtain a judgment
against us in the United States may not be able to require us to pay the amount of the judgment. It may not be possible
for holders to effect service of process within the United States upon our directors and officers or to enforce against
these persons, or us, judgments of United States courts predicated upon civil liability provisions of the federal
securities laws of the United States. See �Service of Process and Enforcement of Liabilities�.

A trading market for the notes may not develop.

The new notes are a new issue of securities with no established trading market. The liquidity of any market for the
notes will depend upon the number of holders of the notes, our performance, the market for similar securities, the
interest of securities dealers in making a market in the notes and other factors, including general declines or
disruptions in the markets for debt securities. Although we have applied to admit the new notes to listing on the
Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and to trading on the Euro MTF, a liquid trading market may not
develop or continue to exist for the notes.

The outstanding notes were issued with original issue discount for U.S. federal income tax purposes and
consequently the new notes will be treated as issued with original issue discount for U.S. federal income tax
purposes.

The outstanding notes were issued with original issue discount equal to the excess of the stated principal amount of
the notes over the issue price. Consequently, the new notes will be considered to be issued with original issue discount
for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Accordingly, a U.S. holder must include a portion of the original issue discount in gross income as interest in each
taxable year or portion thereof in which the U.S. holder holds the notes even if the U.S. holder has not received a cash
payment in respect of the original issue discount.
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EXCHANGE RATES

The following table sets forth, for the periods and dates indicated, certain information concerning the exchange rates
for the euro expressed in U.S. dollars per euro. Information concerning the U.S. dollar exchange rate is based on the
noon buying rate in New York City for cable transfers in foreign currencies as certified for customs purposes by the
Federal Reserve Board (the �Noon Buying Rate�). Such rates are provided solely for convenience and no representation
is made that euro were, could have been, or could be, converted into U.S. dollars at these rates or at any other rate.
Such rates were not used by us in the preparation of our audited and unaudited consolidated financial statements
incorporated by reference in this prospectus. The Noon Buying Rate on November 20, 2009 was $1.4870 per euro.

Dollars per euro exchange rate
Period-End(1) Average(2) High Low

Year ended December 31,
2008 1.3919 1.4695 1.6010 1.2446
2007 1.4603 1.3797 1.4862 1.2904
2006 1.3197 1.2661 1.3327 1.1860
2005 1.1842 1.2400 1.3476 1.1667
2004 1.3538 1.2478 1.3625 1.1801

Nine months ended September 30,
2009 1.4630 1.3666 1.4795 1.2547
2008 1.4081 1.5223 1.6010 1.3939

Month
November 2009 (through November 20) 1.4870 1.4878 1.4999 1.4658
October 2009 1.4755 1.4821 1.5029 1.4532
September 2009 1.4630 1.4575 1.4795 1.4235
August 2009 1.4354 1.4266 1.4416 1.4075
July 2009 1.4279 1.4092 1.4279 1.3852
June 2009 1.4020 1.4014 1.4270 1.3784
May 2009 1.4126 1.3646 1.4126 1.3267

Notes:

(1) The period-end rate is the noon buying rate on the last business day of the applicable period.

(2) The average rate for each monthly period was calculated by taking the simple average of the daily noon buying
rates, as published by the Federal Reserve Board. The average rate for each annual period was calculated by
taking the simple average of the noon buying rates on the last business day of each month during the relevant
period.
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OFFERING OF THE OUTSTANDING NOTES

On June 9, 2009, we issued $350,000,000 aggregate principal amount of the outstanding notes to certain initial
purchasers of those notes (the �Initial Purchasers�) at a price of 94.452% of the principal amount of those notes in a
private transaction not registered under the Securities Act. The Initial Purchasers then offered and resold the
outstanding notes outside the United States in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act and to qualified
institutional buyers within the United States in reliance on Rule 144A under the Securities Act, at a price to such
purchasers of 96.952% of the principal amount of those notes. We have used and are using the approximately
$330.6 million of net proceeds (after deducting the Initial Purchasers� discounts and commissions and fees and
expenses) to (i) to replace cash used to repay $100.0 million of our term loan B facility on May 21, 2009, (ii) to fund
the three quarterly $27.5 million amortization payments due during the remainder of 2009 under our term loan B
facility and (iii) to repay approximately $50.0 million of other indebtedness outstanding under the Marine Resources
Norge asset financing facilities and the Exploration Resources credit facility in September 2009. The remaining net
proceeds are being used for general corporate purposes, including the repayment of other indebtedness.

USE OF PROCEEDS

We will not receive any cash proceeds from the issuance of the new notes. In consideration for issuing the new notes,
we will receive in exchange a like principal amount of outstanding notes. The outstanding notes surrendered in
exchange for the new notes will be retired and cancelled and cannot be reissued. Accordingly, issuance of the new
notes will not result in any change in our capitalization.
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DESCRIPTION OF CERTAIN INDEBTEDNESS

The following is a description of the terms of our material financing arrangements.

Senior Facilities

On January 12, 2007, we entered into a $1.115 billion senior secured credit agreement with Credit Suisse as
administrative agent and collateral agent and the lenders party thereto, pursuant to which CGGVeritas Services
Holding (U.S.) Inc. (formerly Volnay Acquisition Co. I) borrowed a $1.0 billion senior secured �term loan B� and
obtained a $115 million senior secured U.S. revolving facility (which revolving facility includes letter of credit and
swingline subfacilities). Aggregate commitments under the U.S. revolving facility were increased to $140 million on
January 26, 2007.

The proceeds of the term loan facility were used to:

� finance a portion of the cash component of the Veritas acquisition consideration;

� repay certain existing debt of CGG and Veritas; and

� pay the fees and expenses incurred in connection with the foregoing.

Proceeds of loans under the U.S. revolving facility may be used for the general corporate purposes of the borrower
and other subsidiaries of CGGVeritas. Revolving loans may be made at any time prior to the final maturity of the
U.S. revolving facility on January 12, 2012. At September 30, 2009, we had drawn �1 million under the U.S. revolving
facility.

The obligations of CGGVeritas Services Holding (U.S.) Inc. as borrower under the senior facilities are guaranteed by
us and the Initial Guarantors of the notes (with the exception of Sercel Canada Ltd., which does not guarantee the
senior facilities). We have pledged first-priority security in the shares of CGGVeritas Services Holding B.V.,
CGGVeritas Services Holding (U.S.) Inc. and certain of our other first-tier subsidiaries, as well as material first-tier
subsidiaries of CGGVeritas Services Holding (U.S.) Inc. In addition, certain guarantors have provided first-priority
security interests in certain of their respective tangible and intangible assets, including (without limitation) certain
vessels, real property, mineral rights, deposit accounts and intellectual property. In the case of certain of our
subsidiaries (most notably CGGVeritas Services Holding (U.S.) Inc. and certain U.S. and Canadian subsidiaries), the
collateral may comprise substantially all of their respective assets.

Our obligations under, and the guarantees issued in respect of the French revolving facility described below rank pari
passu in right of payment with the obligations under the guarantees issued in respect of the senior facilities. The lien
priority and other creditors� rights issues in respect of the senior facilities are set forth in an intercreditor agreement
that provides, among other things, that so long as any obligations are outstanding under the senior facilities, Credit
Suisse (acting as agent for the senior facilities lenders as first lien lenders) will control all remedies and other action
related to the collateral.

In addition, the senior facilities agreement contains affirmative and negative covenants that affect our ability, among
other things, to borrow money, incur liens, dispose of assets and acquisitions and pay dividends or redeem shares.
Events of default under the senior facilities include, among other things, payment and covenant breaches, insolvency
of us or our subsidiaries, the occurrence of certain events constituting a �change of control� and certain defaults in
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respect of other material financial indebtedness.

The senior facilities agreement was amended on December 12, 2008 and May 21, 2009. The first amendment provides
us with greater flexibility with respect to (i) the acquisition of companies through a tender offer process, (ii) share
buybacks and (iii) recapitalization of subsidiaries that are not guarantors under our credit agreements. In consideration
of these amendments, we (i) repaid $50 million of the term loan B on December 12, 2008 and (ii) increased the four
quarterly installments due under the term loan facility in 2009 to $27.5 million each from $2.5 million each. Half of
these additional payments ($75 million) will be set off against required cash sweep prepayments due in 2010.

The second amendment (i) increases our flexibility under the financial covenants by modifying the interest coverage
and leverage ratios, (ii) includes an additional covenant limiting capital expenditures (iii) allows us to

35

Edgar Filing: CGGVERITAS SERVICES HOLDING (U.S.) INC. - Form 424B3

Table of Contents 75



Table of Contents

dispose of additional seismic vessels in exchange for joint venture interests and (iv) increases our ability to incur
unsecured senior debt. In consideration of these additional amendments, we (i) repaid $100 million of the term loan B
on May 21, 2009 and (ii) increased the applicable percentage for all borrowing under the senior facilities by 100 basis
points.

As amended in May 2009, borrowings under the term loan B facility bear interest, at the option of the borrower, at the
rate of adjusted LIBOR plus either 2.75% or 3.00% or the Alternate Base Rate plus either 1.75% or 2.00%, in each
case depending on the corporate rating of CGGVeritas by Standard & Poor�s and the corporate family rating of
CGGVeritas by Moody�s. At the option of the borrower, borrowings under the U.S. revolving facility bear interest at
the rate of adjusted LIBOR plus a range from 2.75% to 3.25% or the Alternate Base Rate plus a range from 1.75% to
2.25%, in each case depending on the corporate rating of CGGVeritas by Standard & Poor�s and the corporate family
rating of CGGVeritas by Moody�s. The Alternate Base Rate is the higher of Credit Suisse�s Prime Rate and the Federal
Funds Effective Rate plus 1/2 of 1.0%.

As amended in May 2009, the financial covenants in the senior facilities agreement include a maximum ratio of total
net debt to EBITDA (2.25:1 for any relevant period expiring in the rolling 12-month period ending June 30,
September 30 and December 31, 2009, and March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31, 2010, 2.00:1 for any
relevant period expiring in the rolling 12-month period ending March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31,
2011, 1.75:1 for any relevant period expiring in the rolling 12-month period ending March 31, June 30, September 30
and December 31, 2012 and 1.50:1 for any relevant period expiring in the rolling 12-month period ending March 31,
June 30, September 30 and December 31, 2013, respectively), a minimum ratio of EBITDA to total interest costs
(4.00:1 for any relevant period expiring in the rolling 12-month periods-ending June 30, September 30 and
December 31, 2009, and March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31, 2010, and March 31, June 30,
September 30 and December 31, 2011, 4.50:1 for any relevant period expiring in the rolling 12-month period ending
March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31, 2012 and 5.00:1 for any relevant period expiring in the rolling
12-month period ending March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31, 2013, respectively) and a maximum
amount of capital expenditures which, in any fiscal year, shall not exceed the greater of (i) $750,000,000 and (ii) 50%
of EBITDA for such fiscal year.

The term loan facility originally amortized in equal quarterly installments of $2.5 million, with the balance payable on
January 12, 2014. The December 2008 amendment increased the quarterly installments on March 31, June 30,
September 30 and December 31, 2009 to $27.5 million each. On June 29, 2007, we prepaid $100 million of the term
loan B, on December 12, 2008, we prepaid an additional $50 million and on May 21, 2009, we prepaid an additional
$100 million. At September 30, 2009, we had $647.5 million outstanding under the term loan facility. On October 30,
2009 we prepaid a further $100 million. Subject to certain exceptions, we are required to repay the principal
outstanding under the term loan facility with a portion of our excess cash flow as well as with certain proceeds of
insurance, asset sales and debt and equity issuances.

French Revolving Facility

On February 7, 2007, we entered into a $200 million French law revolving credit agreement with Compagnie
Générale de Géophysique-Veritas as borrower, Natixis as administrative agent, Credit Suisse as collateral agent and
the lenders party thereto. The proceeds of the French revolving facility may be drawn in dollars or in euros, and may
be used for the general corporate purposes of the borrower. At September 30, 2009, we had drawn $51 million under
the French revolving facility.

Each cash advance under the French revolving facility must be repaid in full at the end of the relevant interest period
of one month to twelve months and is available for redrawing during the availability period. All drawings under the
French revolving facility must be repaid on the final maturity date in 2012.
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Our obligations under the French revolving facility are guaranteed by the same guarantors that guarantee the senior
facilities (including CGGVeritas Services Holding (U.S.) Inc.), and are secured by the same security interests granted
to secure the obligations under the senior facilities.
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The French revolving facility was amended on December 12, 2008 and May 28, 2009. The first amendment provides
us with greater flexibility with respect to (i) the acquisition of companies through a tender offer process, (ii) share
buybacks and (iii) recapitalization of subsidiaries that are not guarantors under our credit agreements.

The second amendment (i) increases our flexibility under the financial covenants by modifying the interest coverage
and leverage ratios, (ii) includes an additional covenant limiting capital expenditures, (iii) allows us to dispose of
additional seismic vessels in exchange for joint venture interests and (iv) increases our ability to incur unsecured
senior debt. In consideration of this amendment, we increased the applicable percentage for all borrowing under the
French revolving facility by 100 basis points.

The revolving loans (other than swingline loans) bear interest (computed on the basis of the actual number of days
elapsed over 360) at a rate per annum equal to the aggregate of: (i) the applicable margin; (ii) EURIBOR in relation to
loans made in euro and LIBOR in relation to loans made in dollars for the relevant interest period; and (iii) mandatory
costs, if any.

The swingline loans bear interest (computed on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed over 360) at a rate per
annum equal to the aggregate of: (i) the applicable margin; (ii) EONIA; and (ii) the mandatory cost (if any).

As amended on May 28, 2009, the applicable margin ranges from 2.50% to 3.00%, depending on the corporate rating
of CGGVeritas by Standard & Poor�s and the corporate family rating of CGGVeritas by Moody�s.

Debt Securities

71/2% Senior Notes due 2015

On April 28, 2005, CGG issued $165 million aggregate principal amount of its 71/2% Senior Notes due 2015 at par in
a private placement to certain eligible investors in the international capital markets. We used the $159.8 million of net
proceeds to redeem and pay accrued interest on all of the outstanding $150 million aggregate principal amount of our
105/8% Senior Notes due 2007 on May 31, 2005. On November 9, 2005, $164.5 million in principal amount of these
notes were exchanged for identical notes registered with the SEC.

On February 3, 2006, CGG issued an additional $165 million of its 71/2% Senior Notes due 2015 issued in April 2005
in a private placement to certain eligible investors in the international capital markets. The notes were issued at a price
of 103.25% of their principal amount. The net proceeds from the notes were used mainly to repay on February 10,
2006, the $140.3 million remaining under our $375 million bridge loan facility used to finance the acquisition of
Exploration Resources. On August 17, 2006, $164 million in principal amount of these notes were exchanged for
identical notes registered with the SEC.

On the closing date of the merger with Veritas, certain subsidiaries of Veritas entered into a supplemental indenture
and amendment and subsidiary guarantee pursuant to which they became guarantors of all of the outstanding
71/2% Senior Notes due 2015.

On February 9, 2007, we issued an additional $200 million in aggregate principal amount of 71/2% Senior Notes due
2015. These notes are guaranteed on a senior basis by the Initial Guarantors of the notes offered hereby. We used the
net proceeds from the notes to repay part of the $700 million outstanding under the bridge loan facility used to finance
the Veritas acquisition.

73/4% Senior Notes due 2017
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On February 9, 2007, we issued $400 million in aggregate principal amount of 73/4% Senior Notes due 2017. These
notes are guaranteed on a senior basis by the Initial Guarantors of the notes offered hereby. We used the net proceeds
from the notes to repay part of the $700 million outstanding under the bridge loan facility used to finance the Veritas
acquisition.

91/2% Senior Notes due 2016

On June 9, 2009 we issued $350 million in aggregate principal amount of 91/2% Senior Notes due 2016 that are the
object of the exchange offer described in this prospectus. See �Offering of the Outstanding Notes�.
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Other Credit Facilities

Marine Resources Norge asset financing facilities

On June 1, 2005, CGG Marine Resources Norge A/S entered into a $20.6 million asset financing agreement and on
March 13, 2006, CGG Marine Resources Norge A/S entered into a $26.5 million asset financing agreement, in each
case to finance the acquisition of newly-developed �Sentinel� streamers for the vessel Symphony. These financing
facilities were repaid in September 2009.

Exploration Resources credit facility

On March 29, 2006, Exploration Resources entered into a $70 million credit facility to finance the conversion of the
Geo-Challenger from a cable laying vessel to a 3D seismic vessel and the acquisition of seismic equipment for the
vessels C-Orion and Geo-Challenger. This facility was repaid in September 2009.

Geomar secured term loan facility

On April 30, 2007, Geomar entered into a $25 million credit facility to refinance the purchase price of the seismic
vessel Alizé. The facility is secured by a pledge over the vessel. At September 30, 2009, the amount outstanding under
this facility was $17.0 million, of which $0.9 million remained to be paid in 2009. This facility matures on June 5,
2014.
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THE EXCHANGE OFFER

Purpose and Effect of the Exchange Offer

We entered into a registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers of the outstanding notes in which we agreed
to file a registration statement relating to an offer to exchange the outstanding notes for new notes. We also agreed to
use our reasonable best efforts to complete that offer within 210 days after June 9, 2009. We are offering the new
notes under this prospectus to satisfy those obligations under the registration rights agreement.

If any of the outstanding notes are not freely tradeable (meaning that they may be sold to the public pursuant to
Rule 144(b) and do not bear any restrictive legends relating to the Securities Act) by the 180th day after June 9, 2009,
we will use our reasonable best efforts to cause the Commission to declare effective a shelf registration statement with
respect to the resale of the outstanding notes and keep the shelf registration statement effective for up to two years
after the date of issuance of the outstanding notes in either of the following circumstances:

� if any changes in law or applicable interpretations by the staff of the Commission do not permit us to effect
the exchange offer as contemplated by the registration rights agreement; or

� in certain limited circumstances, if any holder of the outstanding notes so requests.

If we fail to comply with deadlines for registering the issuance of the new notes and completion of the exchange offer,
we will be required to pay special interest to holders of the outstanding notes. Please read the section captioned
�Outstanding Notes Registration Rights Agreement� for more details regarding the registration rights agreement.

To exchange an outstanding note for transferable new notes in the exchange offer, you will be required to make the
following representations:

� any new notes will be acquired in the ordinary course of your business;

� you have no arrangement or understanding with any person to participate in the distribution of the new notes;

� you are not engaged in and do not intend to engage in the distribution of the new notes;

� if you are a broker-dealer that will receive new notes for its own account in exchange for outstanding notes
that were acquired as a result of market-making or other trading activities, that you will deliver a prospectus,
as required by law, in connection with any resale of such new notes; and

� you are not our �affiliate�, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act, or if you are our affiliate, that you will
comply with the applicable registration requirements of the Securities Act.

Resale of New Notes

Based on interpretations of the Commission staff in no action letters issued to third parties, we believe that new notes
issued under the exchange offer may be offered for resale, resold and otherwise transferred by you without compliance
with the registration and prospectus delivery provisions of the Securities Act if:

� you are not our �affiliate� within the meaning of Rule 405 under the Securities Act;
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� any new notes will be acquired in the ordinary course of your business;

� you have no arrangement or understanding with any person to participate in the distribution of the new
notes; and

� you have not engaged in and do not intend to engage in the distribution of the new notes.

If you tender in the exchange offer with the intention of participating in any manner in a distribution of the new notes,
you:

� can not rely on such interpretations by the Commission staff; and
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� must comply with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act in connection
with a secondary resale transaction.

Unless an exemption from registration is otherwise available, any security holder intending to distribute new notes
should be covered by an effective registration statement under the Securities Act containing the selling securityholder�s
information required by Item 507 of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act. This prospectus may be used for an
offer to resell, resale or other retransfer of new notes only as specifically described in this prospectus. Only
broker-dealers that acquired the outstanding notes as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities
may participate in the exchange offer. Each broker-dealer that receives new notes for its own account in exchange for
outstanding notes, where such outstanding notes were acquired by such broker-dealer as a result of market-making
activities or other trading activities, must acknowledge that it will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale
of new notes. Please read the section captioned �Plan of Distribution� for more details regarding the transfer of new
notes.

Terms of the Exchange Offer

Upon the terms and subject to the conditions described in this prospectus and in the letter of transmittal, we will
accept for exchange any outstanding notes properly tendered and not withdrawn prior to the expiration date. We will
issue $1,000 principal amount of new notes in exchange for each $1,000 principal amount of outstanding notes
surrendered under the exchange offer. Outstanding notes may be tendered only in integral multiples of $1,000.

The exchange offer is not conditioned upon any minimum aggregate principal amount of outstanding notes being
tendered for exchange.

As of the date of this prospectus, $350 million aggregate principal amount of the outstanding notes are outstanding.
This prospectus and the letter of transmittal are being sent to all registered holders of outstanding notes. There will be
no fixed record date for determining registered holders of outstanding notes entitled to participate in the exchange
offer.

We intend to conduct the exchange offer in accordance with the provisions of the registration rights agreement, the
applicable requirements of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations of the Commission.
Outstanding notes that are not tendered for exchange in the exchange offer will remain outstanding and continue to
accrue interest and will be entitled to the rights and benefits such holders have under the indenture relating to the notes
and the registration rights agreement.

We will be deemed to have accepted for exchange properly tendered outstanding notes when we have given oral or
written notice of the acceptance to the exchange agent and complied with the applicable provisions of the registration
rights agreement. The exchange agent will act as agent for the tendering holders for the purposes of receiving the new
notes from us.

If you tender outstanding notes in the exchange offer, you will not be required to pay brokerage commissions or fees
or, subject to the instructions in the letter of transmittal, transfer taxes, with respect to the exchange of outstanding
notes. We will pay all charges and expenses, other than certain applicable taxes described below, in connection with
the exchange offer. It is important for noteholders to read the section entitled ��Fees and Expenses� for more details
regarding fees and expenses incurred in the exchange offer.

We will return any outstanding notes that we do not accept for exchange for any reason without expense to the
tendering holder as promptly as practicable after the expiration or termination of the exchange offer.

Edgar Filing: CGGVERITAS SERVICES HOLDING (U.S.) INC. - Form 424B3

Table of Contents 83



Expiration Date

The Exchange Offer Will Expire At 5:00 p.m., New York City time on December 29, 2009, unless, in our sole
discretion, we extend it.

Extensions, Delay in Acceptance, Termination or Amendment

We expressly reserve the right, at any time or at various times, to extend the period of time during which the exchange
offer is open. We may delay acceptance of any outstanding notes by giving oral or written notice of such
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extension to their holders. During any such extensions, all outstanding notes previously tendered will remain subject
to the exchange offer, and we may accept them for exchange.

In order to extend the exchange offer, we will notify the exchange agent orally or in writing of any extension. We will
notify the registered holders of outstanding notes of the extension no later than 9:00 a.m., New York City time, on the
next business day after the previously scheduled expiration date.

If any of the conditions described below under �� Conditions to the Exchange offer� have not been satisfied, we reserve
the right, in our sole discretion, to delay accepting for exchange any outstanding notes or to extend the exchange offer
or to terminate the exchange offer by giving oral or written notice of such delay, extension or termination to the
exchange agent. Subject to the terms of the registration rights agreement, we also reserve the right to amend the terms
of the exchange offer in any manner.

Any such delay in acceptance, extension, termination or amendment will be followed as promptly as practicable by
oral or written notice thereof to the registered holders of outstanding notes. If we amend the exchange offer in a
manner that we determine to constitute a material change, we will promptly disclose such amendment by means of a
prospectus supplement. The supplement will be distributed to the registered holders of the outstanding notes.
Depending upon the significance of the amendment and the manner of disclosure to the registered holders, we will
extend the exchange offer if the exchange offer would otherwise expire during such period.

Conditions to the Exchange Offer

Despite any other term of the exchange offer, we will not be required to accept for exchange, or exchange any new
notes for, any outstanding notes, and we may terminate the exchange offer as provided in this prospectus before
accepting any outstanding notes for exchange, if in our reasonable judgment the exchange offer, or the making of any
exchange by a holder of outstanding notes, would violate applicable law or any applicable interpretation of the staff of
the Commission or any action or proceeding has been instituted or threatened in any court or by or before any
governmental agency with respect to the exchange offer that, in our judgment, would reasonably be expected to impair
our ability to proceed with the exchange offer.

In addition, we will not be obligated to accept for exchange the outstanding notes of any holder that has not made to
us (1) the representations described under �� Purpose and Effect of the Exchange Offer,� �� Procedures for Tendering� and
�Plan of Distribution� and (2) such other representations as may be reasonably necessary under applicable Commission
rules, regulations or interpretations to make available to us an appropriate form for registration of the new notes under
the Securities Act.

We expressly reserve the right to amend or terminate the exchange offer, and to reject for exchange any outstanding
notes not previously accepted for exchange, upon the occurrence of any of the conditions to the exchange offer
specified above. We will give oral or written notice of any extension, amendment, non-acceptance or termination to
the holders of the outstanding notes as promptly as practicable.

These conditions are for our sole benefit and we may assert them or waive them in whole or in part at any time or at
various times in our sole discretion. If we fail at any time to exercise any of these rights, this failure will not mean that
we have waived our rights. Each such right will be deemed an ongoing right that we may assert at any time or at
various times.

In addition, we will not accept for exchange any outstanding notes tendered, and will not issue new notes in exchange
for any such outstanding notes, if at such time any stop order has been threatened or is in effect with respect to the
registration statement of which this prospectus constitutes a part or the qualification of the indenture relating to the
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Procedures for Tendering

How to Tender Generally

Only a holder of outstanding notes may tender such outstanding notes in the exchange offer. To tender in the
exchange offer, a holder must:

� complete, sign and date the letter of transmittal, or a facsimile of the letter of transmittal; have the signature
on the letter of transmittal guaranteed if the letter of transmittal so requires; and mail or deliver such letter of
transmittal or facsimile to the exchange agent prior to the expiration date; and

� comply with the automated tender offer program procedures of DTC described below.

In addition, either:

� the exchange agent must receive outstanding notes along with the letter of transmittal;

� the exchange agent must receive, prior to the expiration date, a timely confirmation of book-entry transfer of
such outstanding notes into the exchange agent�s account at DTC according to the procedure for book-entry
transfer described below or a properly transmitted agent�s message; or

� the holder must comply with the guaranteed delivery procedures described below.

To be tendered effectively, the exchange agent must receive any physical delivery of the letter of transmittal and other
required documents at its address provided above under �Prospectus Summary � The Exchange Agent� prior to the
expiration date.

The tender by a holder that is not withdrawn prior to the expiration date will constitute an agreement between the
holder and us in accordance with the terms and subject to the conditions described in this prospectus and in the letter
of transmittal.

The method of delivery of outstanding notes, the letter of transmittal and all other required documents to the
exchange agent is at the holder�s election and risk. Rather than mail these items, we recommend that holders
use an overnight or hand delivery service. In all cases, you should allow sufficient time to assure delivery to the
exchange agent before the expiration date. You should not send the letter of transmittal or outstanding notes to
us. You may request your brokers, dealers, commercial banks, trust companies or other nominees to effect the
above transactions for you.

How to Tender if You Are a Beneficial Owner

If you beneficially own outstanding notes that are registered in the name of a broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust
company or other nominee and you wish to tender these notes, you should contact the registered holder promptly and
instruct it to tender on your behalf. If you are a beneficial owner and wish to tender on your own behalf, you must,
prior to completing and executing the letter of transmittal and delivering your outstanding notes, either:

� make appropriate arrangements to register ownership of the outstanding notes in your name; or

� obtain a properly completed bond power from the registered holder of outstanding notes.
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The transfer of registered ownership may take considerable time and may not be completed prior to the expiration
date.

Signatures and Signature Guarantees

You must have signatures on a letter of transmittal or a notice of withdrawal described below guaranteed by a member
firm of a registered national securities exchange or of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., a
commercial bank or trust company having an office or correspondent in the United States, or an �eligible guarantor
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institution� within the meaning of Rule 17Ad-15 under the Exchange Act, that is a member of one of the recognized
signature guarantee programs identified in the letter of transmittal, unless the outstanding notes are tendered:

� by a registered holder who has not completed the box entitled �Special Issuance Instructions� or �Special
Delivery Instructions� on the letter of transmittal; or

� for the account of a member firm of a registered national securities exchange or of the National Association of
Securities Dealers, Inc., a commercial bank or trust company having an office or correspondent in the United
States, or an eligible guarantor institution.

When You Need Endorsements or Bond Powers

If the letter of transmittal is signed by a person other than the registered holder of any outstanding notes, the
outstanding notes must be endorsed or accompanied by a properly completed bond power. The bond power must be
signed by the registered holder as the registered holder�s name appears on the outstanding notes and a member firm of
a registered national securities exchange or of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., a commercial bank
or trust company having an office or correspondent in the United States, or an eligible guarantor institution must
guarantee the signature on the bond power.

If the letter of transmittal or any outstanding notes or bond powers are signed by trustees, executors, administrators,
guardians, attorneys-in-fact, officers of corporations or others acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, those
persons should so indicate when signing. Unless waived by us, they should also submit evidence satisfactory to us of
their authority to deliver the letter of transmittal.

Tendering Through DTC�s Automated Tender Offer Program

The exchange agent and DTC have confirmed that any financial institution that is a participant in DTC�s system may
use DTC�s automated tender offer program to tender. Participants in the program may, instead of physically
completing and signing the letter of transmittal and delivering it to the exchange agent, transmit their acceptance of
the exchange offer electronically. They may do so by causing DTC to transfer the outstanding notes to the exchange
agent in accordance with its procedures for transfer. DTC will then send an agent�s message to the exchange agent.

The term �agent�s message� means a message transmitted by DTC, received by the exchange agent and forming part of
the book-entry confirmation, to the effect that:

� DTC has received an express acknowledgement from a participant in its automated tender offer program that
is tendering outstanding notes that are the subject of such book-entry confirmation;

� such participant has received and agrees to be bound by the terms of the letter of transmittal or, in the case of
an agent�s message relating to guaranteed delivery, that such participant has received and agrees to be bound
by the applicable notice of guaranteed delivery; and

� the agreement may be enforced against such participant.

Determinations Under the Exchange Offer

We will determine in our sole discretion all questions as to the validity, form, eligibility, time of receipt, acceptance of
tendered outstanding notes and withdrawal of tendered outstanding notes. Our determination will be final and binding.
We reserve the absolute right to reject any outstanding notices not properly tendered or any outstanding notes our
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acceptance of which would, in the opinion of our counsel, be unlawful. We also reserve the right to waive any defects,
irregularities or conditions of tender as to particular outstanding notes. Our interpretation of the terms and conditions
of the exchange offer, including the instructions in the letter of transmittal, will be final and binding on all parties.
Unless waived, any defects or irregularities in connection with tenders of outstanding notes must be cured within such
time as we shall determine. Although we intend to notify holders of defects or irregularities with respect to tenders of
outstanding notes, neither we, the exchange agent nor any other person will incur any liability for failure to give such
notification. Tenders of outstanding notes will not be deemed made until such defects or irregularities have been cured
or waived. Any outstanding notes received by the exchange agent that
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are not properly tendered and as to which the defects or irregularities have not been cured or waived will be returned
to the tendering holder, unless otherwise provided in the letter of transmittal, as soon as practicable following the
expiration date.

When We Will Issue New Notes

In all cases, we will issue new notes for outstanding notes that we have accepted for exchange under the exchange
offer only after the exchange agent timely receives:

� outstanding notes or a timely book-entry confirmation of such outstanding notes into the exchange agent�s
account at DTC; and

� a properly completed and duly executed letter of transmittal and all other required documents or a properly
transmitted agent�s message.

Return of Outstanding Notes Not Accepted or Exchanged

If we do not accept any tendered outstanding notes for exchange for any reason described in the terms and conditions
of the exchange offer or if outstanding notes are submitted for a greater principal amount than the holder desires to
exchange, the unaccepted or non-exchanged outstanding notes will be returned without expense to their tendering
holder. In the case of outstanding notes tendered by book-entry transfer into the exchange agent�s account at DTC
according to the procedures described below, such non- exchanged outstanding notes will be credited to an account
maintained with DTC. These actions will occur as promptly as practicable after the expiration or termination of the
exchange offer.

Your Representations to Us

By signing or agreeing to be bound by the letter of transmittal, you will represent to us that, among other things:

� any new notes will be acquired in the ordinary course of your business;

� you have no arrangement or understanding with any person to participate in the distribution of the new notes;

� you are not engaged in and do not intend to engage in the distribution of the new notes;

� if you are a broker-dealer that will receive new notes for your own account in exchange for outstanding notes
that were acquired as a result of market-making or other trading activities, that you will deliver a prospectus,
as required by law, in connection with any resale of such new notes; and

� you are not our �affiliate�, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act, or, if you are our affiliate, that you will
comply with the applicable registration requirements of the Securities Act.

Book-Entry Transfer

The exchange agent will make a request to establish an account with respect to the outstanding notes at DTC for
purposes of the exchange offer promptly after the date of this prospectus. Any financial institution participating in
DTC�s system may make book-entry delivery of outstanding notes by causing DTC to transfer such outstanding notes
into the exchange agent�s account at DTC in accordance with DTC�s procedures for transfer. Holders of outstanding
notes who are unable to deliver confirmation of the book-entry tender of their outstanding notes into the exchange
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agent�s account at DTC or all other documents required by the letter of transmittal to the exchange agent on or prior to
the expiration date must tender their outstanding notes according to the guaranteed delivery procedures described
below.

Guaranteed Delivery Procedures

If you wish to tender your outstanding notes but your outstanding notes are not immediately available or you cannot
deliver your outstanding notes, the letter of transmittal or any other required documents to the exchange
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agent or comply with the applicable procedures under DTC�s automated tender offer program prior to the expiration
date, you may tender if:

� the tender is made through a member firm of a registered national securities exchange or of the National
Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., a commercial bank or trust company having an office or correspondent
in the United States, or an eligible guarantor institution;

� prior to the expiration date, the exchange agent receives from such member firm of a registered national
securities exchange or of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., commercial bank or trust
company having an office or correspondent in the United States, or eligible guarantor institution either a
properly completed and duly executed notice of guaranteed delivery by facsimile transmission, mail or hand
delivery or a properly transmitted agent�s message and notice of guaranteed delivery:

� setting forth your name and address, the registered number(s) of your outstanding notes and the principal
amount of outstanding notes tendered;

� stating that the tender is being made thereby;

� guaranteeing that, within three (3) New York Stock Exchange trading days after the expiration date, the letter
of transmittal or facsimile thereof, together with the outstanding notes or a book-entry confirmation, and any
other documents required by the letter of transmittal will be deposited by the eligible guarantor institution
with the exchange agent; and

� the exchange agent receives such properly completed and executed letter of transmittal or facsimile thereof, as
well as all tendered outstanding notes in proper form for transfer or a book-entry confirmation, and all other
documents required by the letter of transmittal, within three (3) New York Stock Exchange trading days after
the expiration date.

Upon request to the exchange agent, a notice of guaranteed delivery will be sent to you if you wish to tender your
outstanding notes according to the guaranteed delivery procedures described above.

Withdrawal of Tenders

Except as otherwise provided in this prospectus, you may withdraw your tender at any time prior to 5:00 p.m., New
York City time, on the expiration date.

For a withdrawal to be effective:

� the exchange agent must receive a written notice of withdrawal at one of the addresses listed above under
�Prospectus Summary � The Exchange Agent�; or

� you must comply with the appropriate procedures of DTC�s automated tender offer program system.

Any notice of withdrawal must:

� specify the name of the person who tendered the outstanding notes to be withdrawn; and

� identify the outstanding notes to be withdrawn, including the principal amount of such outstanding notes.
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If outstanding notes have been tendered under the procedure for book-entry transfer described above, any notice of
withdrawal must specify the name and number of the account at DTC to be credited with the withdrawn outstanding
notes and otherwise comply with the procedures of DTC.

We will determine all questions as to the validity, form, eligibility and time of receipt of notice of withdrawal, and our
determination shall be final and binding on all parties. We will deem any outstanding notes so withdrawn not to have
been validly tendered for exchange for purposes of the exchange offer.

Any outstanding notes that have been tendered for exchange but that are not exchanged for any reason will be returned
to their holder without cost to the holder or, in the case of outstanding notes tendered by book-entry transfer into the
exchange agent�s account at DTC according to the procedures described above, such outstanding notices will be
credited to an account maintained with DTC for the outstanding notes. This return or crediting will take
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place as soon as practicable after withdrawal, rejection of tender or termination of the exchange offer. You may
retender properly withdrawn outstanding notes by following one of the procedures described under �� Procedures for
Tendering� above at any time on or prior to the expiration date.

Fees and Expenses

We will bear the expenses of soliciting tenders. The principal solicitation is being made by mail; however, we may
make additional solicitation by telegraph, telephone or in person by our officers and regular employees and those of
our affiliates.

We have not retained any dealer-manager in connection with the exchange offer and will not make any payments to
broker-dealers or others soliciting acceptances of the exchange offer. We will, however, pay the exchange agent
reasonable and customary fees for its services and reimburse it for its related reasonable out-of-pocket expenses.

We will pay the cash expenses to be incurred in connection with the exchange offer. They include:

� Commission registration fees;

� fees and expenses of the exchange agent and trustee;

� accounting and legal fees and printing costs; and

� related fees and expenses.

We will pay all transfer taxes, if any, applicable to the exchange of outstanding notes under the exchange offer. The
tendering holder, however, will be required to pay any transfer taxes, whether imposed on the registered holder or any
other person, if:

� certificates representing outstanding notes for principal amounts not tendered or accepted for exchange are to
be delivered to, or are to be issued in the name of, any person other than the registered holder of outstanding
notes tendered;

� tendered outstanding notes are registered in the name of any person other than the person signing the letter of
transmittal; or

� a transfer tax is imposed for any reason other than the exchange of outstanding notes under the exchange
offer.

If satisfactory evidence of payment of any transfer taxes payable by a note holder is not submitted with the letter of
transmittal, the amount of such transfer taxes will be billed directly to that tendering holder.

Transfer Taxes

If you tender your outstanding notes for exchange, you will not be required to pay any transfer taxes. However, if you
instruct us to register new notes in the name of, or request that outstanding notes not tendered or not accepted in the
exchange offer be returned to, a person other than you, in your capacity as the registered tendering holder, you will be
required to pay any applicable transfer tax.

Consequences of Failure to Exchange
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If you do not exchange your outstanding notes for new notes under the exchange offer, you will remain subject to the
existing restrictions on transfer of the outstanding notes.

In general, you may not offer or sell the outstanding notes unless they are registered under the Securities Act or the
offer or sale is exempt from registration under the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. Except as
required by the registration rights agreement, we do not intend to register resales of the outstanding notes under the
Securities Act. Based on interpretations of the Commission staff, you may offer for resale, resell or otherwise transfer
new notes issued in the exchange offer without compliance with the registration and prospectus delivery provisions of
the Securities Act, if (1) you are not our �affiliate� within the meaning of Rule 405 under the Securities
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Act; (2) any new notes will be acquired in the ordinary course of your business; (3) you have no arrangement or
understanding with any person to participate in the distribution of the new notes; and (4) you are not engaged in and
do not intend to engage in the distribution of the new notes. If you tender in the exchange offer with the intention of
participating in any manner in a distribution of the new notes, you:

� cannot rely on the applicable interpretations of the Commission; and

� must comply with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act in connection
with a secondary resale transaction.

Accounting Treatment

We will record the new notes in our accounting records at the same carrying value as the outstanding notes, as
reflected in our accounting records on the date of exchange. Accordingly, we will not recognize any gain or loss for
accounting purposes in connection with the exchange offer.

Other

Participation in the exchange offer is voluntary, and you should carefully consider whether to accept. You are urged to
consult your financial and tax advisors in making your own decision on what action to take.

We may in the future seek to acquire untendered outstanding notes in open market or privately negotiated
transactions, through subsequent exchange offers or otherwise. We have no present plans to acquire any outstanding
notes that are not tendered in the exchange offer or to file a registration statement to permit resales of any untendered
outstanding notes.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE NOTES

General

You can find the definitions of certain terms used in this description under �� Certain Definitions.� In this description, the
word �Company� refers only to Compagnie Générale de Géophysique-Veritas, S.A., and not to any of its
subsidiaries.

The following description is a summary of the material provisions of the Indenture. It does not restate the Indenture in
its entirety. We urge you to read the Indenture because it, and not this description, will define your rights as holders of
the Notes.

The outstanding notes were issued on June 9, 2009 in an aggregate principal amount of U.S.$350,000,000 (the
�Offered Notes�), and an equal aggregate principal amount of new notes (the �Exchange Notes�) may be issued in
exchange for the Offered Notes in connection with the exchange offer contemplated by this prospectus (the
�Exchange Offer�).

The Exchange Notes will be issued and the Offered Notes were issued pursuant to the Indenture dated as of the Issue
Date among the Company, the Guarantors and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, National Association,
as trustee (the �Trustee�). The terms of the Notes include those stated in the Indenture and those made part of the
Indenture by reference to the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended (the �Trust Indenture Act�).

If the Exchange Offer is consummated, holders of Offered Notes who do not exchange those notes for Exchange
Notes in the Exchange Offer will vote together with holders of Exchange Notes for all relevant purposes under the
Indenture. In that regard, the Indenture requires that certain actions by the holders thereunder, including acceleration
following an Event of Default, must be taken, and certain rights must be exercised, by specified minimum percentages
of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding securities issued under the Indenture. In determining whether
holders of the requisite percentage in principal amount have given any notice, consent or waiver or taken any other
action permitted under the Indenture, any Offered Notes that remain outstanding after the Exchange Offer will be
aggregated with the Exchange Notes, and the holders of such Offered Notes and the Exchange Notes will vote
together as a single series for all such purposes. Accordingly, all references herein to specified percentages in
aggregate principal amount of the Notes outstanding shall be deemed to mean, at any time after the Exchange Offer is
consummated, such percentages in aggregate principal amount of Offered Notes and Exchange Notes then
outstanding.

Copies of the Indenture are available for inspection during normal business hours at the office of the Company
referred to under the caption �� Available Information,� at the corporate trust office of the Trustee at 601 Travis Street,
18th Floor, Houston, Texas 77002, and at the specified office of each Paying Agent, including, for so long as the
Notes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, at the specified office of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg.
Holders of the Notes are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by, and are deemed to have notice of, all the provisions
of the Indenture.

Brief Description of the Notes

The Notes:

� are general senior, unsecured obligations of the Company;
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� rank equally in right of payment to all existing and future senior, unsecured indebtedness of the Company,
except for any liabilities preferred by law;

� rank senior in right of payment to all existing and future subordinated indebtedness of the Company;

� are guaranteed on a senior, unsecured basis by certain Subsidiaries of the Company as described below; and

� are effectively subordinated to all existing and future indebtedness of Subsidiaries of the Company that are
not Guarantors.
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Holders of existing and future secured indebtedness of the Company and its Subsidiaries, including loans under the
existing Credit Facilities, will have claims with respect to the assets constituting collateral for such secured
indebtedness that are superior to the claims of the holders of the Notes. Accordingly, the Notes and the Subsidiary
Guarantees are effectively subordinated to claims of secured creditors of the Company and the Guarantors to the
extent of the value of such collateral.

Only certain Subsidiaries of the Company will guarantee the Notes. In the event of a bankruptcy, liquidation or
reorganization of any Subsidiary of the Company that is not a Guarantor, that Subsidiary will pay the holders of its
debt and its trade creditors before it will be able to distribute any of its assets to the Company.

As at September 30, 2009, we had �632.4 million of outstanding indebtedness including accrued interest effectively
senior to the Notes, of which �616.2 million was secured and the Initial Guarantors (as defined under the caption ��
Subsidiary Guarantees � Guarantors�) (excluding their Subsidiaries that are not Guarantors) had �480.4 million of
outstanding indebtedness including accrued interest effectively senior to the guarantees under the Notes, all of which
was secured. Indebtedness of the Initial Guarantors is included in the total Indebtedness of the Company and its
Subsidiaries. In addition, as at September 30, 2009, the Company and its Subsidiaries had availability under their
Credit Facilities of �156.8 million, which if drawn would have been secured. Each of the Initial Guarantors, other than
Sercel Canada, is an obligor under the senior facilities and the French revolving facility. The Indenture permits the
Company and its Subsidiaries (including the Guarantors) to incur additional Indebtedness, including certain additional
secured Indebtedness.

As of the date of the Indenture, all of the Company�s Subsidiaries were Restricted Subsidiaries. Under certain
circumstances, the Company will be able to designate current or future Subsidiaries as Unrestricted Subsidiaries.
Unrestricted Subsidiaries will not be subject to the restrictive covenants set forth in the Indenture and will not
guarantee the Notes.

The Indenture also provides the Company the flexibility of issuing additional Notes in the future in an unlimited
amount; however, any issuance of such additional Notes would be subject to the covenant described under the caption ��
Certain Covenants � Incurrence of Indebtedness and Issuance of Disqualified Stock�. The Offered Notes, the Exchange
Notes and any such additional Notes are collectively referred to as the �Notes� in this �Description of the Notes�.

Any Offered Notes that remain outstanding after the completion of the Exchange Offer, together with the Exchange
Notes issued in connection with the Exchange Offer, will be treated as a single class of securities under the Indenture.

Whenever the covenants or default provisions or definitions in the Indenture refer to an amount in U.S. dollars or
euros, that amount will be deemed to refer to the U.S. Dollar Equivalent or the Euro Equivalent, respectively, of the
amount of any obligation denominated in any other currency or currencies, including composite currencies.

Any other determination of the U.S. Dollar Equivalent or the Euro Equivalent for any purpose under the Indenture
will be determined as of a date of determination as described in the definitions of �U.S. Dollar Equivalent� and �Euro
Equivalent� under �� Certain Definitions� and, in any case, no subsequent change in the U.S. Dollar Equivalent or the
Euro Equivalent after the applicable date of determination will cause such determination to be modified.

Principal, Maturity and Interest

The Exchange Notes will be limited in aggregate principal amount to $350,000,000 and will mature on May 15, 2016
at par. Interest on the Notes will accrue at the rate of 91/2% per annum and will be payable semi-annually in arrears
on May 15 and November 15 of each year, commencing on November 15, 2009, in the case of the Offered Notes, to
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holders of record on the immediately preceding May 1 and November 1. Interest on the Exchange Notes will accrue
from the most recent date to which interest has been paid on the Offered Notes exchanged therefor or, if no interest
has been paid, from the Issue Date. Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year comprised of twelve
30-day months.
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Payment and Paying Agents

Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes will be payable in U.S. dollars at the office or agency of the
Company maintained for such purpose in the continental United States and, subject to any fiscal or other laws and
regulations applicable thereto, at the specified offices of any other Paying Agent appointed by the Company for such
purpose, or, at the option of the Company, payment of interest may be made by check mailed to holders of the Notes
at their respective addresses set forth in the register of holders; provided, however, that all payments with respect to
Notes the holders of which have given wire transfer instructions to the Company or a Paying Agent will be required to
be made by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the accounts specified by the holders thereof. The
principal of the Notes will be payable only upon surrender of any Note at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee or
at the specified offices of any other Paying Agent.

If the due date for payment of the principal in respect of any Note is not a business day at the place in which it is
presented for payment, the holder thereof will not be entitled to payment of the amount due until the next succeeding
business day at such place and will not be entitled to any further interest or other payment in respect of any such
delay.

The Indenture provides that any money deposited with the Trustee or any Paying Agent in trust for the payment of the
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on any Note and remaining unclaimed for two years after such principal,
premium, if any, and interest have become due and payable will be paid to the Company, and will be discharged from
such trust; and the holder of such Note will thereafter, as an unsecured general creditor, look only to the Company for
payment thereof, and all liability of the Trustee or such Paying Agent with respect to such money will thereupon
cease.

The Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee in Dallas, Texas will initially be designated as the Company�s Paying Agent
for payments with respect to the Notes. So long as the Notes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and the
rules of such stock exchange so require, the Company will maintain a Paying Agent in Luxembourg. Dexia Banque
Internationale à Luxembourg, société anonyme will initially be designated as the Company�s Paying Agent in
Luxembourg and as the Company�s agent where Notes may be surrendered for registration of transfer and exchange.
The Company may at any time designate one or more additional Paying Agents or rescind the designation of any
Paying Agent or approve a change in the office through which any Paying Agent acts, except that the Company will
be required to maintain a Paying Agent in the continental United States. The Company will give notice to each holder
of Notes, in the manner described under the caption �� Notices�, of any change in Paying Agents.

Subsidiary Guarantees

General

The obligations of each Guarantor under its Subsidiary Guarantee will be general senior, unsecured obligations of
such Guarantor, ranking pari passu in right of payment with all other senior indebtedness of such Guarantor and
senior in right of payment to any subordinated indebtedness of such Guarantor. The Subsidiary Guarantees will be
joint and several obligations of the Guarantors. Holders of existing and future secured indebtedness of the Guarantors,
including loans under the existing Credit Facilities (including the senior facilities and the French revolving facility)
will have claims with respect to the assets constituting collateral for such secured indebtedness that are superior to the
claims of the holders of the Notes.

The Indenture provides that the obligations of each Guarantor under its Subsidiary Guarantee will be limited to the
maximum amount as will, after giving effect to such maximum amount and all other contingent and fixed liabilities of
such Guarantor that are relevant under bankruptcy, fraudulent conveyance and fraudulent transfer and similar laws,
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and after giving effect to any collections from, rights to receive contribution from or payments made by or on behalf
of any other Guarantor in respect of the obligations of such other Guarantor under its Subsidiary Guarantee, result in
the obligations of such Guarantor under its Subsidiary Guarantee not constituting a fraudulent transfer or conveyance.
In addition, the obligations of each Guarantor under its Subsidiary Guarantee shall be limited to the extent required by
applicable law.
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Guarantors

Only certain Subsidiaries of the Company will guarantee the Notes. On the issue date, the Notes will be fully and
unconditionally guaranteed by Alitheia Resources Inc., CGG Americas, Inc., CGG Canada Services Ltd., CGG
Marine Resources Norge A/S, CGGVeritas Land (U.S.) Inc., CGGVeritas Services Holding B.V., CGGVeritas
Services Holding (U.S.) Inc., CGGVeritas Services (U.S.) Inc., Veritas DGC Asia Pacific Ltd., Veritas Geophysical
(Mexico) LLC, Veritas Investments Inc. and Viking Maritime Inc. (the �Services Guarantors�), and Sercel Inc.,
Sercel Canada Ltd. and Sercel Australia Pty Ltd. (the �Equipment Guarantors�, and together with the Services
Guarantors, the �Initial Guarantors�). For more information about the Initial Guarantors, see Note 31 and Note 32 to
the Company�s consolidated annual financial statements, incorporated by reference in this prospectus. The Company�s
other Subsidiaries, including CGGVeritas Services (Norway), Wavefield-Inseis ASA and their respective subsidiaries,
will not initially guarantee the Notes and, in certain circumstances described below under the caption �� Release,� the
Company may elect to have the Equipment Guarantors released from their Subsidiary Guarantees. In the event of a
bankruptcy, liquidation or reorganization of any Subsidiary of the Company that is not a Guarantor, that Subsidiary
will pay the holders of its debt and its trade creditors before it will be able to distribute any of its assets to the
Company.

The Services Guarantors (excluding their subsidiaries that have not guaranteed the notes) generated, before
consolidation entries, �229.3 million of revenues, �34.8 million of operating income and �23.7 million of net income in
the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009 and held �4,325.2 million of total assets before consolidation entries
as at September 30, 2009. The Services Guarantors generated, before consolidation entries, �585.2 million of revenues,
�184.9 million of operating income and �89.7 million of net income in the year ended December 31, 2008 and held
�4,573.6 million of total assets before consolidation entries as at December 31, 2008.

The Equipment Guarantors (excluding their subsidiaries that have not guaranteed the notes) generated, before
consolidation entries, �171.3 million of revenues, �21.7 million of operating income and �17.7 million of net income in
the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009 and held �288.6 million of total assets before consolidation entries as
at September 30, 2009. The Equipment Guarantors generated, before consolidation entries, �389.8 million of revenues,
�79.9 million of operating income and �55.5 million of net income in the year ended December 31, 2008 and held
�302.4 million of total assets before consolidation entries as at December 31, 2008. The revenues, operating income,
net income and assets of the Equipment Guarantors are included in those of the Initial Guarantors. In the
circumstances described under the caption �Certain Covenants � Guarantees of Certain Indebtedness by Restricted
Subsidiaries� the Indenture will require certain of the Company�s other Subsidiaries to become Guarantors. For more
information about the Initial Guarantors, see �General Information� elsewhere in this prospectus.

The Initial Guarantors represented 23% and 37% of consolidated revenues in the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2009 and in the year ended December 31, 2008, respectively, and 87% of consolidated total assets as at
both September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008.

In addition, a Restricted Subsidiary may become a Guarantor, at its option, by executing a supplemental indenture
providing for a Subsidiary Guarantee in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture.

Release

The Indenture provides that, in the event of (a) a transfer, conveyance, sale or other disposition of any Capital Stock of
Sercel S.A. or any Equipment Guarantor or (b) the issue by Sercel S.A. or any Equipment Guarantor of any Equity
Interests, in either case to any Person other than the Company or a Restricted Subsidiary of the Company, the
Company may elect to have the Equipment Guarantors released and relieved of any obligations under their Subsidiary
Guarantees, provided that the Net Proceeds of such issuance, transfer, conveyance, sale or other disposition are
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applied in accordance with the covenant described below under the caption �� Put Option of Holders � Asset Sales� and
the Equipment Guarantors have no other guarantees of Indebtedness of the Company or any other Guarantors (other
than Permitted Guarantees) then outstanding. If a Restricted Subsidiary has become a Guarantor at its option, it may
thereafter be released and relieved of its obligations under its Subsidiary Guarantee at its option, provided that such
Guarantor has no guarantee of Indebtedness of the Company or any Guarantor (other than Permitted Guarantees) then
outstanding. The Indenture further provides that, for purposes of the covenant
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described under the caption �� Certain Covenants � Incurrence of Indebtedness and Issuance of Disqualified Stock�, the
release of any Subsidiary Guarantee pursuant to provisions described in this paragraph shall be deemed to be an
incurrence by the Restricted Subsidiary whose Subsidiary Guarantee is being released of all Indebtedness then held by
such Restricted Subsidiary.

The Indenture provides that, in the event of a transfer, conveyance, sale or other disposition (including by way of
merger or consolidation) of all or substantially all of the assets or all of the Capital Stock of any Guarantor, then such
Guarantor will be released and relieved of any obligations under its Subsidiary Guarantee and the Indenture, provided
that the Net Proceeds of such transfer, conveyance, sale or other disposition are applied in accordance with the
covenant described below under the caption �� Put Option of Holders � Asset Sales.� A Guarantor will likewise be
released and relieved of its obligations under its Subsidiary Guarantee upon the release of any guarantee of
Indebtedness of the Company that required such Guarantor to guarantee the Notes pursuant to the covenant described
below under the caption �� Certain Covenants � Guarantees of Certain Indebtedness by Restricted Subsidiaries� except a
discharge or release by or as a result of direct payment under such guarantee, provided that the Guarantor has no other
guarantee of Indebtedness of the Company or any Guarantor (other than Permitted Guarantees) then outstanding. The
Indenture also provides that, if the Board of Directors designates a Guarantor to be an Unrestricted Subsidiary, then
such Guarantor will be released and relieved of any obligations under its Subsidiary Guarantee and the Indenture,
provided that such designation is conducted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Indenture.

Merger or Consolidation

The Indenture provides that, for so long as a Restricted Subsidiary provides a Subsidiary Guarantee pursuant to the
terms of the Indenture, such Guarantor may not consolidate with or merge with or into (whether or not such Guarantor
is the surviving Person) another Person (other than the Company or another Guarantor), unless:

(a) the Person formed by or surviving any such consolidation or merger (if other than such Guarantor) shall
execute a Subsidiary Guarantee and deliver an opinion of counsel in accordance with the terms of the
Indenture;

(b) immediately after giving effect to such transaction, no Default or Event of Default exists;

(c) such Guarantor, or any Person formed by or surviving any such consolidation or merger, would have a
Consolidated Net Worth (immediately after giving effect to such transaction) equal to or greater than the
Consolidated Net Worth of such Guarantor immediately preceding the transaction; and

(d) the Company would be permitted by virtue of the Company�s pro forma Consolidated Interest Coverage
Ratio, immediately after giving effect to such transaction, to incur at least �1.00 of additional Indebtedness
pursuant to the Consolidated Interest Coverage Ratio test set forth in the covenant described under the
caption �� Certain Covenants � Incurrence of Indebtedness and Issuance of Disqualified Stock�.

Optional Redemption

At any time prior to May 15, 2013, the Company may redeem the Notes at its option, in whole or in part, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus the Applicable Premium as of, and accrued and
unpaid interest to, the date of redemption.

The Notes will also be redeemable at the Company�s option on or after May 15, 2013, in whole or in part, at the
redemption prices (expressed as percentages of principal amount) set forth below, plus accrued and unpaid interest
thereon to the applicable redemption date, if redeemed during the 12-month period beginning May 15 of the years
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Year Percentage

2013 104.750%
2014 102.375%
2015 and thereafter 100.000%
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Further, prior to May 15, 2012, the Company may redeem on any one or more occasions Notes (including Exchange
Notes) representing up to 35% of the sum of the aggregate principal amount of the Offered Notes plus any other Notes
originally issued under the Indenture after the Issue Date (but excluding for this purpose any Exchange Notes) at a
redemption price of 109.500% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the
redemption date, with the net cash proceeds of one or more Qualified Equity Offerings, provided that (a) Notes
(including Exchange Notes) representing at least 65% of the sum of the aggregate principal amount of the Offered
Notes plus any other Notes originally issued under the Indenture after the Issue Date (but excluding for this purpose
any Exchange Notes) remain outstanding immediately after the occurrence of each such redemption and (b) such
redemption occurs within 90 days of the date of the closing of each such Qualified Equity Offering.

Selection and Notice

If less than all of the Notes are to be redeemed at any time, the Trustee will select Notes for redemption as follows:

(a) if the Notes are listed, in compliance with the requirements of the principal securities exchange on which
the Notes are listed; or

(b) if the Notes are not so listed, on a pro rata basis, by lot or by such method as the Trustee shall deem fair and
appropriate.

No Notes of $100,000 or less shall be redeemed in part.

Notices of redemption shall be mailed by first class mail at least 30 but not more than 60 days before the redemption
date to each holder of Notes to be redeemed at its registered address. For so long as the Notes are listed on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange and for so long as the rules of such exchange require, notices of redemption will be
published once by the Trustee, not less than five business days prior to the redemption date, in a newspaper having
general circulation in Luxembourg, which is expected to be Luxemburger Wort or if such newspaper ceases to be
published or timely publication in it will not be practicable, in such other newspaper as the Trustee deems necessary to
give fair and reasonable notice to the holders of Notes. Notices may also be published on the internet site of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange at www.bourse.lu.

Notices of redemption may not be conditional.

If any Note is to be redeemed in part only, the notice of redemption that relates to that Note shall state the portion of
the principal amount thereof to be redeemed. A new Note in principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the
original Note will be issued in the name of the holder thereof upon surrender of the original Note. Notes called for
redemption become due on the date fixed for redemption. On and after the redemption date, interest will cease to
accrue on Notes or portions of them called for redemption.

Redemption for Taxation Reasons

The Indenture provides that the Company may at any time redeem, in whole but not in part, the outstanding Notes at a
redemption price of 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the date of
redemption if it or any Guarantor has become or would become obligated to pay any Additional Amounts (as defined
under the caption �� Additional Amounts�) in respect of the Notes as a result of:

(a) (1) any change in or amendment to the laws or treaties (or regulations or rulings promulgated thereunder) of
a Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction (as defined under the caption �� Additional Amounts�) or (2) any change in or
amendment to any official position regarding the application or interpretation of such laws, treaties,
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regulations or rulings, which change or amendment is announced or is effective on or after the date of the
Indenture; and

(b) such obligation cannot be avoided by the Company or any such Guarantor taking reasonable measures
available to it.

Notwithstanding the preceding, no notice of redemption will be given earlier than 60 days prior to the earliest date on
which the Company could be obligated to pay such Additional Amounts if a payment in respect of the Notes
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was then due. Prior to giving notice of any such redemption, the Company will deliver to the Trustee (y) an Officers�
Certificate stating that the obligation to pay Additional Amounts cannot be avoided by the Company or any such
Guarantor taking reasonable measures available to it and (z) a written opinion of an independent legal counsel to the
Company to the effect that the circumstances referred to above exist.

Additional Amounts

The Indenture provides that payments made by or on behalf of the Company or any Guarantor under or with respect to
the Notes or the Subsidiary Guarantees will be made free and clear of and without withholding or deduction for or on
account of any present or future tax, duty, levy, interest, assessment or other governmental charge (�Taxes�) imposed
or levied by or on behalf of any jurisdiction in which the Company or any Guarantor (including any successor
entities), is then organized or resident for tax purposes or any political subdivision thereof or therein or any
jurisdiction by or through which payment is made (each, a �Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction�), unless the Company or
any Guarantor (or any Paying Agent) is required to withhold or deduct Taxes under the laws of the Relevant Taxing
Jurisdiction or by the interpretation or administration thereof by the relevant taxing authority. If the Company or any
Guarantor (or any Paying Agent) is so required to withhold or deduct any amount for or on account of Taxes from any
payment made under or with respect to the Notes or the Subsidiary Guarantees, the Company or any such Guarantor
(and each Paying Agent) will pay to each holder of the Notes that are outstanding on the date of the required payment,
such additional amounts (�Additional Amounts�) as may be necessary so that the net amount received by such holder
(including the Additional Amounts) after such withholding or deduction will not be less than the amount such holder
would have received if such Taxes had not been withheld or deducted, provided that no Additional Amounts will be
payable with respect to any Note:

(a) surrendered by the holder thereof for payment of principal more than 30 days after the later of (1) the date
on which such payment first became due and (2) if the full amount payable has not been received by or on
behalf of the relevant holder on or prior to such due date, the date on which, the full amount having been so
received, notice to that effect shall have been given to the holders by the Trustee, except to the extent that
the holder would have been entitled to such Additional Amounts on surrendering such Note for payment on
the last day of the applicable 30-day period;

(b) if any tax, assessment or other governmental charge is imposed or withheld by reason of the failure to
comply by the holder or, if different, the beneficial owner (ayant-droit) of the Note with a request
addressed to such holder or beneficial owner to provide information, documents or other evidence
concerning the nationality, residence, identity or connection with the Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction of such
holder or beneficial owner which is required or imposed by a statute, treaty, regulation or administrative
practice of the Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction as a precondition to exemption from all or part of such tax,
assessment or governmental charge;

(c) held by or on behalf of a holder who is liable for Taxes in respect of such Note by reason of having some
connection with the Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction other than the mere purchase, holding or disposition of
any Note, or the receipt of payments made by or on behalf of the Company or any Guarantor in respect
thereof or any Subsidiary Guarantee, including, without limitation, such holder being or having been a
citizen or resident thereof or being or having been present or engaged in a trade or business therein or
having had a permanent establishment therein;

(d) on account of any estate, inheritance, gift, sale, transfer, personal property or other similar tax, assessment
or other governmental charge;

(e) 
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except in the case of the winding up of the Company or any Guarantor, any Note surrendered for payment
in the Republic of France;

(f) any withholding or deduction imposed on a payment to an individual which is required to be made pursuant
to any law implementing or complying with, or introduced in order to conform to European Council
Directive 2003/48/EC or any other Directive implementing the conclusions of the ECOFIN Council
meeting of November 26-27, 2000 on the taxation of savings income or any agreement between the
European Community and any jurisdiction providing for equivalent measures;
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(g) as a result of any combination of (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) or (f) or with respect to any payment made by or on
behalf of the Company or any Guarantor in respect of any Note or Subsidiary Guarantee to any holder who
is a fiduciary or partnership or other than the sole beneficial owner of such payment to the extent that a
beneficiary or settlor or beneficial owner would not have been entitled to any Additional Amounts had such
beneficiary or settlor or beneficial owner been the holder; or

(h) if any withholding or deduction imposed or levied on a payment to a Luxembourg resident individual is
required to be made pursuant to the Luxembourg law of 23 December 2005.

The Company or any Guarantor will also make such withholding or deduction and remit the full amount deducted or
withheld to the relevant authority in accordance with applicable law. The Company will furnish, within 60 days after
the date the payment of any Taxes is due pursuant to applicable law, to the Trustee, copies of tax receipts (to the
extent received from the relevant tax authorities in the usual course or as generally provided) evidencing that such
payment has been made by the Company or any Guarantor. The Trustee will make such evidence available to the
holders upon request.

At least 30 days prior to each date on which any payment under or with respect to the Notes or the Subsidiary
Guarantees is due and payable, if the Company or any Guarantor becomes obligated to pay Additional Amounts with
respect to such payment, the Company will deliver to each Paying Agent an Officers� Certificate stating the fact that
such Additional Amounts will be payable, and the amount so payable and will set forth such other information as
necessary to enable such Paying Agent to pay such Additional Amounts to the holders of the Notes on the payment
date. Whenever in the Indenture or this prospectus there is mentioned, in any context, (a) the payment of principal
(and premium, if any), (b) purchase prices in connection with a purchase of the Notes, (c) interest or (d) any other
amount payable on or with respect to any of the Notes or the Subsidiary Guarantees, such mention is deemed to
include mention of the payment of Additional Amounts provided for in this section to the extent, that, in such context,
Additional Amounts are, were or would be payable in respect thereof.

The Company or a Guarantor, as the case may be, will pay any present or future stamp, court or documentary taxes or
any other excise or property taxes, charges or similar levies that arise in the United States, the Republic of France or in
any jurisdiction in which a Paying Agent is located from the initial issue or registration of the Notes or on the
enforcement of any payments with respect to the Notes or any Subsidiary Guarantee.

The obligations of the Company or any Guarantor described in this �� Additional Amounts� section will survive the
satisfaction and discharge of the Indenture.

Mandatory Redemption

Except as set forth below under the caption �� Put Option of Holders�, the Company will not be required to make
mandatory redemption or sinking fund payments with respect to the Notes.

Put Option of Holders

Change of Control

The Indenture provides that, upon the occurrence of a Change of Control, each holder will have the right to require the
Company to purchase all or any portion (equal to $100,000 or an integral multiple of $1,000 in excess thereof) of the
holder�s Notes, pursuant to the offer described below (the �Change of Control Offer�), at a purchase price in cash
equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the date of
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purchase (the �Change of Control Payment�).

Within 30 days following a Change of Control, the Company will give notice to each holder of Notes, in the manner
described under the caption �� Notices�, and the Trustee describing the transaction that constitutes the Change of Control
and offering to purchase the Notes on the date specified in such notice, which date shall be no earlier than 30 days and
no later than 60 days from the date such notice is given (the �Change of Control Payment Date�), pursuant to the
procedures required by the Indenture and described in such notice. The Company will comply with the requirements
of Rule 14e-1 under the Exchange Act and any other securities laws and regulations to the extent such laws and
regulations are applicable in connection with the purchase of the Notes as a result of a
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Change of Control. To the extent that the provisions of any securities laws or regulations conflict with the Change of
Control provisions of the Indenture, the Company will comply with the applicable securities laws and regulations and
will not be deemed to have breached its obligations under the Change of Control provisions of the Indenture by virtue
of such conflict.

On or before the Change of Control Payment Date, the Company will, to the extent lawful:

(a) accept for payment all Notes or portions thereof properly tendered pursuant to the Change of Control Offer;

(b) deposit with the Paying Agent an amount equal to the Change of Control Payment in respect of all Notes or
portions thereof so tendered; and

(c) deliver or cause to be delivered to the Trustee the Notes so accepted together with an Officers� Certificate
stating the aggregate principal amount of the Notes or portions thereof being purchased by the Company.

The Paying Agent will promptly deliver to each holder of the Notes so tendered the Change of Control Payment for
such Notes, and the Trustee will promptly authenticate and mail (or cause to be transferred by book entry) to each
holder a new Note equal in principal amount to any unpurchased portion of the Notes surrendered, if any; provided,
however, that each such new Note will be in a principal amount of $100,000 or an integral multiple of $1,000 in
excess thereof. The Company will publicly announce the results of the Change of Control Offer on or as soon as
practicable after the Change of Control Payment Date.

Except as described above with respect to a Change of Control, the Indenture does not contain provisions that permit
the holders of the Notes to require that the Company purchase or redeem the Notes in the event of a takeover,
recapitalization or similar transaction. In addition, the Company could enter into certain transactions, including
acquisitions, refinancings or other recapitalizations, that could affect the Company�s capital structure or the value of
the Notes, but that would not constitute a Change of Control. The occurrence of a Change of Control may result in a
default under the agreement governing other senior indebtedness of the Company including the term loan facility,
giving the lenders thereunder the right to require the Company to repay all outstanding obligations thereunder,
possibly limiting the Company�s ability to purchase the Notes upon a Change of Control. The Company�s ability to
purchase the Notes following a Change of Control may also be limited by the Company�s then existing financial
resources. Should a Change of Control occur at a time when the Company lacks sufficient funds to make the Change
of Control Payments or is prohibited from purchasing the Notes under instruments governing other senior
indebtedness (and the Company is unable to obtain the consent of the holders of such senior indebtedness or to prepay
such senior indebtedness), an Event of Default would occur under the Indenture. See �� Events of Default and
Remedies�. See �Risk Factors � Risks Related to the Notes�Although the occurrence of specific change of control events
affecting us will permit you to require us to repurchase your notes, we may not be able to repurchase your notes�.

The provisions described above that require the Company to make a Change of Control Offer following a Change of
Control will be applicable regardless of whether any other provisions of the Indenture are applicable. The Company
will not be required to make a Change of Control Offer following a Change of Control if a third party makes the
Change of Control Offer in the manner, at the times and otherwise in compliance with the requirements set forth in the
Indenture applicable to a Change of Control Offer made by the Company and purchases all Notes validly tendered and
not withdrawn under such Change of Control Offer.

A �Change of Control� will be deemed to have occurred upon the occurrence of any of the following:

(a) the sale, lease, transfer, conveyance or other disposition (other than by merger or consolidation), in one or a
series of related transactions, of all or substantially all of the properties or assets of the Company and its
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(b) the adoption, by holders of Capital Stock of the Company, of a voluntary plan relating to the liquidation or
dissolution of the Company;
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(c) the consummation of any transaction (including, without limitation, any merger or consolidation) the result
of which is that any �person� (as such term is used in Section 13(d) (3) of the Exchange Act) becomes the
�beneficial owner� (as such term is defined in Rule 13d-3 and Rule 13d-5 under the Exchange Act), directly
or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, of more than 50% of the voting power of the outstanding
Voting Stock of the Company; or

(d) the first day on which more than a majority of the members of the Board of Directors are not Continuing
Directors;

provided, however, that a transaction in which the Company becomes a Subsidiary of another Person (other than a
Person that is an individual) shall not constitute a Change of Control if (1) the shareholders of the Company
immediately prior to such transaction �beneficially own� (as such term is defined in Rule 13d-3 and Rule 13d-5 under
the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, at least a majority of the voting power of
the outstanding Voting Stock of such other Person immediately following the consummation of such transaction and
(2) immediately following the consummation of such transaction, no �person� (as such term is defined above), other
than such other Person (but including the holders of the Equity Interests of such other Person), �beneficially owns� (as
such term is defined above), directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, more than 50% of the voting
power of the outstanding Voting Stock of the Company.

�Continuing Directors� means, as of any date of determination, any member of the Board of Directors who (a) was a
member of the Board of Directors on the Issue Date or (b) was nominated for election to the Board of Directors with
the approval of, or whose election to the Board of Directors was ratified by, at least a majority of the members of the
Board of Directors who were members of the Board of Directors on the Issue Date or who were so elected to the
Board of Directors thereafter.

The definition of Change of Control includes an event by which the Company sells, leases, transfers, conveys or
otherwise disposes of all or substantially all of the properties or assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a
whole. Although there is a limited body of case law interpreting the phrase �substantially all,� there is no precise
established definition of the phrase under applicable law. Accordingly, the ability of a holder of Notes to require the
Company to repurchase such Notes as a result of a sale, lease, transfer, conveyance or other disposition of less than all
of the properties or assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, may be uncertain.

Asset Sales

The Indenture provides that the Company will not, and will not permit any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to,
consummate an Asset Sale (excluding for this purpose an Event of Loss) unless:

(a) the Company or such Restricted Subsidiary, as the case may be, receives consideration at the time of such
Asset Sale at least equal to the fair market value (as determined in accordance with the definition of such
term set out below under the caption �� Certain Definitions�, the results of which determination shall be set
forth in an Officers� Certificate delivered to the Trustee) of the assets or Equity Interests issued or sold or
otherwise disposed of; and

(b) at least 75% of the consideration therefor received by the Company or such Restricted Subsidiary is in the
form of cash or Cash Equivalents;

provided, however, that the amount of (1) any liabilities (as shown on the Company�s or such Restricted Subsidiary�s
most recent balance sheet) of the Company or such Restricted Subsidiary (other than contingent liabilities and

Edgar Filing: CGGVERITAS SERVICES HOLDING (U.S.) INC. - Form 424B3

Table of Contents 116



liabilities that are by their terms subordinated to the Notes or the Subsidiary Guarantee) that are assumed by the
transferee of any such assets pursuant to a customary novation agreement that releases the Company or such
Restricted Subsidiary from further liability and (2) any securities, notes or other obligations received by the Company
or such Restricted Subsidiary from such transferee that are converted within 180 days by the Company or such
Restricted Subsidiary into cash (to the extent of the cash received in that conversion) shall be deemed to be cash for
purposes of this provision.

Within 365 days after the receipt of any Net Proceeds from an Asset Sale (including, without limitation, any Event of
Loss), the Company or any such Restricted Subsidiary may apply such Net Proceeds to (a) permanently
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repay the principal of any Indebtedness of the Company ranking in right of payment at least pari passu with the Notes
or any Indebtedness of such Restricted Subsidiary (provided that if such Restricted Subsidiary is a Guarantor, then
such Indebtedness shall rank in right of payment at least pari passu with its Subsidiary Guarantee), (b) make capital
expenditures in respect of Strategic Assets or (c) acquire (including by way of a purchase of assets or a majority of the
Voting Stock of a Person, by merger, by consolidation or otherwise) Strategic Assets, provided that if the Company or
such Restricted Subsidiary enters into a binding agreement to acquire such Strategic Assets within such 365-day
period, but the consummation of the transactions under such agreement has not occurred within such 365-day period
and such agreement has not been terminated, then such 365-day period will be extended by 90 days to permit such
consummation. If such consummation does not occur, or such agreement is terminated within such 90-day extension
period, then the Company may apply, or cause such Restricted Subsidiary to apply, within 90 days after the end of
such initial 90-day extension period or the effective date of such termination, whichever is earlier, such Net Proceeds
as provided in clauses (a) through (c) of this paragraph. Pending the final application of any such Net Proceeds, the
Company or any such Restricted Subsidiary may temporarily reduce outstanding revolving credit borrowings or
otherwise invest such Net Proceeds in any manner that is not prohibited by the Indenture. Any Net Proceeds from
Asset Sales that are not applied or invested as provided in clauses (a) through (c) of this paragraph will be deemed to
constitute �Excess Proceeds.�

When the aggregate amount of Excess Proceeds exceeds �10,000,000, the Company will be required to make an offer
to all holders of the Notes (an �Asset Sale Offer�) to purchase the maximum principal amount of the Notes that may
be purchased out of the Excess Proceeds at an offer price in cash in an amount equal to 100% of the principal amount
thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the date of purchase, in accordance with the procedures set forth in
the Indenture; provided, however, that, if the Company is required to apply such Excess Proceeds to purchase, or to
offer to purchase, any Pari Passu Indebtedness, the Company shall only be required to offer to purchase the maximum
principal amount of the Notes that may be purchased out of the amount of such Excess Proceeds multiplied by a
fraction, the numerator of which is the aggregate principal amount of the Notes outstanding and the denominator of
which is the aggregate principal amount of the Notes outstanding plus the aggregate principal amount of Pari Passu
Indebtedness outstanding. To the extent that the aggregate principal amount of the Notes tendered pursuant to an
Asset Sale Offer is less than the amount that the Company is required to purchase, the Company may use any
remaining Excess Proceeds for general corporate purposes in any manner not prohibited by the Indenture. If the
aggregate principal amount of the Notes surrendered by holders thereof exceeds the amount that the Company is
required to purchase, the Trustee shall select the Notes to be purchased on a pro rata basis. Upon completion of such
offer to purchase, the amount of Excess Proceeds shall be reset at zero.

The Company will not, and will not permit any Restricted Subsidiary to, enter into or suffer to exist any agreement
(other than any agreement governing the Company�s or any Restricted Subsidiary�s Credit Facilities) that would place
any restriction of any kind (other than pursuant to law or regulation) on the ability of the Company to make an Asset
Sale Offer. The agreements governing the Company�s existing Credit Facilities contain and the agreements governing
the Company�s future Credit Facilities may contain prohibitions of certain events, including events that would
constitute a Change of Control or an Asset Sale. In addition, the exercise by the holders of Notes of their right to
require the Company to repurchase the Notes upon a Change of Control or an Asset Sale could cause a default under
these other agreements, even if the Change of Control or Asset Sale itself does not, due to the financial effect of such
repurchases on the Company. Finally, the Company�s ability to pay cash to the holders of Notes upon a repurchase
may be limited by the Company�s then existing financial resources.

The Company will comply with the requirements of Rule 14e-1 under the Exchange Act and any other securities laws
and regulations to the extent such laws and regulations are applicable in connection with the purchase of the Notes as
a result of an Asset Sale Offer. To the extent that the provisions of any securities laws or regulations conflict with the
Asset Sale provisions of the Indenture, the Company will comply with the applicable securities laws and regulations
and will not be deemed to have breached its obligations under the Asset Sale provisions of the Indenture by virtue of
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Certain Covenants

Restricted Payments

The Indenture provides that the Company will not, and will not permit any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, directly or
indirectly:

(a) purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire or retire for value (including, without limitation, in connection with
any merger or consolidation involving the Company) any Equity Interests of the Company or any of its
Restricted Subsidiaries (other than any such Equity Interests owned by the Company or any Wholly Owned
Restricted Subsidiary of the Company);

(b) make any payment on or with respect to, or purchase, redeem, defease or otherwise acquire or retire for
value, any Indebtedness that is subordinated in right of payment to the Notes or the Subsidiary Guarantees,
as the case may be, except a payment of interest or principal at Stated Maturity; or

(c) make any Restricted Investment,

(all such payments and other actions set forth in clauses (a) through (c) above being collectively referred to as
�Restricted Payments�), unless, at the time of and after giving effect to such Restricted Payment:

(1) no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing or would occur as a consequence
thereof;

(2) the Company would, at the time of such Restricted Payment and after giving pro forma effect thereto as if
such Restricted Payment had been made at the beginning of the applicable four-quarter period, have been
permitted to incur at least �1.00 of additional Indebtedness pursuant to the Consolidated Interest Coverage
Ratio test set forth in the first paragraph of the covenant described under the caption �� Incurrence of
Indebtedness and Issuance of Disqualified Stock�; and

(3) such Restricted Payment, together with (x) the aggregate amount of all other Restricted Payments made by
the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries after the Reference Date (excluding Restricted Payments
permitted by clauses (b) through (e) and, to the extent deducted in computing Consolidated Net Income,
(f) and (g) of the next succeeding paragraph), and (y) the aggregate amount of all dividends and other
payments or distributions paid subsequent to the Reference Date on account of the Company�s or any of its
Restricted Subsidiaries� Equity Interests (including, without limitation, any such payment in connection with
any merger or consolidation involving the Company) or to the direct or indirect holders of the Company�s
Equity Interests in their capacity as such (other than (i) dividends or distributions payable in Equity
Interests (other than Disqualified Stock) of the Company, (ii) dividends or distributions payable to the
Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries or (iii) if the Restricted Subsidiary making such dividend is
not a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary, dividends to its shareholders on a pro rata basis), is less than
the sum (without duplication) of the following:

(A) 50% of the cumulative Consolidated Net Income of the Company for the period (taken as one
accounting period) from January 1, 2005 to the end of the Company�s most recently ended fiscal
quarter for which internal financial statements are available at the time of such Restricted Payment
(or, if such Consolidated Net Income for such period is a deficit, less 100% of such deficit); plus

(B) 
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100% of the aggregate of (1) the net cash proceeds and (2) the fair market value of Strategic Assets
transferred or conveyed to the Company (as valued at the time of transfer or conveyance to the
Company, and as determined in the manner contemplated by the definition of the term �fair market
value�), in each case received by the Company since the Reference Date as a contribution to its
common equity capital or from the issue or sale of Equity Interests of the Company (other than
Disqualified Stock) or from the issuance or sale of Disqualified Stock or debt securities of the
Company that have been converted into, or exchanged or redeemed for, such Equity Interests (other
than any such Equity Interests, Disqualified Stock or convertible debt securities sold to a
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Restricted Subsidiary of the Company and other than Disqualified Stock or convertible debt
securities that have been converted into, or exchanged or redeemed for, Disqualified Stock); plus

(C) to the extent that any Restricted Investment that was made after the Reference Date is sold for cash
or otherwise liquidated or repaid for cash, the cash return of capital with respect to such Restricted
Investment (less the cost of disposition, if any); plus

(D) if any Unrestricted Subsidiary is redesignated as a Restricted Subsidiary, the lesser of (1) an amount
equal to the fair market value of the Investments previously made by the Company and its Restricted
Subsidiaries in such Subsidiary as of the date of redesignation and (2) the amount of such
Investments.

The preceding provisions will not prohibit any of the following:

(a) the payment of any dividend within 60 days after the date of declaration thereof if at said date of
declaration such payment would have complied with the provisions of the Indenture;

(b) the redemption, repurchase, retirement, defeasance or other acquisition of any subordinated Indebtedness of
the Company or any Guarantor or any Equity Interests of the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries
in exchange for, or out of the net cash proceeds of the substantially concurrent sale (other than to a
Restricted Subsidiary of the Company) of, other Equity Interests of the Company (other than any
Disqualified Stock), provided that the amount of any such net cash proceeds that are utilized for any such
redemption, purchase, retirement, defeasance or other acquisition shall be excluded from clause (3)(B) of
the preceding paragraph;

(c) the defeasance, redemption, purchase, retirement or other acquisition of subordinated Indebtedness of the
Company or any Guarantor with the net cash proceeds from an incurrence of, or in exchange for, Permitted
Refinancing Indebtedness;

(d) the payment of any dividend or distribution by a Restricted Subsidiary of the Company to the Company or
any of its Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiaries;

(e) repurchases of Equity Interests deemed to occur upon exercise of stock options, if such Equity Interests
represent a portion of the exercise price of such stock options;

(f) so long as no Default has occurred and is continuing, the repurchase or other acquisition for value of any
Equity Interests of the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary of the Company for allocation (as a free
allocation or otherwise) to directors, officers and employees of the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries
not in excess of �2,500,000 in any 12-month period;

(g) so long as no Default has occurred and is continuing, the repurchase, redemption or other acquisition or
retirement for value of any Equity Interests of the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary of the Company
held by any member of the Company�s (or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries�) management pursuant to any
management equity subscription agreement or stock option agreement in effect as of the Issue Date;
provided that the aggregate price paid for all such repurchased, redeemed, acquired or retired Equity
Interests shall not exceed �1,000,000 in any 12-month period;

(h) loans or advances in the ordinary course of business to Affiliates or Persons with which the Company or a
Subsidiary may have contractual arrangements in any jurisdiction reasonably necessary to be made in
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connection with conducting the business of the Company or a Subsidiary in such jurisdiction in a form that
is customary to address foreign investment regulation or practice in such jurisdiction, in an aggregate
amount not to exceed �2,000,000 outstanding at any one time;

(i) so long as no Default has occurred and is continuing, advances constituting Investments or loans to
directors, officers and employees of the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries in the ordinary course of
business for bona fide business purposes not in excess of �1,000,000 at any one time outstanding; and

(j) other Restricted Payments not to exceed �15,000,000 in the aggregate.
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The amount of all Restricted Payments (other than cash) shall be the fair market value on the date of the Restricted
Payment of the asset(s) or securities proposed to be transferred or issued by the Company or such Restricted
Subsidiary, as the case may be, pursuant to the Restricted Payment. The fair market value of any non-cash Restricted
Payment shall be determined in the manner contemplated by the definition of the term �fair market value�, and the
results of such determination shall be evidenced by an Officers� Certificate delivered to the Trustee. Not later than 10
business days following the date of making any Restricted Payment (other than a Restricted Payment permitted by
clauses (b) through (d) of the preceding paragraph), the Company shall deliver to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate
stating that such Restricted Payment is permitted and setting forth the basis upon which the calculations required by
the covenant �Restricted Payments� were computed.

Incurrence of Indebtedness and Issuance of Disqualified Stock

The Indenture provides that the Company will not, and will not permit any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, directly or
indirectly, create, incur, issue, assume, guarantee or otherwise become directly or indirectly liable, contingently or
otherwise, with respect to (collectively, �incur� or an �incurrence�) any Indebtedness (including, without limitation,
any Acquired Indebtedness) and that the Company will not issue any Disqualified Stock and will not permit any of its
Restricted Subsidiaries to issue any shares of preferred stock; provided, however, that the Company or any Guarantor
may incur Indebtedness or issue Disqualified Stock, and any Restricted Subsidiary may incur Acquired Indebtedness,
in each case if the Consolidated Interest Coverage Ratio for the Company�s most recently ended four full fiscal
quarters for which internal financial statements are available immediately preceding the date on which such additional
Indebtedness is incurred or such Disqualified Stock is issued would have been at least 3.0 to 1.0, determined on a pro
forma basis (including a pro forma application of the net proceeds therefrom), as if the additional Indebtedness or
Disqualified Stock had been issued or incurred, as the case may be, at the beginning of such four-quarter period.

The preceding paragraph will not apply to the incurrence by the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries of any
of the following Indebtedness:

(a) Indebtedness under Credit Facilities in an aggregate principal amount at any one time outstanding not to
exceed the greater of (x) �125,000,000, plus any fees, premiums, expenses (including costs of collection),
indemnities and similar amounts payable in connection with such Indebtedness, and less any amounts
derived from Asset Sales and applied to the permanent reduction of Indebtedness under Credit Facilities in
accordance with the covenant described under the caption �� Put Option of Holders � Asset Sales� and (y) 10%
of the Company�s Consolidated Total Assets;

(b) Existing Indebtedness;

(c) Hedging Obligations;

(d) Indebtedness represented by the Offered Notes, the Exchange Notes issued in connection with the
Exchange Offer or the Subsidiary Guarantees;

(e) intercompany Indebtedness between or among the Company and any of its Wholly Owned Restricted
Subsidiaries, provided that (1) if the Company or any Guarantor is the obligor on such Indebtedness, then
the Indebtedness must be unsecured and expressly subordinated to the prior payment in full in cash of all of
the Company�s obligations with respect to the Notes or such Guarantor�s obligations under its Subsidiary
Guarantee, as the case may be, and (2) any subsequent issuance or transfer of Equity Interests that results in
any such Indebtedness being held by a Person other than the Company or a Wholly Owned Restricted
Subsidiary of the Company, or any sale or other transfer of any such Indebtedness to a Person that is neither
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the Company nor a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary of the Company, shall be deemed, in each case, to
constitute an incurrence of such Indebtedness by the Company or such Restricted Subsidiary, as the case
may be, as of the date of such issuance, sale or other transfer that is not permitted by this clause (e);

(f) Indebtedness in respect of bid, performance or surety bonds issued for the account of the Company or any
of its Restricted Subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business, including guarantees or obligations
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of the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries with respect to letters of credit supporting such bid,
performance or surety obligations (in each case other than for an obligation for money borrowed);

(g) Indebtedness represented by Capital Lease Obligations, mortgage financings or purchase money obligations
(or any guarantee thereof or indemnity with respect thereto), in each case, incurred for the purpose of
financing all or any part of the purchase price or cost of construction or improvement of property, plant or
equipment used in the business of the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries, in an aggregate
principal amount, including all Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness incurred to refund, refinance or replace
any Indebtedness incurred pursuant to this clause (g), not to exceed �20,000,000 at any time outstanding;

(h) the guarantee by the Company of Indebtedness of any of its Restricted Subsidiaries or by any Restricted
Subsidiary of Indebtedness of the Company or another Restricted Subsidiary, in each case, that was
permitted to be incurred by another provision of this covenant; provided that if the Indebtedness being
guaranteed is subordinated in right of payment to the Notes or a Subsidiary Guarantee then the guarantee
shall be subordinated to the same extent as the Indebtedness guaranteed;

(i) intercompany Indebtedness between or among the Company and any of its Restricted Subsidiaries incurred
in the ordinary course of business in connection with cash pooling or other cash management arrangements;

(j) Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness incurred in exchange for, or the net proceeds of which are used to
extend, refinance, renew, replace, defease or refund Indebtedness incurred pursuant to the first paragraph
and clauses (b), (d), (g) and (j) of the second paragraph of this covenant;

(k) Indebtedness of Restricted Subsidiaries of the Company (other than Guarantors) in an aggregate principal
amount not to exceed 5% of the Company�s Consolidated Total Assets minus the sum of all Indebtedness of
Restricted Subsidiaries of the Company (other than Guarantors) then outstanding; and

(l) any additional Indebtedness of the Company or any Guarantor in an aggregate principal amount not in
excess of �25,000,000 at any one time outstanding and any guarantee thereof.

The Indenture also provides that the Company will not, and will not permit any Guarantor to, directly or indirectly,
incur any Indebtedness which by its terms (or by the terms of any agreement governing such Indebtedness) is
subordinated to any other Indebtedness of the Company or of such Guarantor, as the case may be, unless such
Indebtedness is also by its terms (or by the terms of any agreement governing such Indebtedness) made expressly
subordinate to the Notes or the Subsidiary Guarantees of such Guarantor, as the case may be, to the same extent and in
the same manner as such Indebtedness is subordinated pursuant to subordination provisions that are most favorable to
the holders of any other Indebtedness of the Company or of such Guarantor, as the case may be; provided, however,
that no Indebtedness shall be deemed to be contractually subordinated in right of payment to any other Indebtedness
solely by virtue of being unsecured.

For purposes of determining compliance with this �Incurrence of Indebtedness and Issuance of Disqualified Stock�
covenant, if an item of proposed Indebtedness meets the criteria of more than one of the categories of Indebtedness
described in clauses (a) through (l) of the second paragraph, or is entitled to be incurred pursuant to the first
paragraph, of this covenant, the Company will be permitted to classify such item of Indebtedness on the date of its
incurrence, or later reclassify all or a portion of such item of Indebtedness, in any manner that complies with this
covenant.

Liens
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The Indenture provides that the Company will not, and will not permit any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, directly or
indirectly, create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any Lien on any property or asset now owned or hereafter acquired,
or any income or profits therefrom, except Permitted Liens, to secure (a) any Indebtedness of the Company or such
Restricted Subsidiary (if it is not also a Guarantor), unless prior to, or contemporaneously therewith, the Notes are
equally and ratably secured, or (b) any Indebtedness of any Guarantor, unless prior to, or contemporaneously
therewith, the Subsidiary Guarantee of such Guarantor is equally and ratably secured; provided,
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however, that if such Indebtedness is expressly subordinated to the Notes or any Subsidiary Guarantee, the Lien
securing such Indebtedness will be subordinated and junior to the Lien securing the Notes or the Subsidiary
Guarantee, as the case may be, with the same relative priority as such Indebtedness has with respect to the Notes or
the Subsidiary Guarantee. The incurrence of secured Indebtedness by the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries is
subject to further limitations on the incurrence of Indebtedness as described under the caption �� Incurrence of
Indebtedness and Issuance of Disqualified Stock�.

Sale-and-Leaseback Transactions

The Indenture provides that the Company will not, and will not permit any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, enter into
any sale-and-leaseback transaction; provided, however, that the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary, as applicable,
may enter into a sale-and-leaseback transaction if:

(a) the Company or such Restricted Subsidiary could have (1) incurred Indebtedness in an amount equal to the
Attributable Indebtedness relating to such sale-and-leaseback transaction pursuant to the Consolidated
Interest Coverage Ratio test set forth in the first paragraph of the covenant described above under the
caption �� Incurrence of Indebtedness and Issuance of Disqualified Stock� and (2) incurred a Lien to secure
such Indebtedness pursuant to the covenant described above under the caption �� Liens�;

(b) the gross cash proceeds of such sale-and-leaseback transaction are at least equal to the fair market value (as
determined in accordance with the definition of such term, the results of which determination shall be set
forth in an Officers� Certificate delivered to the Trustee) of the property that is the subject of such sale-and-
leaseback transaction; and

(c) the transfer of assets in such sale-and-leaseback transaction is permitted by, and the Company applies the
proceeds of such transaction in compliance with, the covenant described above under the caption �� Put
Option of Holders � Asset Sales�, if applicable.

Issuances and Sales of Capital Stock of Restricted Subsidiaries

The Indenture provides that the Company (a) will not, and will not permit any Restricted Subsidiary of the Company
to, transfer, convey, sell or otherwise dispose of any Capital Stock of any Restricted Subsidiary of the Company to
any Person other than the Company or a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary of the Company, and (b) will not
permit any Restricted Subsidiary of the Company to issue any of its Equity Interests to any Person other than to the
Company or a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary of the Company, (except, in the case of both clauses (a) and
(b) above, as required in the manner described in clause (b) under the definition of �Wholly Owned Restricted
Subsidiary�, provided that the business and management of the Restricted Subsidiary is, by contract or otherwise,
controlled by the Company), unless:

(a) the Net Proceeds from such issuance, transfer, conveyance, sale or other disposition are applied in
accordance with the covenant described above under the caption �� Put Option of Holders � Asset Sales� and

(b) immediately after giving effect to such transfer, conveyance, sale or other disposition, such Restricted
Subsidiary either continues to be a Restricted Subsidiary or, if such Restricted Subsidiary would no longer
constitute a Restricted Subsidiary, any remaining Investment in such Restricted Subsidiary would have
been permitted to be made under the covenant described above under the caption �� Restricted Payments� if
made on the date of such transfer, conveyance, sale or other disposition.
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For purposes of this covenant, the creation or perfection of a Lien on any Capital Stock of a Restricted Subsidiary of
the Company to secure any Indebtedness of the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries will not be deemed to
be a disposition of such Capital Stock, provided that any sale by the secured party of such Capital Stock following
foreclosure of its Lien will be subject to this covenant.
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Dividend and Other Payment Restrictions Affecting Subsidiaries

The Indenture provides that the Company will not, and will not permit any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, directly or
indirectly, create or otherwise cause or suffer to exist or become effective any consensual encumbrance or restriction
on the ability of any Restricted Subsidiary to do any of the following:

(a) (1) pay dividends or make any other distributions to the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries on
its Capital Stock or (2) pay any Indebtedness owed to the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries;

(b) make loans or advances to the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries; or

(c) transfer any of its properties or assets to the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries,

except for such encumbrances or restrictions existing under or by reason of:

(1) agreements governing Credit Facilities or Existing Indebtedness, and any amendments, modifications,
restatements, renewals, increases, supplements, refundings, replacements or refinancings thereof, provided
that such agreements and amendments, modifications, restatements, renewals, increases, supplements,
refundings, replacements or refinancings are not materially less favorable to the holders of the Notes, taken
as a whole, with respect to such dividend and other payment restrictions, than those contained, in the case
of Credit Facilities, in agreements governing Credit Facilities or, in the case of Existing Indebtedness, in
agreements governing such Existing Indebtedness, in either case as in effect on the date of the Indenture;

(2) the Indenture, the Notes and the Subsidiary Guarantees;

(3) any agreement for the sale or other disposition of Equity Interests in a Restricted Subsidiary that restricts
distributions by that Restricted Subsidiary pending the sale or other disposition;

(4) any instrument governing Indebtedness or Capital Stock of a Person acquired by the Company or any of its
Restricted Subsidiaries as in effect at the time of such acquisition (except to the extent such Indebtedness
was incurred in connection with or in contemplation of such acquisition), which encumbrance or restriction
is not applicable to any Person or the properties or assets of any Person, other than the Person, or the
property or assets of the Person, so acquired, provided that, in the case of Indebtedness, such Indebtedness
was permitted by the terms of the Indenture to be incurred;

(5) by reason of customary provisions restricting the subletting or assignment of any lease or the transfer of
copyrighted or patented materials;

(6) purchase money obligations for property acquired in the ordinary course of business that impose
restrictions of the nature described in clause (c) above on the property so acquired;

(7) customary provisions in agreements for the sale of property or assets;

(8) customary provisions in agreements that restrict the assignment of such agreements or rights thereunder;

(9) provisions with respect to the disposition or distribution of assets or property in any joint venture
agreement, assets sale agreement, stock sale agreement or other similar agreement in each case entered into
in the ordinary course of business, but in each case only to the extent such encumbrance or restriction
relates to the transfer of the property, or encumbers or restricts the assets, subject to such agreement;
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(10) restrictions on cash or other deposits or net worth imposed by customers under contracts entered into in the
ordinary course of business;

(11) Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness, provided that the encumbrances and restrictions contained in the
agreements governing such Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness are not materially less favorable to the
holders of the Notes, taken as a whole, than those contained in the agreements governing the Indebtedness
being refinanced;
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(12) any Liens not prohibited by the covenant described above under the caption �� Liens� that limit the right of the
debtor to dispose of the assets subject to such Liens; or

(13) applicable law.

Transactions with Affiliates

The Indenture provides that the Company will not, and will not permit any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, make any
payment to, or sell, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of any of its properties or assets to, or purchase any property or
assets from, or enter into or make or amend any transaction, contract, agreement, understanding, loan, advance or
guarantee with, or for the benefit of, any Affiliate (each of the foregoing, an �Affiliate Transaction�), unless:

(a) such Affiliate Transaction is in writing and on terms that, when taken as a whole, are no less favorable to
the Company or the relevant Restricted Subsidiary than those that would have been obtained in a
comparable transaction by the Company or such Restricted Subsidiary with an unrelated Person or, if there
is no such comparable transaction, on terms that are fair and reasonable to the Company or such Restricted
Subsidiary; and

(b) the Company delivers to the Trustee (1) with respect to any Affiliate Transaction or series of related
Affiliate Transactions involving aggregate consideration in excess of �2,000,000, an Officers� Certificate
certifying that such Affiliate Transaction complies with clause (a) above and (2) with respect to any
Affiliate Transaction or series of related Affiliate Transactions involving aggregate consideration in excess
of �5,000,000, a resolution of the Board of Directors set forth in an Officers� Certificate certifying that such
Affiliate Transaction complies with clause (a) above and that such Affiliate Transaction has been approved
by a majority of the disinterested members of the Board of Directors and (3) with respect to any Affiliate
Transaction or series of related Affiliate Transactions involving aggregate consideration in excess of
�15,000,000, an opinion as to the fairness to the Company or the relevant Subsidiary of such Affiliate
Transaction from a financial point of view issued by an accounting, appraisal or investment banking firm
that is, in the judgment of the Board of Directors, qualified to render such opinion and is independent with
respect to the Company;

provided, however, that the following shall be deemed not to be Affiliate Transactions:

(A) any employment agreement or other employee compensation plan or arrangement (including stock option
plans) entered into by the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business
of the Company or such Restricted Subsidiary;

(B) transactions between or among the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries (including any Person that
becomes a Restricted Subsidiary as a result of any such transaction);

(C) loans or advances to officers, directors and employees of the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries
made in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practices of the Company and its
Restricted Subsidiaries in an aggregate amount not to exceed �1,000,000 outstanding at any one time;

(D) indemnities of officers, directors and employees of the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries
permitted by provisions of the organizational documents of the Company or such Restricted Subsidiary or
applicable law;
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(E) the payment of reasonable and customary regular fees to directors of the Company or any of its Restricted
Subsidiaries who are not employees of the Company or any Subsidiary;

(F) any agreement or arrangement in effect as of the Issue Date or any amendment thereto or replacement
thereof or any transaction contemplated thereby (including pursuant to any amendment or replacement
agreement) so long as any such amendment or replacement agreement, taken as a whole, is no more
disadvantageous to the holders of the Notes in any material respect than the original agreement as in effect
on the Issue Date; and
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(G) Restricted Payments and Permitted Investments that are permitted by the provisions of the Indenture
described above under the caption �� Restricted Payments.�

Guarantees of Certain Indebtedness by Restricted Subsidiaries

The Indenture provides that the Company will not permit any Restricted Subsidiary, directly or indirectly, to
guarantee any Indebtedness of the Company or any Guarantor (the �Other Company Indebtedness�) other than
Permitted Guarantees unless such Restricted Subsidiary (if it is not already a Guarantor) contemporaneously executes
and delivers a Subsidiary Guarantee and a supplemental indenture to the Indenture in accordance with its terms, which
Subsidiary Guarantee will be senior to such Restricted Subsidiary�s guarantee of such Other Company Indebtedness if
such Other Company Indebtedness so guaranteed is subordinated Indebtedness.

Conduct of Business

The Company will not, and will not permit any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to, engage in the conduct of any business
other than the business being conducted on the Issue Date and such other businesses as are reasonably necessary or
desirable to facilitate the conduct and operation of, or ancillary or reasonably related to, such businesses, except to the
extent as would not be material to the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

Anti-Layering

The Indenture provides that the Company will not and will not permit any Guarantor to incur, directly or indirectly,
any Indebtedness that is subordinated in right of payment to any Indebtedness of the Company or the Guarantor, as the
case may be, unless the Indebtedness so incurred is either pari passu with, or subordinated in right of payment to, the
Notes or the relevant Subsidiary Guarantee, as the case may be.

Unsecured Indebtedness will not be deemed to be subordinated in right of payment to secured Indebtedness solely
because it is unsecured, and Indebtedness that is not guaranteed by a particular Person is not deemed to be
subordinated in right of payment to Indebtedness that is so guaranteed solely because it is not so guaranteed.

Reports

Whether or not the Company is required to do so by the rules and regulations of the Commission, so long as any Notes
are outstanding, the Company will file with the Commission (unless the Commission will not accept such a filing):

(i) within the time periods specified in the Commission�s rules and regulations, all annual financial and other
information with respect to the Company and its Subsidiaries that would be required to be contained in a
filing with the Commission on Form 20-F, including a �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations� and a report thereon by the Company�s certified independent
accountants; and

(ii) within 60 days after the end of each of the first and third quarters of each fiscal year (and within 75 days
after the end of the second quarter of each fiscal year), reports on Form 6-K, or any successor form,
attaching (a) unaudited consolidated financial statements for the Company for the period then ended (and
the comparable period in the prior year), in each case prepared in accordance with GAAP (as in effect on
the date of such report or financial information) and (b) the information relating to the Company described
in Item 5 of Form 20-F (i.e., Operating and Financial Review and Prospects).
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information to the holders of the Notes.

For so long as the Notes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and the rules of such stock exchange so
require, the above information will also be made available in Luxembourg, free of charge, through the offices of the
Paying Agent in Luxembourg.
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In addition, the Company will furnish to the holders of the Notes and to prospective investors, upon the requests of
such holders, any information required to be delivered pursuant to Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Securities Act so long as
the Notes are not freely transferable under the Securities Act.

Future Designation of Restricted and Unrestricted Subsidiaries

The preceding covenants (including calculation of financial ratios and the determination of limitations on the
incurrence of Indebtedness) may be affected by the designation by the Company of any existing or future Subsidiary
of the Company as an Unrestricted Subsidiary, or by the redesignation by the Company of an Unrestricted Subsidiary
as a Restricted Subsidiary.

The Board of Directors may designate any Restricted Subsidiary to be an Unrestricted Subsidiary if such designation
would not cause a Default. For purposes of making such designation, all outstanding Investments by the Company and
its Restricted Subsidiaries in the Subsidiary so designated will be deemed to be Restricted Payments at the time of
such designation, in an amount equal to the fair market value of such Investments at the time of such designation.
Such designation will only be permitted if such Restricted Payments would be permitted by the terms of the Indenture
at such time and if such Restricted Subsidiary otherwise meets the definition of �Unrestricted Subsidiary�. The
Company may not designate any Restricted Subsidiary to be an Unrestricted Subsidiary at any time during which the
Company maintains Investment Grade Status.

The Board of Directors may also redesignate any Unrestricted Subsidiary to be a Restricted Subsidiary if such
redesignation complies with the requirements of the Indenture described in the definition of �Unrestricted Subsidiary.�
If the aggregate amount of all Restricted Payments calculated for purposes of the first paragraph of the covenant
described under the caption �� Restricted Payments� above includes an Investment in an Unrestricted Subsidiary that
subsequently becomes a Restricted Subsidiary pursuant to the terms of this paragraph, then the aggregate amount of
such Restricted Payments will be reduced by the lesser of (a) an amount equal to the fair market value of the
Investments previously made by the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries in such Unrestricted Subsidiary at the
time it becomes a Restricted Subsidiary and (b) the amount of such Investments.

Any designation or redesignation pursuant to this covenant by the Board of Directors will be evidenced by the filing
with the Trustee of a Board Resolution giving effect to such action and evidencing the valuation of any Investment
relating thereto (as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors) and an Officers� Certificate certifying that such
action and valuation complied with the preceding requirements.

Effectiveness of Covenants and Events of Default

The covenants described under clauses (c) and (d) under �� Subsidiary Guarantees � Merger or Consolidation�, �� Certain
Covenants � Restricted Payments�, �� Certain Covenants � Incurrence of Indebtedness and Issuance of Disqualified Stock�, ��
Certain Covenants � Dividend and Other Payment Restrictions Affecting Subsidiaries�, �� Certain Covenants �
Transactions with Affiliates�, �� Certain Covenants � Conduct of Business�, �� Put Option of Holders � Asset Sales�, clauses
(a)(1), (b) and (c) under �� Certain Covenants � Sale-and-Leaseback Transactions�, and �� Certain Covenants � Issuances and
Sales of Capital Stock of Restricted Subsidiaries� and the Events of Default described under clauses (e) and (f)(4)
under �� Events of Default and Remedies� (collectively, the �Suspended Provisions�) will no longer be in effect upon
the Company attaining Investment Grade Status. If at any time the Company�s credit rating is downgraded from
Investment Grade Status, then the Suspended Provisions will thereafter be reinstated as if such covenants had never
been suspended and be applicable pursuant to the terms of the Indenture (including in connection with performing any
calculation or assessment to determine compliance with the terms of the Indenture), unless and until the Company
subsequently attains Investment Grade Status (in which event the Suspended Provisions shall again no longer be in
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of Default or breach of any kind shall be deemed to exist under the Indenture with respect to the Suspended Provisions
based on, and none of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries shall bear any liability for, any actions taken or events
occurring after the Company attains Investment Grade Status and before any reinstatement of such Suspended
Provisions as provided above, or any actions taken at any time
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pursuant to any contractual obligation arising prior to such reinstatement, regardless of whether such actions or events
would have been permitted if the applicable Suspended Provisions remained in effect during such period. There can
be no assurance that the Notes will ever achieve Investment Grade Status or that any such rating, if achieved, will be
maintained.

Events of Default and Remedies

The Indenture provides that each of the following constitutes an Event of Default:

(a) default for 30 days in the payment when due of interest on the Notes;

(b) default in payment when due of the principal of or premium, if any, on the Notes;

(c) failure by the Company to comply with the provisions described under the caption �� Put Option of Holders�;

(d) failure by the Company for 30 days after it receives written notice from the Trustee or at least 25% in
principal amount of the then outstanding Notes to comply with any of its other agreements in the Indenture
or the Notes;

(e) the declaration or payment of any dividend or the making of any other payment or distribution described in
subclause (y) of clause (3) under the caption �� Certain Covenants � Restricted Payments�, which declaration,
payment or distribution would not be permitted by the provisions described under the caption �� Certain
Covenants � Restricted Payments� if it were treated as a Restricted Payment;

(f) the Company consolidates or merges (fusion) with or into (whether or not the Company is the surviving
corporation), or sells, assigns, transfers, leases, conveys, demerges (scission) or otherwise disposes of all or
substantially all of its properties or assets in one or more related transactions, to another Person unless:

(1) the Company is the surviving corporation or the Person formed by or surviving any such
consolidation or merger (if other than the Company) or to which such sale, assignment, transfer,
lease, conveyance, demerger or other disposition shall have been made is a corporation organized or
existing under the laws of the United States (or any state thereof or the District of Columbia), the
Republic of France or any other member state of the European Union (as constituted on the Issue
Date);

(2) the Person formed by or surviving any such consolidation or merger (if other than the Company) or
the Person to which such sale, assignment, transfer, lease, conveyance, demerger or other disposition
shall have been made assumes all the obligations of the Company under the Notes and the Indenture
pursuant to a supplemental indenture in a form reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee;

(3) immediately after such transaction no Default or Event of Default exists;

(4) except in the case of a merger of the Company with or into a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary
of the Company, the Company or the Person formed by or surviving any such consolidation or
merger (if other than the Company), or to which such sale, assignment, transfer, lease, conveyance,
demerger or other disposition shall have been made:

(A) will have a Consolidated Net Worth immediately after the transaction equal to or greater than
the Consolidated Net Worth of the Company immediately preceding the transaction; and
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(B) will, at the time of such transaction and after giving pro forma effect thereto as if such
transaction had occurred at the beginning of the applicable four-quarter period, be permitted to
incur at least �1.00 of additional Indebtedness pursuant to the Consolidated Interest Coverage
Ratio test set forth in the first paragraph of the covenant described above under the caption ��
Certain Covenants � Incurrence of Indebtedness and Issuance of Disqualified Stock�; and
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(5) the Company shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, to the Trustee, in form and substance reasonably
satisfactory to the Trustee, an Officers� Certificate and an opinion of counsel stating that such
consolidation, merger or disposition and any supplemental indenture in respect thereto comply with
this provision and that all conditions precedent in the Indenture relating to such transaction or
transactions have been complied with;

(g) a default occurs under any mortgage, indenture or instrument under which there may be issued or by which
there may be secured or evidenced any Indebtedness for money borrowed by the Company or any of its
Restricted Subsidiaries (or the payment of which is guaranteed by the Company or any of its Restricted
Subsidiaries), whether such Indebtedness or guarantee exists on the date of the Indenture or is created after
the date of the Indenture, which default (1) is caused by a failure to pay principal of or premium or interest
on such Indebtedness prior to the expiration of any grace period provided in such Indebtedness, including
any extension thereof (a �Payment Default�), or (2) results in the acceleration of such Indebtedness prior to
its express maturity and, in each case, the principal amount of any such Indebtedness, together with the
principal amount of any other such Indebtedness under which there has been a Payment Default or the
maturity of which has been so accelerated, aggregates in excess of �10,000,000 and provided, further, that if
any such default is cured or waived or any such acceleration rescinded, or such Indebtedness is repaid,
within a period of 10 days from the continuation of such default beyond the applicable grace period or the
occurrence of such acceleration, as the case may be, such Event of Default and any consequential
acceleration of the Notes shall be automatically rescinded, so long as such rescission does not conflict with
any judgment or decree;

(h) failure by the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries to pay final judgments (not covered by
insurance) aggregating in excess of �10,000,000, which judgments are not paid, discharged or stayed for a
period of 60 days;

(i) failure by any Guarantor to perform any covenant set forth in its Subsidiary Guarantee, or the repudiation
by any Guarantor of its obligations under its Subsidiary Guarantee or the unenforceability of any Subsidiary
Guarantee for any reason other than as provided in the Indenture; and

(j) certain events of bankruptcy or insolvency with respect to the Company or any Significant Subsidiary.

If any Event of Default occurs and is continuing, the Trustee may, by notice to the Company, or the Holders of at least
25% in principal amount of the then outstanding Notes may, by notice to the Company and the Trustee, and the
Trustee shall, upon the request of such Holders, declare all the Notes to be due and payable immediately. Upon any
such declaration, the Notes shall become due and payable immediately. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of
an Event of Default arising from certain events of bankruptcy or insolvency with respect to the Company or any
Significant Subsidiary, all outstanding Notes will become due and payable immediately without further action or
notice. The holders of a majority in principal amount of the then outstanding Notes by written notice to the Trustee
may on behalf of all of the holders rescind an acceleration and its consequences if the rescission would not conflict
with any judgment or decree and if all existing Events of Default (except non-payment of principal, interest or
premium that have become due solely because of such acceleration) have been cured or waived. Holders of the Notes
may not enforce the Indenture or the Notes except as provided in the Indenture. Subject to certain limitations, holders
of a majority in principal amount of the then outstanding Notes may direct the Trustee in its exercise of any trust or
power. The Trustee may withhold from holders of the Notes notice of any continuing Default or Event of Default
(except a Default or Event of Default relating to the payment of principal or interest) if it determines that withholding
notice is in their interest.
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In the case of any Event of Default occurring by reason of any willful action (or inaction) taken (or not taken) by or on
behalf of the Company with the intention of avoiding payment of the premium that the Company would have had to
pay if the Company then had elected to redeem the Notes pursuant to the optional redemption provisions of the
Indenture, an equivalent premium shall also become and be immediately due and payable to the extent permitted by
law upon the acceleration of the Notes.

The holders of a majority in principal amount of the Notes then outstanding by notice to the Trustee may on behalf of
the holders of all of the Notes waive any existing Default or Event of Default and its consequences under
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the Indenture except a continuing Default or Event of Default in the payment of the principal of or interest on the
Notes.

The Company will be required to deliver to the Trustee annually a statement regarding compliance with the Indenture,
and the Company will be required, upon becoming aware of any Default or Event of Default, to deliver to the Trustee
a statement specifying such Default or Event of Default.

No Personal Liability of Directors, Officers, Employees and Stockholders

No director, officer, employee, incorporator, member, partner or stockholder or other owner of Capital Stock of the
Company or any Guarantor, as such, shall have any liability for any obligations of the Company or any Guarantor
under the Notes, the Subsidiary Guarantees or the Indenture or for any claim based on, in respect of, or by reason of,
such obligations or their creation. Each holder of the Notes by accepting a Note waives and releases all such liability.
The waiver and release are part of the consideration for issuance of the Notes. Such waiver may not be effective to
waive liabilities under the federal securities laws, and it is the view of the Commission that such a waiver is against
public policy.

Legal Defeasance and Covenant Defeasance

The Company may, at its option and at any time, elect to have all of the obligations of itself and the Guarantors
discharged with respect to the outstanding Notes and the Subsidiary Guarantees, respectively (�Legal Defeasance�),
except for:

(a) the rights of holders of outstanding Notes to receive payments in respect of the principal of and premium, if
any, and interest on such Notes when such payments are due from the trust referred to below;

(b) the Company�s obligations with respect to the Notes concerning issuing temporary Notes, registration of
transfer or exchange of the Notes, mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Notes and the maintenance of an
office or agency for payment and money for security payments held in trust;

(c) the rights, powers, trusts, duties and immunities of the Trustee, and the Company�s and any Guarantor�s
obligations in connection with them; and

(d) the Legal Defeasance provisions of the Indenture.

In addition, the Company may, at its option and at any time, elect to have the obligations of the Company and any
Guarantor released with respect to certain covenants that are described in the Indenture (�Covenant Defeasance�),
and thereafter any omission to comply with such obligations shall not constitute a Default or Event of Default with
respect to the Notes. If Covenant Defeasance occurs, certain other events (not including non-payment, bankruptcy,
receivership, rehabilitation and insolvency events) described under the caption �� Events of Default and Remedies� will
no longer constitute an Event of Default with respect to the Notes.

In order to exercise either Legal Defeasance or Covenant Defeasance:

(1) the Company must irrevocably deposit with the Trustee, in trust, for the benefit of the holders of the Notes,
cash in U.S. dollars, non-callable U.S. Government Securities, or a combination thereof, in such amounts as
will be sufficient, in the opinion of an internationally recognized firm of independent public accountants, to
pay the principal of and premium and interest on the outstanding Notes on the Stated Maturity or on the
applicable redemption date, as the case may be, and the Company must specify whether the Notes are being
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(2) in the case of Legal Defeasance, the Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an opinion of counsel
reasonably acceptable to the Trustee confirming that (A) the Company has received from, or there has been
published by, the Internal Revenue Service and the French tax authority a ruling or (B) since the date of the
Indenture, there has been a change in the applicable income tax law, in either case to the effect that, and
based thereon such opinion of counsel shall confirm that, the holders of the outstanding Notes will not
recognize income, gain or loss for U.S. federal or French income tax purposes, respectively, as a result of
such Legal Defeasance and will be subject to U.S. federal or French income tax on the same
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amounts, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such Legal Defeasance
had not occurred;

(3) in the case of Covenant Defeasance, the Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an opinion of counsel
reasonably acceptable to the Trustee confirming that the holders of the outstanding Notes will not recognize
income, gain or loss for U.S. federal or French income tax purposes as a result of such Covenant
Defeasance and will be subject to U.S. federal or French income tax on the same amounts, in the same
manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such Covenant Defeasance had not occurred;

(4) no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing either (A) on the date of such deposit
(other than a Default or Event of Default resulting from the borrowing of funds to be applied to such
deposit) or (B) insofar as Events of Default from bankruptcy or insolvency events are concerned, at any
time in the period ending on the 550th day after the date of deposit;

(5) such Legal Defeasance or Covenant Defeasance will not result in a breach or violation of, or constitute a
default under any material agreement or instrument (other than the Indenture) to which the Company or any
of its Restricted Subsidiaries is a party or by which the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries is
bound;

(6) the Company must have delivered to the Trustee an opinion of counsel to the effect that, after the 550th day
following the deposit, the trust funds will not be subject to the effect of any applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization or similar laws affecting creditors� rights generally;

(7) the Company must deliver to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate stating that the deposit was not made by
the Company with the intent of preferring the holders of the Notes over the other creditors of the Company
or with the intent of defeating, hindering, delaying or defrauding creditors of the Company or others; and

(8) the Company must deliver to the Trustee an Officers� Certificate and an opinion of counsel, each stating that
all conditions precedent provided for relating to the Legal Defeasance or the Covenant Defeasance have
been complied with.

Amendment and Waiver

Except as provided below, the Indenture or the Notes may be amended or supplemented with the consent of the
holders of at least a majority in principal amount of the Notes then outstanding (including, without limitation, consents
obtained in connection with a purchase of, or tender offer or exchange offer for, the Notes), and any existing default or
compliance with any provision of the Indenture or the Notes may be waived with the consent of the holders of a
majority in principal amount of the then outstanding Notes (including, without limitation, consents obtained in
connection with a tender offer or exchange offer for the Notes).

Without the consent of each holder affected, an amendment, supplement or waiver may not (with respect to any Notes
held by a non-consenting holder):

(a) reduce the principal amount of the Notes whose holders must consent to an amendment, supplement or
waiver;

(b) reduce the principal of or change the fixed maturity of any Note or alter the provisions with respect to the
redemption or purchase of the Notes by the Company;
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(c) reduce the rate of or change the time for payment of interest on any Note;

(d) waive a Default or Event of Default in the payment of principal of or premium or interest on the Notes
(except a rescission of acceleration of the Notes by the holders of at least a majority in principal amount of
the Notes and a waiver of the payment default that resulted from such acceleration);

(e) make any Note payable in money other than that stated in the Notes;

(f) make any change in the provisions of the Indenture relating to waivers of past defaults or the rights of
holders of the Notes to receive payments of principal of or premium or interest on the Notes;
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(g) waive a redemption or repurchase payment with respect to any Note;

(h) make any change in the ranking of the Notes relative to other Indebtedness of the Company or the
Subsidiary Guarantees relative to other Indebtedness of the Guarantors, in either case in a manner adverse
to the holders;

(i) release any Guarantor from any of its obligations under its Subsidiary Guarantee or the Indenture, except in
accordance with the terms of the Indenture;

(j) make any change in the provisions described under the caption �� Additional Amounts� in a manner adverse to
the holders; or

(k) make any change in the preceding amendment, supplement and waiver provisions.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, without the consent of any holder of the Notes, the Company, the Guarantors and the
Trustee may amend or supplement the Indenture or the Notes to cure any ambiguity, defect or inconsistency, to
provide for uncertificated Notes in addition to or in place of certificated Notes, to provide for the assumption of the
Company�s obligations to holders of the Notes in the case of a merger or consolidation or sale of all or substantially all
of the Company�s properties or assets, to make any change that would provide any additional rights or benefits to the
holders of the Notes or that does not materially adversely affect the legal rights under the Indenture of any such
holder, to secure the Notes pursuant to the requirements of the covenant described above under the caption �� Certain
Covenants � Liens�, to add any Guarantor or to release any Guarantor from its Subsidiary Guarantee, in each case as
provided in the Indenture, or to comply with requirements of the Commission in order to effect or maintain the
qualification of the Indenture under the Trust Indenture Act.

Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, pay or cause to be paid any consideration,
whether by way of interest, fee or otherwise, to any holder of any Notes for or as an inducement to any consent,
waiver, amendment or supplement of any terms or provisions of the Indenture or the Notes, unless such consideration
is offered to be paid or agreed to be paid to all holders of the Notes which so consent, waive or agree to amend or
supplement in the time frame set forth in solicitation documents relating to such consent, waiver or agreement.

Satisfaction and Discharge

The Indenture will be discharged and will cease to be of further effect as to all Notes issued thereunder, when:

(1) either:

(a) all Notes that have been authenticated (except lost, stolen or destroyed Notes that have been
replaced or paid and Notes for whose payment money has theretofore been deposited in trust and
thereafter repaid to the Company) have been delivered to the Trustee for cancellation; or

(b) all Notes that have not been delivered to the Trustee for cancellation have become due and payable
by reason of the giving of a notice of redemption or otherwise or will become due and payable
within one year and the Company or any Guarantor has irrevocably deposited or caused to be
irrevocably deposited with the Trustee as trust funds in trust solely for the benefit of the holders of
the Notes, cash in U.S. dollars, non-callable U.S. Government Securities, or a combination thereof,
in such amounts as will be sufficient without consideration of any reinvestment of interest, to pay
and discharge the entire indebtedness on the Notes not previously delivered to the Trustee for
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cancellation, including principal, premium, if any, and accrued interest to the date of maturity or
redemption;

(2) no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing on the date of such deposit or shall
occur as a result of such deposit and such deposit will not result in a breach or violation of, or constitute a
default under, any other instrument to which the Company or any Guarantor is a party or by which the
Company or any Guarantor is bound;

(3) the Company and each Guarantor has paid or caused to be paid all other sums payable by it under the
Indenture; and
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(4) the Company has delivered an Officers� Certificate and an opinion of counsel to the Trustee stating that all
conditions precedent to satisfaction and discharge have been satisfied.

The Trustee

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, National Association serves as trustee under the Indenture.

The Indenture contains certain limitations on the rights of the Trustee, should it become a creditor of the Company or
any Guarantor, to obtain payment of claims in certain cases, or to realize on certain property received in respect of any
such claim as security or otherwise. The Trustee will be permitted to engage in other transactions; however, if it
acquires any conflicting interest and a Default occurs it must eliminate such conflict within 90 days, apply to the
Commission for permission to continue as Trustee or resign.

The holders of a majority in principal amount of the then outstanding Notes will have the right to direct the time,
method and place of conducting any proceeding for exercising any remedy available to the Trustee, subject to certain
exceptions. The Indenture provides that in case an Event of Default shall occur (that is not cured), the Trustee will be
required, in the exercise of its power, to use the degree of care of a prudent man in the conduct of his own affairs.
Subject to such provisions, the Trustee will be under no obligation to exercise any of its rights or powers under the
Indenture at the request of any holder of Notes, unless such holder has offered to the Trustee security and indemnity
satisfactory to it against any loss, liability or expense.

Governing Law

The Indenture, the Notes and the Subsidiary Guarantees provide or will provide that they will be governed by the laws
of the State of New York.

Consent to Jurisdiction

The Indenture provides that any suit, action or proceeding with respect to the Indenture, the Notes or the Subsidiary
Guarantees may be brought in any New York state or federal court located in the Borough of Manhattan in the City of
New York (�New York Court�) and that the Company and the Guarantors will submit to the non-exclusive
jurisdiction of such courts.

Service of Process; Enforceability of Judgments; Indemnification for Foreign Currency Judgments

The Company is organized under the laws of France with its registered office and principal place of business in
France. A majority of its directors and officers are not residents of the United States, and all or a substantial portion of
their assets are located outside the United States. Substantially all of its assets are located outside the United States.
The Company has agreed, in accordance with the terms of the indenture, to accept service of process in any suit,
action or proceeding with respect to the indenture or the notes brought in any federal or state court located in New
York City by an agent designated for such purpose, and to submit to the jurisdiction of such courts in connection with
such suits, actions or proceedings. However, it may not be possible for you to effect service of process within the
United States upon its directors and officers or to enforce against these persons, or the Company, judgments of United
States courts predicated upon civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States.

The Company has been informed by its French counsel that a final judgment for a sum of money in relation to the
Indenture or the Notes obtained in any New York Court would be recognized and enforceable by the French courts
without re-examination or re-litigation of the matters adjudicated, through an action for exequatur brought before the
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enforcement of foreign judgments in France are met, and in particular provided that:

(a) the judgment concerned is enforceable in the State of New York;

(b) the subject matter of the dispute is sufficiently connected to the State of New York and the French courts
did not have exclusive jurisdiction to hear the matter;
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(c) the judgment is not contrary to French international public policy (ordre public international), both
pertaining to the merits and to the procedure of the case;

(d) there is no fraud; and

(e) the judgment does not conflict with a French judgment or a foreign judgment which has become effective
in France and there is no risk of conflict with proceedings pending before the French courts at the time
enforcement of the judgment is sought.

The Indenture also provides that obligations of the Company to any holder of the Notes or the Trustee shall,
notwithstanding any judgment in a currency (the �Judgment Currency�) other than United States dollars (the
�Agreement Currency�), be discharged only to the extent that on the day following receipt by such holder of the
Notes or the Trustee, as the case may be, of any amount in the Judgment Currency, such holder of the Notes or the
Trustee may in accordance with normal banking procedures purchase the Agreement Currency with the Judgment
Currency. If the amount of the Agreement Currency so purchased is less than the amount originally to be paid to such
holder of the Notes or the Trustee, as the case may be, in the Agreement Currency, the Company agrees, as a separate
obligation and notwithstanding such judgment, to pay to such holder of Notes or the Trustee, as the case may be, the
difference, and if the amount of the Agreement Currency so purchased exceeds the amount originally to be paid to
such holder of the Notes or the Trustee, as the case may be, such holder of the Notes or the Trustee, as the case may
be, agrees to pay to or for the account of the Company such excess, provided that such holder of the Notes or the
Trustee, as the case may be, shall not have any obligation to pay any such excess as long as a default by the Company
or any Guarantor in its obligations under the Notes, the Indenture or the Subsidiary Guarantees has occurred and is
continuing, in which case such excess may be applied by such holder of the Notes or the Trustee, as the case may be,
to such obligations.

Additional Information

Anyone who receives this prospectus may obtain a copy of the Indenture and the Registration Rights Agreement
without charge by contacting Compagnie Générale de Géophysique-Veritas, Tour Maine Montparnasse, 33 avenue de
Maine, BP 191, 75755 Paris CEDEX 15, France, Attention: Investor Relations Officer, Telephone +33 1 64 47 45 00.

Replacement, Transfer and Exchange

If any Note at any time is mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, such Note may be replaced at the cost of the applicant at
the office of the Trustee or the office of the Registrar in Luxembourg. The applicant for a new Note must, in the case
of any mutilated Note, surrender such Note to the Trustee or the Registrar in Luxembourg, as applicable, and, in the
case of any lost, destroyed or stolen Note, furnish evidence satisfactory to the Trustee or the Registrar in Luxembourg,
as applicable, of such loss, destruction or theft, together with such indemnity as the Trustee or the Registrar in
Luxembourg, as applicable, and the Company may require.

Initially, the Trustee will act as Registrar in the continental United States, and Notes may be presented for registration
of transfer and exchange at the office of the Trustee in Dallas, Texas. Dexia Banque Internationale à Luxembourg will
act initially as Registrar in Luxembourg, and Notes may be presented for registration of transfer and exchange at its
office located at 69, route d�Esch, 2953 Luxembourg.

A holder of the Notes may transfer or exchange Notes in accordance with the Indenture. The Registrar and the Trustee
may require a holder, among other things, to furnish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents and the
Company may require a holder to pay any transfer tax or similar governmental charge required by law. The Company
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and the Registrar are not required to transfer or exchange any Note selected for redemption. Also, the Company and
the Registrar are not required to transfer or exchange any Note for a period of 15 days before a selection of Notes to
be redeemed.

The registered holder of a Note will be treated as the owner of it for all purposes, and all references to �holders� in this
�Description of the Notes� are to registered holders unless otherwise indicated.
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Purchase

The Company, the Trustee and their respective Affiliates may at any time and from time to time purchase any Note or
a beneficial interest in any Note in the open market or otherwise at any price.

Notices

Any notice to Noteholders will be mailed by first class mail or delivered by overnight air courier guaranteeing next
day delivery, in each case to their respective registered addresses shown on the register kept by the Registrar. In
addition, for so long as the Notes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and its rules so require, any such
notice (including notices of redemption) will be published in a newspaper having general circulation in Luxembourg,
which is expected to be the Luxemburger Wort, or if such newspaper ceases to be published or timely publication in it
will not be practicable, in such other newspaper as the Trustee deems necessary to give fair and reasonable notice to
the Noteholders. Notices may also be published on the internet site of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at
www.bourse.lu. Also for so long as the Notes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, the Company will
provide to the exchange a copy of all notices to Noteholders.

Certain Definitions

Set forth below are certain defined terms used in the Indenture. Reference is made to the Indenture for a full disclosure
of all such terms, as well as any other capitalized terms used herein for which no definition is provided.

�Acquired Indebtedness� means with respect to a specified Person (a) Indebtedness of any other Person existing at
the time such other Person is merged with or into or becomes a Subsidiary of such specified Person or
(b) Indebtedness relating to properties or assets acquired by such specified Person. Acquired Indebtedness shall be
deemed to be incurred on the date the acquired Person becomes a Restricted Subsidiary or the date of the related
acquisition of properties or assets from such Person.

�Affiliate� of any specified Person means any other Person directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by or under
direct or indirect common control with such specified Person. For purposes of the Indenture, �control�, as used with
respect to any Person, means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the
management or policies of such Person, whether through the ownership of Voting Stock, by agreement or otherwise;
provided, however, that beneficial ownership of 10% or more of the Voting Stock of a Person shall be deemed to be
control. For purposes of the Indenture, the terms �controlling�, �controlled by� and �under common control with�
have correlative meanings.

�Applicable Premium� means, with respect to any Note on any redemption date, the greater of:

(a) 1.0% of the principal amount of the Note; and

(b) the excess of (1) the present value at such redemption date of (A) the redemption price of the Note at
May 15, 2013 (such redemption price being set forth in the table appearing above under the caption ��
Optional Redemption�) plus (B) all required interest payments due on the Note during the period from such
redemption date through May 15, 2013 (excluding accrued but unpaid interest), computed using a discount
rate equal to the Treasury Rate as of such redemption date plus 50 basis points over (2) the principal
amount of the Note, if greater.

�Asset Sale� means:
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(a) the sale, lease, conveyance or other disposition (a �disposition�) of any properties or assets (including,
without limitation, by way of a sale-and-leaseback), excluding dispositions in the ordinary course of
business (provided that the disposition of all or substantially all of the properties or assets of the Company
and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole will be subject to the provisions of the Indenture described above
under the caption �� Put Option of Holders � Change of Control� and the provisions described above in
clause (f) under the caption �� Events of Default and Remedies� and not to the provisions of the Asset Sales
covenant);
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(b) the issue or sale by the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries of Equity Interests of any of the
Company�s Subsidiaries; and

(c) any Event of Loss,

whether, in the case of clause (a), (b) or (c), in a single transaction or a series of related transactions, provided that
such transaction or series of related transactions (1) involves properties or assets having a fair market value in excess
of �2,500,000 or (2) results in the payment of net proceeds (including insurance proceeds from an Event of Loss) in
excess of �2,500,000. Notwithstanding the preceding provisions of this definition, the following transactions will be
deemed not to be Asset Sales:

(A) a disposition of obsolete or excess equipment or other properties or assets;

(B) a disposition of properties or assets (including Equity Interests) by the Company to a Wholly Owned
Restricted Subsidiary or by a Restricted Subsidiary to the Company or to a Wholly Owned Restricted
Subsidiary;

(C) a disposition of cash or Cash Equivalents;

(D) a disposition of properties or assets (including Equity Interests) that constitutes a Restricted Payment that is
permitted by the provisions of the Indenture described above under the caption �� Certain Covenants �
Restricted Payments�;

(E) any trade or exchange by the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary of equipment or other properties or
assets for equipment or other properties or assets owned or held by another Person, provided that the fair
market value of the properties or assets traded or exchanged by the Company or such Restricted Subsidiary
(together with any cash or Cash Equivalents) is reasonably equivalent to the fair market value of the
properties or assets (together with any cash or Cash Equivalents) to be received by the Company or such
Restricted Subsidiary;

(F) the creation or perfection of a Lien on any properties or assets (or any income or profits therefrom) of the
Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries that is not prohibited by the covenant described under the
caption �� Certain Covenants � Liens�;

(G) a sale-and-leaseback of the Company�s office facilities in Massy, France replacing the sale-and-leaseback
transaction relating to such facilities that is outstanding on the Issue Date;

(H) the surrender or waiver of contract rights or the settlement, release or surrender of contractual,
non-contractual or other claims of any kind;

(I) the sale or discount, in each case without recourse, of accounts receivable arising in the ordinary course of
business, but only in connection with the compromise of collection thereof;

(J) the factoring of accounts receivable arising in the ordinary course of business pursuant to arrangements
customary in the region; and

(K) the grant in the ordinary course of business of any non-exclusive license of patents, trademarks,
registrations therefor and other similar intellectual property.
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The fair market value of any non-cash proceeds of a disposition of properties or assets and of any properties or assets
referred to in the foregoing clause (E) of this definition shall be determined in the manner contemplated in the
definition of the term �fair market value,� the results of which determination shall be set forth in an Officers Certificate
delivered to the Trustee.

�Attributable Indebtedness� in respect of a sale-and-leaseback transaction means, at the time of determination, the
present value (discounted at the rate of interest implicit in such transaction, determined in accordance with GAAP) of
the obligation of the lessee for net rental payments during the remaining term of the lease included in such
sale-and-leaseback transaction (including any period for which such lease has been extended or may, at the option of
the lessor, be extended). As used in the preceding sentence, the �net rental payments� under any lease for any such
period shall mean the sum of rental and other payments required to be paid with respect to
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such period by the lessee thereunder, excluding any amounts required to be paid by such lessee on account of
maintenance and repairs, insurance, taxes, assessments, water rates or similar charges. In the case of any lease that is
terminable by the lessee upon payment of penalty, such net rental payment shall also include the amount of such
penalty, but no rent shall be considered as required to be paid under such lease subsequent to the first date upon which
it may be so terminated.

�Board of Directors� means the Board of Directors (Conseil d�Administration) of the Company, or any authorized
committee of the Board of Directors.

�Capital Lease Obligation� means, at the time any determination thereof is to be made, the amount of the liability in
respect of a capital lease that would at such time be required to be capitalized on a balance sheet in accordance with
GAAP.

�Capital Stock� means:

(a) in the case of a corporation, corporate stock;

(b) in the case of an association or business entity, any and all shares, interests, participations, rights or other
equivalents (however designated) of corporate stock, including preferred stock;

(c) in the case of a partnership or limited liability company, partnership or membership interests (whether
general or limited); and

(d) any other interest or participation that confers on a Person the right to receive a share of the profits and
losses of, or distributions of assets of, the issuing Person.

�Cash Equivalents� means:

(a) securities issued or directly and fully guaranteed or insured by the government of the United States of
America, the Republic of France or any other country whose sovereign debt has a rating of at least A3 from
Moody�s Investors Service, Inc. and at least A- from Standard & Poor�s Ratings Services or any agency or
instrumentality of any such government (provided that the full faith and credit of such government is
pledged in support thereof), in each case having maturities of not more than 12 months from the date of
acquisition;

(b) certificates of deposit, Eurodollar time deposits and French negotiable debt instruments (titres de créances
négociables) with maturities of 12 months or less from the date of acquisition, bankers� acceptances with
maturities not exceeding six months and overnight bank deposits, in each case with or issued by any
commercial bank organized under the laws of any country that is a member of the Organization for
Economic Co-operation and Development having capital and surplus in excess of �500,000,000 and whose
long-term debt securities are rated at least A3 by Moody�s Investors Service, Inc. and at least A- by
Standard & Poor�s Ratings Services;

(c) repurchase obligations with a term of not more than seven days for underlying securities of the types
described in clauses (a) and (b) above entered into with any financial institution meeting the qualifications
specified in clause (b) above;

(d) commercial paper and French negotiable debt instruments (titres de créances négociables) having a rating
of at least P-1 from Moody�s Investors Service, Inc. or at least A-1 from Standard & Poor�s Ratings Services
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and in each case maturing within 12 months after the date of acquisition;

(e) deposits available for withdrawal on demand with any commercial bank not meeting the qualifications
specified in clause (b) above, provided that all such deposits are made in the ordinary course of business, do
not remain on deposit for more than 30 consecutive days and do not exceed �25,000,000 in the aggregate at
any one time, with no more than �5,000,000 being deposited in commercial banks within a single
country; and

(f) money market mutual funds substantially all of the assets of which are of the type described in any of the
foregoing clauses (a) through (d), including any mutual fund for which the Trustee or an Affiliate of the
Trustee serves as investment manager, administrator, shareholder servicing agent, and/or custodian or
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subcustodian, notwithstanding that the Trustee or an Affiliate of the Trustee receives fees from such funds
for services it or its Affiliate renders to such fund in respect of such investment.

�Common Stock� means the common or ordinary shares of the Company.

�Consolidated Cash Flow� means, with respect to any Person for any period, the Consolidated Net Income of such
Person for such period plus, to the extent deducted or excluded in calculating Consolidated Net Income for such
period:

(a) provision for taxes based on income or profits of such Person and its Restricted Subsidiaries;

(b) Consolidated Interest Expense of such Person and its Restricted Subsidiaries;

(c) depreciation and amortization (including amortization or impairment, if any, of goodwill and of other
intangibles but excluding amortization of prepaid cash expenses that were paid in a prior period) of such
Person and its Restricted Subsidiaries;

(d) other non-cash expenses (excluding any such non-cash expense to the extent that it represents an accrual of
or reserve for cash expenses in any future period or amortization of a prepaid cash expense that was paid in
a prior period) of such Person and its Restricted Subsidiaries less any non-cash items increasing
Consolidated Net Income of such Person and its Restricted Subsidiaries (other than items that will result in
cash receipt);

(e) any expenses, fees, charges or other costs related to any equity offering (other than an offering of
Disqualified Stock) permitted by the indenture (whether or not successful); and

(f) without duplication, an amount equal to any extraordinary loss plus any net loss realized by such Person or
any of its Restricted Subsidiaries in connection with an Asset Sale, in each case, on a consolidated basis
and determined in accordance with GAAP.

�Consolidated Interest Coverage Ratio� means, with respect to any Person for any period, the ratio of the
Consolidated Cash Flow of such Person for such period to the Consolidated Interest Expense of such Person for such
period; provided, however, that the Consolidated Interest Coverage Ratio shall be calculated giving pro forma effect
to each of the following transactions as if each such transaction had occurred at the beginning of the applicable four
quarter reference period:

(a) any incurrence, assumption, guarantee, repayment, purchase or redemption by such Person or any of its
Restricted Subsidiaries of any Indebtedness (other than revolving credit borrowings) subsequent to the
commencement of the period for which the Consolidated Interest Coverage Ratio is being calculated but
prior to the date on which the event for which the calculation of the Consolidated Interest Coverage Ratio is
made (the �Calculation Date�);

(b) any acquisition that has been made by such Person or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries, or approved and
expected to be consummated within 30 days of the Calculation Date, including, in each case, through a
merger or consolidation, and including any related financing transactions, during the reference period or
subsequent to such reference period and on or prior to the Calculation Date; and

(c) any other transaction that may be given pro forma effect in accordance with Article 11 of Regulation S-X
under the Securities Act as in effect from time to time;
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provided further, however, that (1) the Consolidated Cash Flow attributable to discontinued operations, as determined
in accordance with GAAP, and operations or businesses disposed of prior to the Calculation Date, shall be excluded
and (2) the Consolidated Interest Expense attributable to discontinued operations, as determined in accordance with
GAAP, and operations or businesses disposed of prior to the Calculation Date, shall be excluded, but only to the
extent that the obligations giving rise to such Consolidated Interest Expense will not be obligations of the referent
Person or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries following the Calculation Date.
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�Consolidated Interest Expense� means, with respect to any Person for any period, the sum, without duplication, of
the following:

(a) the consolidated interest expense of such Person and its Restricted Subsidiaries for such period, whether
paid or accrued (including, without limitation, amortization of original issue discount, non-cash interest
payments, the interest component of any deferred payment obligations, the interest component of all
payments associated with Capital Lease Obligations, commissions, discounts and other fees and charges
incurred in respect of letter of credit or bankers� acceptance financings, and net of all payments made or
received (if any) pursuant to Hedging Obligations in respect of interest rates but excluding amortization of
debt issuance costs and non-cash charges other than non-cash interest expenses related to convertible
bonds); and

(b) the consolidated interest expense of such Person and its Restricted Subsidiaries that was capitalized during
such period.

�Consolidated Net Income� means, with respect to any Person for any period, the aggregate of the Net Income of
such Person and its Restricted Subsidiaries for such period, on a consolidated basis, determined in accordance with
GAAP, provided that:

(a) the Net Income (but not loss) of any Person that is not a Restricted Subsidiary or that is accounted for by
the equity method of accounting shall be included only to the extent of the amount of dividends or
distributions paid in cash to the referent Person or a Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary thereof;

(b) the Net Income of any Restricted Subsidiary shall be excluded to the extent that the declaration or payment
of dividends or similar distributions by that Restricted Subsidiary of that Net Income is not at the date of
determination permitted without any prior governmental approval (that has not been obtained) or, directly
or indirectly, by operation of the terms of its charter or any agreement, instrument, judgment, decree, order,
statute, rule or governmental regulation applicable to that Restricted Subsidiary or its stockholders; and

(c) the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principles shall be excluded.

�Consolidated Net Worth� means, with respect to any Person as of any date, the consolidated stockholders� equity of
such Person and its Restricted Subsidiaries as of such date less the amount of consolidated stockholders� equity
attributable to Disqualified Stock or treasury stock of such Person and its Restricted Subsidiaries as of such date, in
each case determined in accordance with GAAP.

�Consolidated Tangible Net Worth� means, at any date, the Consolidated Net Worth of the Company and its
Restricted Subsidiaries as shown on their most recent consolidated balance sheet less, without duplication, all
goodwill, trade names, trademarks, patents, unamortized debt discount and expense and other like intangibles, as
determined in accordance with GAAP.

�Consolidated Total Assets� means, with respect to any Person as of any date, the consolidated total assets of such
Person and its Restricted Subsidiaries as of such date, as determined in accordance with GAAP.

�Credit Facilities� means, with respect to any Person, one or more debt facilities or commercial paper facilities with
banks or other institutional lenders (including with special purpose vehicles established by such banks or lenders to
provide such facilities) providing for revolving credit loans, term loans, receivables financing (including through the
sale of receivables to such lenders or to special purpose entities formed to borrow from such lenders against such
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receivables) or trade letters of credit, in each case, as amended, restated, modified, renewed, refunded, replaced or
refinanced in whole or in part from time to time.

�Default� means any event that is, or with the passage of time or the giving of notice or both would be, an Event of
Default.

�Disqualified Stock� means any Capital Stock that, by its terms (or by the terms of any security into which it is
convertible or for which it is exchangeable), or upon the happening of any event, matures (excluding any maturity as a
result of an optional redemption by the issuer thereof) or is mandatorily redeemable, pursuant to a sinking fund
obligation or otherwise, or redeemable at the option of the holder thereof, in whole or in part, on or prior to the date
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that is 91 days after the date on which the Notes mature or are redeemed or retired in full; provided, however, that any
Capital Stock that would constitute Disqualified Stock solely because the holders thereof (or of any security into
which it is convertible or for which it is exchangeable) have the right to require the issuer to repurchase such Capital
Stock (or such security into which it is convertible or for which it is exchangeable) upon the occurrence of any of the
events constituting an Asset Sale or a Change of Control shall not constitute Disqualified Stock if such Capital Stock
(and all such securities into which it is convertible or for which it is exchangeable) provides that the issuer thereof
may not repurchase or redeem any such Capital Stock (or any such security into which it is convertible or for which it
is exchangeable) pursuant to such provisions prior to compliance by the Company with the provisions of the Indenture
described under the caption �� Put Option of Holders � Change of Control� or �� Put Option of Holders � Asset Sales�, as the
case may be.

�Equity Interests� means Capital Stock and all warrants, options or other rights to acquire Capital Stock (but
excluding any debt security that is convertible into, or exchangeable for, Capital Stock).

�euro� or ��� means the lawful single currency of participating member states of the European Economic and
Monetary Union as contemplated by the Treaty Establishing the European Union.

�Euro Equivalent� means, with respect to any monetary amount in a currency other than euros, at or as of any time
for the determination thereof, the amount of euros obtained by converting such foreign currency involved in such
computation into euros at the spot rate for the purchase of euros with the applicable foreign currency as quoted by
Reuters (or, if Reuters ceases to provide such spot quotations, by any other reputable service as is providing such spot
quotations, as selected by the Company) at approximately 11:00 a.m. (New York City time) on the date not more than
two business days prior to such determination.

�Event of Loss� means, with respect to any property or asset of the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary, (a) any
damage to such property or asset that results in an insurance settlement with respect thereto on the basis of a total loss
or a constructive or compromised total loss or (b) the confiscation, condemnation or requisition of title to such
property or asset by any government or instrumentality or agency thereof.

�Exchange Act� means the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

�Existing Indebtedness� means Indebtedness of the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries (other than Indebtedness
under the Credit Facilities) in existence on the date of the Indenture, until such amounts are repaid, but shall not
include any Indebtedness that is repaid with the proceeds of the Offered Notes.

The term �fair market value� means, with respect to any asset or Investment, the fair market value of such asset or
Investment at the time of the event requiring such determination, as determined in good faith by the Company, or,
with respect to any asset or Investment in excess of �15,000,000 (other than cash or Cash Equivalents), as determined
by a reputable investment banking, accounting or appraisal firm that is, in the judgment of the Board of Directors,
qualified to perform the task for which such firm has been engaged and independent with respect to the Company.

�Foreign Restricted Subsidiary� means each of CGG Asia Pacific and CGG Pan India Ltd.

�GAAP� means International Financial Reporting Standards, accounting principles adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board and its predecessor, as in effect from time to time.

�guarantee� means a guarantee other than by endorsement of negotiable instruments for collection in the ordinary
course of business, direct or indirect, in any manner including, without limitation, by way of pledge of assets or
through letters of credit or reimbursement agreements in respect thereof, of all or any part of any Indebtedness.
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�Guarantor� means each of:

(1) CGGVeritas Services Holding B.V., CGGVeritas Services Holding (U.S.) Inc., CGGVeritas Land (U.S.)
Inc., CGGVeritas Services (U.S.) Inc., Veritas Investments Inc., Viking Maritime Inc., Veritas Geophysical
(Mexico) LLC, Veritas DGC Asia Pacific Ltd., Alitheia Resources Inc., CGG Americas, Inc., CGG Canada
Services Ltd. and CGG Marine Resources Norge A/S, Sercel Inc., Sercel Canada Ltd. and Sercel Australia
Pty Ltd.; and
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(2) any other Subsidiary of the Company (including any Restricted Subsidiary that becomes a Guarantor at its
option) that executes a supplemental indenture providing for a Subsidiary Guarantee in accordance with the
provisions of Indenture,

and their respective successors and assigns, in each case, until the Subsidiary Guarantee of such Person has been
released in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture.

�Hedging Obligations� means, with respect to any Person, the obligations of such Person under:

(a) interest rate swap agreements, interest rate cap agreements and interest rate collar agreements;

(b) other agreements or arrangements designed to protect such Person against fluctuations in interest rates; and

(c) any foreign currency futures contract, option or similar agreement or arrangement designed to protect such
Person against fluctuations in currency exchange rates or commodity prices,

in each case to the extent such obligations are incurred in the ordinary course of business of such Person and not for
speculative purposes.

�Indebtedness� means, with respect to any Person, any indebtedness of such Person, without duplication, whether or
not contingent, in respect of borrowed money including, without limitation, any guarantee thereof, or evidenced by
bonds, notes, debentures or similar instruments or letters of credit (or reimbursement agreements in respect thereof) or
bankers� acceptances or representing Capital Lease Obligations or the balance deferred and unpaid of the purchase
price of any property, except any such balance that constitutes an accrued expense or trade account payable, or
representing any Hedging Obligations, if and to the extent any of the foregoing indebtedness (other than letters of
credit, guarantees and Hedging Obligations) would appear as a liability upon a balance sheet of such Person prepared
in accordance with GAAP. The amount of any Indebtedness outstanding as of any date shall be (a) the accreted value
thereof, in the case of any Indebtedness that does not require current payments of interest, and (b) the principal
amount thereof, in the case of any other Indebtedness (with letters of credit being deemed to have a principal amount
equal to the maximum potential liability of the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries thereunder).

�Investment Grade Status� shall occur when the Notes receive a rating of �BBB-� or higher from Standard & Poor�s (or
its equivalent under any successor rating categories of Standard & Poor�s) and a rating of �Baa3� or higher from Moody�s
(or its equivalent under any successor rating categories of Moody�s) or, if either such entity ceases to rate the Notes for
reasons outside the normal control of the Company, the equivalent investment grade credit rating from any other
�nationally recognized statistical rating organization�, as that term is used in Rule 15c3-1 under the Exchange Act,
selected by the Company as a replacement agency.

�Investments� means, with respect to any Person, all investments by such Person in other Persons (including
Affiliates) in the forms of direct or indirect loans (including guarantees by the referent Person of, and Liens on any
assets of the referent Person securing, Indebtedness or other obligations of other Persons), advances or capital
contributions (excluding commission, travel and similar advances to directors, officers and employees made in the
ordinary course of business), purchases or other acquisitions for consideration of Indebtedness, Equity Interests or
other securities, together with all items that are or would be classified as investments on a balance sheet prepared in
accordance with GAAP; provided, however, that the following shall not constitute Investments: (1) extensions of trade
credit or other advances to customers on commercially reasonable terms in accordance with normal trade practices or
otherwise in the ordinary course of business, (2) Hedging Obligations and (3) endorsements of negotiable instruments
and documents in the ordinary course of business. If the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary of the Company sells
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or otherwise disposes of any Equity Interests of any direct or indirect Restricted Subsidiary of the Company such that,
after giving effect to any such sale or disposition, such Person is no longer a Restricted Subsidiary of the Company,
the Company shall be deemed to have made an Investment on the date of any such sale or disposition equal to the fair
market value of the Equity Interests of such Restricted Subsidiary not sold or disposed of in an amount determined as
provided in the final paragraph of the covenant described above under the caption �� Certain Covenants � Restricted
Payments�.

�Issue Date� means June 9, 2009.
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�Lien� means, with respect to any asset, any mortgage, lien, pledge, charge, security interest or encumbrance of any
kind in respect of such asset, whether or not filed, recorded or otherwise perfected under applicable law (including any
conditional sale or other title retention agreement, any lease in the nature thereof, any option or other agreement to sell
or give a security interest in and any filing of or agreement to give any financing statement under the Uniform
Commercial Code (or equivalent statutes of any jurisdiction), other than a precautionary financing statement
respecting a lease not intended as a security agreement) or any assignment of (or agreement to assign) any right to
income or profits from any assets by way of security.

�Merger� includes a fusion, an amalgamation, a compulsory share exchange, a conversion of a corporation into
another business entity and any other transaction having effects substantially similar to a merger under the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

�Net Income� means, with respect to any Person, the net income (or loss) of such Person, determined in accordance
with GAAP and before any reduction in respect of preferred stock dividends, excluding, however:

(a) any gain (but not loss), together with any related provision for taxes on such gain (but not loss), realized in
connection with (1) any Asset Sale (including, without limitation, dispositions pursuant to
sale-and-leaseback transactions) or (2) the disposition of any securities by such Person or any of its
Restricted Subsidiaries or the extinguishment of any Indebtedness of such Person or any of its Restricted
Subsidiaries; and

(b) any extraordinary or non-recurring gain (but not loss), together with any related provision for taxes on such
extraordinary or non-recurring gain (but not loss).

�Net Proceeds� means the aggregate cash proceeds received by the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries in
respect of any Asset Sale (including, without limitation, any cash received upon the sale or other disposition of any
non-cash consideration received in any Asset Sale), net of (without duplication) the following:

(a) the direct costs relating to such Asset Sale (including, without limitation, legal, accounting and investment
banking fees, sales commissions, recording fees, title transfer fees, title insurance premiums, appraiser fees,
other out-of-pocket expenses and costs incurred in connection with preparing such asset for sale) and any
relocation expenses incurred as a result thereof;

(b) taxes paid or estimated to be payable as a result thereof (after taking into account any available tax credits
or deductions and any tax sharing arrangements that will result in a reduction in consolidated tax liability);

(c) amounts required to be applied to the repayment of Indebtedness (other than under a revolving credit
facility) secured by a Lien on the asset or assets that were the subject of such Asset Sale; and

(d) any reserve (including any reserve against any liabilities associated with such Asset Sale and retained by
the Company or the relevant Restricted Subsidiary) established in accordance with GAAP or any amount
placed in escrow, in either case for adjustment in respect of the sale price of such asset or assets, until such
time as such reserve is reversed or such escrow arrangement is terminated, in which case Net Proceeds shall
include only the amount of the reserve so reversed or the amount returned to the Company or its Restricted
Subsidiaries from such escrow arrangement, as the case may be.

�Non-Recourse Debt� means Indebtedness:
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(a) as to which neither the Company nor any of its Restricted Subsidiaries (1) provides credit support of any
kind (including any undertaking, agreement or instrument that would constitute Indebtedness) or is
otherwise directly or indirectly liable (as a guarantor or otherwise) or (2) constitutes the lender;

(b) no default with respect to which (including any rights the holders thereof may have to take enforcement
action against an Unrestricted Subsidiary) would permit (upon notice, lapse of time or both) the holders of
Indebtedness of the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries (other than the Notes) to declare a
default on such Indebtedness or cause the payment thereof to be accelerated or payable prior to its stated
maturity; and
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(c) as to which the lenders have been notified in writing that they will not have any recourse to the stock or
assets of the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries.

�Pari Passu Indebtedness� means, with respect to any Net Proceeds from Asset Sales, Indebtedness of the Company
and its Restricted Subsidiaries the terms of which require the Company or such Restricted Subsidiary to apply such
Net Proceeds to offer to purchase such Indebtedness.

�Permitted Guarantees� means any guarantee:

(1) guaranteeing or securing the Notes or any Guarantee;

(2) in favor of the Company or a Guarantor;

(3) guaranteeing Indebtedness incurred pursuant to clause (a) of the second paragraph of the covenant
described under the caption �� Certain Covenants � Incurrence of Indebtedness and Issuance of Preferred
Stock�; or

(4) in existence on the date of the Indenture to the extent guaranteeing Existing Indebtedness and Permitted
Refinancing Indebtedness in respect thereof incurred in compliance with clause (j) of the second paragraph
of the covenant described under the caption �� Certain Covenants � Incurrence of Indebtedness and Issuance of
Disqualified Stock�.

�Permitted Investments� means:

(a) any Investment in the Company (including, without limitation, any acquisition of the Notes) or in a Wholly
Owned Restricted Subsidiary of the Company, other than any Investment described in clause (a) of the
definition of �Restricted Payments�;

(b) any Investment in cash or Cash Equivalents;

(c) any Investment by the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary of the Company in a Person if as a result of
such Investment (1) such Person becomes a Restricted Subsidiary of the Company or (2) such Person is
merged or consolidated with or into, or transfers or conveys all or substantially all of its properties or assets
to, or is liquidated into, the Company or a Restricted Subsidiary of the Company;

(d) any Investment made as a result of the receipt of non-cash consideration from (1) an Asset Sale that was
made pursuant to and in compliance with the covenant described above under the caption �� Put Option of
Holders � Asset Sales� or (2) a disposition of assets that does not constitute an Asset Sale;

(e) Investments in stock, obligations or securities received in settlement of any claim or debts owing to the
Company or any Restricted Subsidiary as a result of bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings or received in
satisfaction of any judgment or in settlement of any claim in circumstances where the Company does not
expect it would receive cash payment in a timely manner, or upon the foreclosure, perfection or
enforcement of any Lien in favor of the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary, in each case as to any claim
or debts owing to the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary that arose in the ordinary course of business of
the Company or any such Restricted Subsidiary, provided that any stocks, obligations or securities received
in settlement of any claim or debts that arose in the ordinary course of business (and received other than as
a result of bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings or received in satisfaction of any judgment or in
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settlement of any claim in circumstances where the Company does not expect it would receive cash
payment in a timely manner, or upon foreclosure, perfection or enforcement of any Lien) that are, within
180 days of receipt, converted into cash or Cash Equivalents shall be treated as having been cash or Cash
Equivalents at the time received;

(f) Investments in Argas Ltd. consisting of guarantees of its obligations incurred in the ordinary course of its
business, provided that such Investments, when taken together with all other Investments made pursuant to
this clause (f) that are at the time outstanding, do not exceed �50,000,000;

(g) Investments in Argas Ltd. (other than those described in clause (f) above) and any other Affiliate organized
in a foreign jurisdiction that is required by the applicable laws and regulations of such foreign jurisdiction
or its governmental agencies, authorities or state-owned businesses to be majority owned by
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the government of such foreign jurisdiction or individual or corporate citizens of such foreign jurisdiction
or another foreign jurisdiction in order for such Affiliate to transact business in such foreign jurisdiction,
provided that such Investments, when taken together with all other Investments made pursuant to this
clause (g) that are at the time outstanding, do not exceed 20% of Consolidated Tangible Net Worth;

(h) Investments in any Person in exchange for, or out of the net cash proceeds of, an issue or sale by the
Company of Equity Interests (other than Disqualified Stock); and

(i) other Investments in any Person having an aggregate fair market value (measured on the date each such
Investment was made and without giving effect to subsequent changes in value), when taken together with
all other Investments made pursuant to this clause (i) that are at the time outstanding, do not exceed
�25,000,000.

�Permitted Liens� means:

(a) Liens securing Indebtedness incurred pursuant to clause (a) of the second paragraph of the covenant
described under the caption �� Certain Covenants � Incurrence of Indebtedness and Issuance of Disqualified
Stock�, and Liens securing any other Indebtedness under Credit Facilities incurred pursuant to the first
paragraph of such covenant;

(b) Liens in favor of the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries;

(c) Liens on any property or asset of a Person existing at the time such Person is merged into or consolidated
with the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary of the Company, provided that such Liens were in existence
prior to such merger or consolidation, were not created in contemplation of it and do not extend to any
property or asset of the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries other than those of the Person
merged into or consolidated with the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries;

(d) Liens on any property or asset existing at the time of acquisition thereof by the Company or any Restricted
Subsidiary of the Company, provided that such Liens were in existence prior to such acquisition, were not
created in contemplation of it and do not extend to any other property or asset of the Company or any of its
Restricted Subsidiaries;

(e) Liens securing the performance of statutory obligations, surety or appeal bonds, bid or performance bonds,
insurance obligations or other obligations of a like nature incurred in the ordinary course of business;

(f) Liens securing Hedging Obligations;

(g) Liens existing on the date of the Indenture;

(h) Liens securing Indebtedness (including Capital Lease Obligations) permitted by clause (g) of the second
paragraph of the covenant described under the caption �� Certain Covenants � Incurrence of Indebtedness and
Issuance of Disqualified Stock�, provided that such Liens extend only to the property, plant or equipment
financed by such Indebtedness;

(i) any interest or title of a lessor under an operating lease;

(j) Liens arising by reason of deposits necessary to obtain standby letters of credit in the ordinary course of
business;
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(k) Liens on real or personal property or assets of the Company or a Restricted Subsidiary thereof to secure
Indebtedness incurred for the purpose of (1) financing all or any part of the purchase price of such property
or assets incurred prior to, at the time of, or within 90 days after, the acquisition of such property or assets
or (2) financing all or any part of the cost of construction or improvement of any such property or assets,
provided that the amount of any such financing shall not exceed the amount expended in the acquisition of,
or the construction of, such property or assets and such Liens shall not extend to any other property or
assets of the Company or a Restricted Subsidiary (other than any associated accounts, contracts and
insurance proceeds);
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(l) judgment Liens not giving rise to an Event of Default so long as any appropriate legal proceeding which
may have been duly initiated for the review of such judgment shall not have been finally terminated or the
period within which such proceeding may be initiated shall not have expired;

(m) Liens securing Indebtedness of the Company or any Restricted Subsidiary of the Company that does not
exceed �10,000,000 at any one time outstanding;

(n) Liens securing Acquired Indebtedness incurred pursuant to the first paragraph of the covenant described
under the caption �� Certain Covenants � Incurrence of Indebtedness and Issuance of Disqualified Stock�,
provided that such Liens (1) secured such Acquired Indebtedness at the time of and prior to the incurrence
of such Acquired Indebtedness by the Company or a Restricted Subsidiary of the Company and were not
granted in connection with, or in anticipation of, such incurrence, and (2) do not extend to any property or
asset of the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries other than the property or asset that secured the
Acquired Indebtedness prior to the time that it became Acquired Indebtedness of the Company or a
Restricted Subsidiary of the Company; and

(o) Liens securing Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness with respect to any Indebtedness secured by Liens
referred to in clauses (c), (d), (g), (h), (k) and (n) above and in this clause (o).

�Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness� means any Indebtedness of the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries
issued in exchange for, or the net proceeds of which are used to extend, refinance, renew, replace, defease or refund
other Indebtedness of the Company or any of its Restricted Subsidiaries; provided, however, that:

(a) the principal amount (or accreted value, if applicable) of such Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness does not
exceed the principal amount of (or accreted value, if applicable), plus premium, if any, and accrued interest
on, the Indebtedness so extended, refinanced, renewed, replaced, defeased or refunded (plus the amount of
expenses incurred in connection therewith);

(b) such Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness has a final maturity date no earlier than the final maturity date of,
and has a Weighted Average Life to Maturity equal to or greater than the Weighted Average Life to
Maturity of, the Indebtedness being extended, refinanced, renewed, replaced, defeased or refunded;

(c) if the Indebtedness being extended, refinanced, renewed, replaced, defeased or refunded is subordinated in
right of payment to the Notes, such Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness is subordinated in right of payment
to the Notes on terms at least as favorable, taken as a whole, to the holders of the Notes as those contained
in the documentation governing the Indebtedness being extended, refinanced, renewed, replaced, defeased
or refunded; and

(d) if the Company is the obligor on the Indebtedness being extended, refinanced, renewed, replaced, defeased
or refunded, then such Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness is solely Indebtedness of the Company,

provided, however, that a Restricted Subsidiary that is also a Guarantor may guarantee Permitted Refinancing
Indebtedness incurred by the Company, whether or not such Restricted Subsidiary was an obligor or guarantor of the
Indebtedness being extended, refinanced, renewed, replaced, defeased or refunded; provided further, however, that if
such Permitted Refinancing Indebtedness is subordinated to the Notes, such guarantee shall be subordinated to such
Restricted Subsidiary�s Subsidiary Guarantee to at least the same extent.

Edgar Filing: CGGVERITAS SERVICES HOLDING (U.S.) INC. - Form 424B3

Table of Contents 172



�Person� means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, joint-stock company, trust,
unincorporated organization, limited liability company or government or other entity.

�Qualified Equity Offering� means:

(a) any issuance and sale of Equity Interests (other than Disqualified Stock) of the Company pursuant to an
underwritten offering registered under the Securities Act; or

(b) any other issuance and sale of Equity Interests (other than Disqualified Stock) of the Company so long as,
at the time of consummation of such sale, the Company has a class of common equity securities
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(including American depository shares) registered pursuant to Section 12(b) or Section 12(g) under the
Exchange Act.

�Registration Rights Agreement� means the Registration Rights Agreement, to be dated as of the Issue Date, by and
among the Company, the Guarantors and the initial purchasers party thereto relating to the Offered Notes.

�Reference Date� means April 28, 2005.

�Restricted Investment� means an Investment other than a Permitted Investment.

�Restricted Subsidiary� of a Person means any Subsidiary of such Person that is not an Unrestricted Subsidiary.

�Securities Act� means the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

�Sercel Inc.� means Sercel Inc., an Oklahoma corporation with its head office in Houston, Texas, and a Restricted
Subsidiary of the Company and a Guarantor as of the Issue Date.

�Sercel S.A.� means:

(a) Sercel S.A., a French limited liability corporation with its head office in Carquefou, France, and a
Restricted Subsidiary of the Company as of the Issue Date; and/or

(b) any holding company (including Sercel Holding S.A.) that holds all of the outstanding Capital Stock of
either or both of Sercel S.A. and Sercel Inc. (other than directors� qualifying shares and Capital Stock held
by other statutorily required minority shareholders) and that does not hold any Capital Stock in any other
Subsidiary of the Company.

�Significant Subsidiary� means any Restricted Subsidiary of the Company that would be a �significant subsidiary� as
defined in Article 1, Rule 1-02 of Regulation S-X, promulgated pursuant to the Securities Act, as such Regulation is in
effect on the date of the Indenture.

�Stated Maturity� means, with respect to any mandatory sinking fund or other installment of interest or principal on
any series of Indebtedness, the date on which such payment of interest or principal was scheduled to be paid in the
original documentation governing such Indebtedness, and shall not include any contingent obligations to repay,
redeem or repurchase any such interest or principal prior to the date originally scheduled for the payment thereof.

�Strategic Assets� means assets or rights (other than assets that would be classified as current assets in accordance
with GAAP) of the kind used or usable by the Company or its Restricted Subsidiaries in the business of providing
services or software products to the oil and gas industry or manufacturing equipment for use by the oil and gas
industry (or any business that is reasonably complementary or related thereto as determined in good faith by the Board
of Directors).

�Subsidiary� means, with respect to any Person:

(a) any corporation, association or other business entity of which more than 50% of the total voting power of
shares of Capital Stock entitled (without regard to the occurrence of any contingency) to vote in the election
of directors, managers or trustees thereof is at the time owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by such
Person or one or more of the other Subsidiaries of that Person (or a combination thereof);
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(b) any partnership (1) the sole general partner or the managing general partner of which is such Person or a
Subsidiary of such Person or (2) the only general partners of which are such Person or of one or more
Subsidiaries of such Person (or any combination thereof); and

(c) any other Person whose results for financial reporting purposes are consolidated with those of such Person
in accordance with GAAP.

�Subsidiary Guarantee� means the guarantee by each Guarantor of the Company�s obligations under the Indenture
and the Notes (including any Additional Notes), executed pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture.
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�Treasury Rate� means, as of any redemption date in respect of the Notes, the yield to maturity as of such redemption
date of United States Treasury securities with a constant maturity (as compiled and published in the most recent
Federal Reserve Statistical Release H.15(519) that has become publicly available at least two business days prior to
the redemption date (or, if such Statistical Release is no longer published, any publicly available source of similar
market data)) most nearly equal to the period from the redemption date to May 15, 2013; provided, however, that if
the period from the redemption date to May 15, 2013 is less than one year, the weekly average yield on actually traded
United States Treasury securities adjusted to a constant maturity of one year shall be used.

�Unrestricted Subsidiary� means any Subsidiary of the Company that is designated by the Board of Directors as an
Unrestricted Subsidiary pursuant to a Board Resolution and any Subsidiary of an Unrestricted Subsidiary. The Board
of Directors may designate a Subsidiary as an Unrestricted Subsidiary only to the extent that such Subsidiary at the
time of such designation:

(a) has no Indebtedness other than Non-Recourse Debt;

(b) is not party to any agreement, contract, arrangement or understanding with the Company or any Restricted
Subsidiary of the Company unless such agreement, contract, arrangement or understanding does not violate
the terms of the Indenture described under the caption �� Certain Covenants � Transactions with Affiliates�; and

(c) is a Person with respect to which neither the Company nor any of its Restricted Subsidiaries has any direct
or indirect obligation (1) to subscribe for additional Equity Interests or (2) to maintain or preserve such
Person�s financial condition or to cause such Person to achieve any specified levels of operating results.

Any such designation by the Board of Directors shall be evidenced to the Trustee by filing with the Trustee the Board
Resolution giving effect to such designation and an Officers� Certificate certifying that such designation complied with
the foregoing conditions and was permitted by the covenant described under the caption �� Certain Covenants �
Restricted Payments�. If, at any time, any Unrestricted Subsidiary would fail to meet the foregoing requirements as an
Unrestricted Subsidiary, it shall thereafter cease to be an Unrestricted Subsidiary for purposes of the Indenture and any
Indebtedness of such Subsidiary shall be deemed to be incurred by a Restricted Subsidiary of the Company as of such
date (and, if such Indebtedness is not permitted to be incurred as of such date under the covenant described under the
caption �� Certain Covenants � Incurrence of Indebtedness and Issuance of Disqualified Stock�, the Company shall be in
default of such covenant). The Board of Directors may at any time designate any Unrestricted Subsidiary to be a
Restricted Subsidiary, provided that such designation shall be deemed to be an incurrence of Indebtedness by a
Restricted Subsidiary of the Company of any outstanding Indebtedness of such Unrestricted Subsidiary and such
designation shall only be permitted if:

(1) such Indebtedness is permitted under the covenant described under the caption �� Certain Covenants �
Incurrence of Indebtedness and Issuance of Disqualified Stock�; calculated on a pro forma basis as if such
designation had occurred at the beginning of the four-quarter reference period; and

(2) no Default or Event of Default would be in existence following such designation.

�U.S. Dollar Equivalent� means, with respect to any monetary amount in a currency other than U.S. dollars, at or as
of any time for the determination thereof, the amount of U.S. dollars obtained by converting such foreign currency
involved in such computation into U.S. dollars at the spot rate for the purchase of U.S. dollars with the applicable
foreign currency as quoted by Reuters (or, if Reuters ceases to provide such spot quotations, by any other reputable
service as is providing such spot quotations, as selected by the Company) at approximately 11:00 a.m. (New York
City time) on the date not more than two business days prior to such determination.
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�Voting Stock� of any Person as of any date means the Capital Stock of such Person that is at the time entitled to vote
in the election of the board of directors, managers or trustees of such Person.

�Weighted Average Life to Maturity� means, when applied to any Indebtedness at any date, the number of years
obtained by dividing (a) the sum of the products obtained by multiplying (1) the amount of each then remaining
installment, sinking fund, serial maturity or other required payments of principal, including payment at final maturity,
in respect thereof, by (2) the number of years (calculated to the nearest one twelfth) that will elapse
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between such date and the making of such payment, by (b) the then outstanding principal amount of such
Indebtedness.

�Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary� of any Person means a Restricted Subsidiary of such Person to the extent that:

(a) all of the outstanding Capital Stock or other ownership interests of which (other than directors� qualifying
shares and Capital Stock held by other statutorily required minority shareholders) shall at the time be
owned directly or indirectly by such Person; or

(b) such Restricted Subsidiary is organized in a foreign jurisdiction and is required by the applicable laws and
regulations of such foreign jurisdiction or its governmental agencies, authorities or state-owned businesses
to be partially owned by the government of such foreign jurisdiction or individual or corporate citizens of
such foreign jurisdiction or another foreign jurisdiction in order for such Restricted Subsidiary to transact
business in such foreign jurisdiction, provided that such Person, by contract or otherwise, controls the
business and management of such Restricted Subsidiary.

Further, in relation to the Company, the term �Wholly Owned Restricted Subsidiary� includes any Foreign Restricted
Subsidiary so long as the direct or indirect ownership interest of the Company in its Capital Stock is no less than at the
Issue Date.
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OUTSTANDING NOTES REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT

In connection with the sale of the outstanding notes, we entered into a registration rights agreement. Under that
agreement, we agreed to:

� file a registration statement with the Commission with respect to a registered offer to exchange the
outstanding notes for new notes of the Company having terms substantially identical in all material respects to
the outstanding notes (except that the new notes will not contain terms with respect to transfer restrictions);

� use our reasonable best efforts to cause that registration statement to be declared effective under the Securities
Act within 180 days of the date of original issuance of the outstanding notes;

� use our reasonable best efforts to keep that registration statement effective until the first anniversary of the
closing of the exchange offer; and

� use our reasonable best efforts to cause the exchange offer to be consummated within 210 days following the
original issuance of the outstanding notes.

Promptly after the exchange offer registration statement has been declared effective, we will offer the new notes in
exchange for surrender of the outstanding notes.

If any of the outstanding notes are not freely tradable (meaning that they may be sold to the public pursuant to
Rule 144(b) and do not bear any restrictive legends relating to the Securities Act by the 180th day after June 9, 2009,
we will file with the Commission a shelf registration statement to cover resales of the outstanding notes by those
holders who provide required information in connection with the shelf registration statement in either of the following
circumstances:

� if any changes in law or applicable interpretations by the staff of the Commission do not permit us to effect
the exchange offer as contemplated by the registration rights agreement; or

� in certain limited circumstances, if any holder of the outstanding notes so requests.

A �Registration Default� will occur if, among other things:

� the exchange offer registration statement is not declared effective or does not become effective on or prior to
the 180th day following the date of original issuance of the outstanding notes;

� the exchange offer is not consummated on or prior to the 210th day following the date of original issuance of
the outstanding notes; or

� we file the exchange offer registration statement or shelf registration statement and the Commission declares
it or it becomes effective, but thereafter it ceases to be effective or fails to be usable for its intended purpose
(except as specifically permitted in the registration rights agreement) without being succeeded within 10
business days by a post-effective amendment to such registration statement that cures such failure and that is
itself declared effective within 10 business days of the date of filing of such post-effective amendment.
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If any Registration Default occurs, we will be obligated to pay special interest to each holder of outstanding notes in
an amount equal of $.05 per week per $1,000 principal amount of outstanding notes held by each such holder for each
week or portion thereof that the Registration Default continues with respect to the first 90-day period immediately
following the occurrence of such Registration Default. The amount of special interest shall increase by an additional
$.05 per week per $1,000 principal amount of outstanding notes with respect to each subsequent 90-day period until
all Registration Defaults have been cured, up to a maximum amount of special interest of $.30 per week per $1,000
principal amount of outstanding notes, provided that we will in no event be required to pay special interest for more
than one Registration Default at any given time.
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Holders who desire to tender their outstanding notes will be required to make to us the representations described under
�The Exchange Offer � Purpose and Effect of the Exchange Offer� and �� Procedures for Tendering� in order to participate
in the exchange offer. In addition, we may require holders to deliver information to be used in connection with the
shelf registration statement in order to have their notes included in the shelf registration statement and benefit from the
provisions regarding special interest described in the preceding paragraph. A holder who sells outstanding notes under
the shelf registration statement generally will be required to be named as a selling securityholder in the related
prospectus and to deliver a prospectus to purchasers. Such a holder will also be subject to the civil liability provisions
under the Securities Act in connection with such sales and will be bound by the provisions of the registration rights
agreement that are applicable to such holder, including indemnification obligations.

The description of the registration rights agreement contained in this section is a summary only. For more information,
you may review the provisions of the registration rights agreement that we filed with the Commission as an exhibit to
the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part.
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BOOK ENTRY; DELIVERY AND FORM

The new notes will initially be represented by one or more permanent global notes in definitive, fully registered
book-entry form (the �Global Securities�) that will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC. The
Global Securities will be deposited on behalf of the acquirors of the new notes represented thereby with a custodian
for DTC for credit to the respective accounts of the acquirors or to such other accounts as they may direct at DTC. See
�The Exchange Offer � Book-Entry Transfer�.

The Global Securities

We expect that under procedures established by DTC:

� upon deposit of the Global Securities with DTC or its custodian, DTC will credit on its internal system
portions of the Global Securities that shall be comprised of the corresponding respective amounts of the
Global Securities to the respective accounts of persons who have accounts with such depositary; and

� ownership of the notes will be shown on, and the transfer of ownership thereof will be effected only through,
records maintained by DTC or its nominee, with respect to interests of persons who have accounts with DTC
(�participants�), and the records of participants, with respect to interests of persons other than participants.

So long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner or holder of any of the notes, DTC or such nominee will be
considered the sole owner or holder or such notes represented by the Global Securities for all purposes under the
indenture and under the notes represented thereby. No beneficial owner of an interest in the Global Securities will be
able to transfer such interest except in accordance with the applicable procedures of DTC in addition to those provided
for under the indenture.

Payments on the notes represented by the Global Securities will be made to DTC or its nominee, as the registered
owner thereof. None of the Company, the trustee or any paying agent under the indenture will have any responsibility
or liability for any aspect of the records relating to or payments made on account of beneficial ownership interests in
the Global Securities or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership
interest.

We expect that DTC or its nominee, upon receipt of any payment on the notes represented by the Global Securities,
will credit participants� accounts with payments in amounts proportionate to their respective beneficial interests in the
Global Securities as shown in the records of DTC or its nominee. We also expect that payments by participants to
owners of beneficial interests in the Global Securities held through such participants will be governed by standing
instructions and customary practice as is now the case with securities held for the accounts of customers registered in
the names of nominees for such customers. Such payment will be the responsibility of such participants.

Transfers between participants in DTC will be effected in accordance with DTC rules and will be settled in
immediately available funds. If a holder requires physical delivery of a certificated security for any reason, including
to sell notes to persons in states that require physical delivery of such security or to pledge such securities, such holder
must transfer its interest in the Global Securities in accordance with the normal procedures of DTC and the procedures
in the indenture.

DTC has advised us that DTC will take any action permitted to be taken by a holder of notes, including the
presentation of notes for exchange as described below, only at the direction of one or more participants to whose
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account the DTC interests in the Global Securities are credited and only in respect of the aggregate principal amount
as to which such participant or participants has or have given such direction. However, if there is an event of default
under the indenture, DTC will exchange the Global Securities for certificated securities that it will distribute to its
participants.

DTC has advised us as follows:

� DTC is a limited-purpose company organized under the New York Banking Law, a �banking organization�
within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a �clearing
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corporation� within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code and a �clearing agency� registered
under the provisions of Section 17A of the Exchange Act;

� DTC holds securities that its participants deposit with DTC and facilitates the settlement among participants
of securities transactions, such as transfers and pledges, in deposited securities through electronic
computerized book-entry changes in participants� accounts, thereby eliminating the need for physical
movement of securities certificates;

� Direct participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and
other organizations;

� DTC is owned by a number of its participants and by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., NYSE Amex LLC
and the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc.;

� Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust
companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a direct participant, either directly or
indirectly; and

� The rules applicable to DTC and its participants are on file with the Commission.

Although DTC is expected to follow these procedures in order to facilitate transfers of interests in the Global
Securities among participants of DTC, it is under no obligation to perform such procedures, and such procedures may
be discontinued at any time. Neither we nor the trustee will have any responsibility for the performance by DTC or its
direct or indirect participants on their respective obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations.

Certificated Securities

Interests in the Global Securities will be exchanged for certificated securities if:

� DTC or any successor depositary (the �Depositary�) notifies us that it is unwilling or unable to continue as
depositary for the Global Securities, or has ceased to be a �clearing agency� registered under the Exchange Act,
and, in either case, we fail to appoint a successor depositary within 90 days after the date of such notice; or

� we determine not to have the notes represented by Global Securities.

Upon the occurrence of either of the events described in the preceding sentence, we will cause the appropriate
certified securities to be delivered.

Neither we nor the trustee will be liable for any delay by the Depositary or its nominee in identifying the beneficial
owners of the related notes. Each such person may conclusively rely on, and will be protected in relying on,
instructions from such Depositary or nominee for all purposes, including the registration and delivery, and the
respective principal amounts, of the notes to be issued.
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CERTAIN U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE EXCHANGE OFFER

The following discussion is based on the current provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended,
applicable Treasury regulations, judicial authority and administrative rulings and practice. There can be no assurance
that the Internal Revenue Service (the �Service�) will not take a contrary view, and no ruling from the Service has been
or will be sought. Legislative, judicial or administrative changes or interpretations may be forthcoming that could alter
or modify the statements and conditions set forth herein. Any such changes or interpretations may or may not be
retroactive and could affect the tax consequences to holders. Certain holders (including insurance companies,
tax-exempt organizations, financial institutions, broker-dealers, foreign corporations and persons who are not citizens
or residents of the United States) may be subject to special rules not discussed below.

WE RECOMMEND THAT EACH HOLDER CONSULT ITS OWN TAX ADVISOR AS TO THE PARTICULAR
TAX CONSEQUENCES TO IT OF EXCHANGING OUTSTANDING NOTES FOR NEW NOTES, INCLUDING
THE APPLICABILITY AND EFFECT OF ANY STATE, LOCAL OR FOREIGN TAX LAWS.

We believe that the exchange of outstanding notes for new notes pursuant to the exchange offer will not be treated as
an �exchange� for federal income tax purposes because the new notes will not be considered to differ materially in kind
or extent from the outstanding notes. Rather, the new notes received by a holder will be treated as a continuation of
the outstanding notes in the hands of the holder. As a result, there will be no United States federal income tax
consequences to holders exchanging outstanding notes for new notes pursuant to the exchange offer.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Based on interpretations of the Commission staff in no action letters issued to third parties, we believe that each new
note issued under the exchange offer may be offered for resale, resold and otherwise transferred by the holder of that
new note without compliance with the registration and prospectus delivery provisions of the Securities Act if:

� you are not our �affiliate� within the meaning of Rule 405 under the Securities Act;

� any new notes will be acquired in the ordinary course of your business;

� you have no arrangement or understanding with any person to participate in the distribution of the new
notes; and

� you are not engaged in and do not intend to engage in the distribution of the new notes.

Broker-dealers receiving notes in the exchange offer will be subject to a prospectus delivery requirement with respect
to resales of the new notes.

We believe that you may not transfer new notes issued under the exchange offer in exchange for outstanding notes if
you are:

� our �affiliate� within the meaning of Rule 405 under the Securities Act;

� a broker-dealer that acquired outstanding notes directly from us; or

� a broker-dealer that acquired outstanding notes as a result of market-making or other trading activities unless
you acknowledge that, in connection with any resale of new notes acquired in exchange for such outstanding
notes, you will deliver a prospectus meeting the requirements of the Securities Act.

To date, the staff of the Commission has taken the position that participating broker-dealers may fulfill their
prospectus delivery requirements with respect to transactions involving an exchange of securities such as this
exchange offer, other than a resale of an unsold allotment from the original sale of the outstanding notes, with the
prospectus contained in the exchange offer registration statement. In the registration rights agreement, we have agreed
to permit participating broker-dealers to use this prospectus in connection with the resale of new notes. We have
agreed that, for a period of up to one year after the expiration of the exchange offer, we will make this prospectus, and
any amendment of supplement to this prospectus, available to any broker-dealer that requests such documents in the
letter of transmittal.

If you wish to exchange your outstanding notes for new notes in the exchange offer, you will be required to make
representations to us as described in �The Exchange Offer�Purpose and Effect of the Exchange Offer� and ��Procedures for
Tendering�Your Representations to Us� of this prospectus and in the letter of transmittal. In addition, if you are a
broker-dealer who receives new notes for your own account in exchange for outstanding notes that were acquired by it
as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities, you will be required to acknowledge that you will
deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale by you of such new notes.

We will not receive any proceeds from any sale of notes by broker-dealers. Broker-dealers who receive new notes for
their own account in the exchange offer may sell them from time to time in one or more transactions in the
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� in negotiated transactions;

� through the writing of options on the new notes or a combination of such methods of resale;

� at market prices prevailing at the time of resale; or

� at prices related to such prevailing market prices or negotiated prices.

Any resale may be made directly to purchasers or to or through brokers or dealers who may receive compensation in
the form of commissions or concessions from any broker-dealer or the purchasers of any new notes. Any
broker-dealer that resells new notes it received for its own account in the exchange offer and any broker or dealer that
participates in a distribution of such new notes may be deemed to be an �underwriter� within the meaning of the
Securities Act. Any profit on any resale of new notes and any commissions or concessions received
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by any such persons may be deemed to be underwriting compensation under the Securities Act. The letter of
transmittal states that by acknowledging that it will deliver and be delivering a prospectus, a broker-dealer will not be
deemed to admit that it is an �underwriter� within the meaning of the Securities Act.

We have agreed to pay all expenses incidental to the exchange offer other than commissions and concessions of any
brokers or dealers. We will indemnify holders of the outstanding notes, including any broker-dealers, against certain
liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, as provided in the registration rights agreement.

Transfer Restrictions on Outstanding Notes

The outstanding notes were not registered under the Securities Act. Those outstanding notes may not be offered or
sold in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except in accordance with an exemption
from the Securities Act registration requirements. Accordingly, the outstanding notes were offered and sold in the
United States only to �qualified institutional buyers� under Rule 144A under the Securities Act in transactions exempt
from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.
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LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the notes and the guarantees will be passed on for us by Linklaters LLP, Paris, France, who are acting
as our special United States counsel and our French legal advisors.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements of CGGVeritas as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008 and the
effectiveness of CGGVeritas internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 appearing in
CGGVeritas� annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2008 have been audited by Ernst & Young
et Autres and Mazars, independent registered public accounting firms, as set forth in their reports thereon,
incorporated by reference herein. Such consolidated financial statements and CGGVeritas management�s assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 are incorporated herein by
reference in reliance upon such reports given on the authority of such firms as experts in accounting and auditing.

SERVICE OF PROCESS AND ENFORCEMENT OF LIABILITIES

We are a company organized under the laws of France with our registered office and principal place of business in
France. A majority of our directors and officers named herein are not residents of the United States, and all or a
substantial portion of their assets are located outside the United States. Substantially all of our assets are located
outside the United States. We have agreed, in accordance with the terms of the indenture, to accept service of process
in any suit, action or proceeding with respect to the indenture or the notes brought in any federal or state court located
in New York City by an agent designated for such purpose, and to submit to the jurisdiction of such courts in
connection with such suits, actions or proceedings. However, it may not be possible for you to effect service of
process within the United States upon our directors and officers or to enforce against these persons, or us, judgments
of United States courts predicated upon civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States.

We have been advised by our French counsel, Linklaters LLP, Paris, France, that if an original action is brought in
France, predicated solely upon the United States federal securities laws, French courts may not have the requisite
jurisdiction to grant the remedies sought and that actions for enforcement in France of a judgment by courts in the
United States exequator proceeding before the relevant civil court (Tribunal de Grande Instance), rendered against
any of the French persons referred to in the second sentence of the preceding paragraph, would require such French
person to waive their rights under Article 15 of the French Civil Code to be sued in France only. We believe that no
such French person has waived such right with respect to actions predicated solely upon the United States federal
securities laws. In addition, actions in the United States under United States federal securities laws could be affected
under certain circumstances by the French Law of July 16, 1980, which may preclude or restrict the obtaining of
evidence in France or from French persons in connection with such actions.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Share Capital

As at September 30, 2009, we had authorized share capital of �86,594,485 and issued share capital of �60,397,388,
divided into 150,993,469 ordinary shares of �0.40 nominal value each. As at December 31, 2008, we had authorized
share capital of �86,594,485 and issued and fully paid-up share capital of �60,247,083, divided into 150,617,709
ordinary shares of �0.40 nominal value each, all of which were fully paid.

Corporate Authorizations

The issue of the new notes was authorized pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors (Conseil
d�Administration) of Compagnie Générale de Géophysique-Veritas adopted on May 29, 2009. The guarantee of the
new notes was authorized by the Board of Directors of each Initial Guarantor.

Listing of the Notes

Application has been made for the new notes to be listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and to trading on the
Euro MTF.

Clearing of the Notes

The new notes will be accepted for clearance and settlement with DTC under the following securities codes: the
CUSIP number is 204386 AM8, the Common Code is 044046644 and the ISIN is US204386AM89.

No Material Adverse Change

Except as disclosed in this prospectus, there has been no significant change in our financial or trading position since
December 31, 2008 and no material adverse change in our financial position or prospects since December 31, 2008.

Litigation

Except as disclosed in this prospectus, neither we nor any of our subsidiaries are involved in any litigation, arbitration
or administrative proceedings relating to amounts which, individually or in the aggregate, are material in the context
of the issue of the notes and, to the best of our knowledge, there are no such litigation, arbitration or administrative
proceedings pending or threatened.

Significant Subsidiaries

For the year ended December 31, 2008, three subsidiaries, CGGVeritas Services SA, Sercel S.A., and CGGVeritas
Services (U.S.) Inc, each represented more than 10% of our consolidated revenues. CGGVeritas Services SA, a
wholly owned subsidiary of Compagnie Générale de Géophysique-Veritas, had operating revenues of �880.5 million
and had shareholders� equity of �100.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2008. Sercel S.A., a wholly owned
subsidiary of Sercel Holding S.A., had operating revenues of �610.6 million in the year ended December 31, 2008 and
had shareholders� equity of �264.7 million as at December 31, 2008. Sercel S.A. paid a dividend of �0.1 million to
CGGVeritas in 2008. Sercel S.A.�s registered office is at 16, rue de Bel Air, 44470 Carquefou, France.
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As at December 31, 2008, one subsidiary, CGGVeritas Services Holding (U.S.) Inc., represented more than 10% of
our consolidated assets.

CGGVeritas Services Holding (U.S.) Inc. and CGGVeritas Services (U.S.) Inc. are described below under the heading
�Initial Guarantors�.
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Initial Guarantors

CGGVeritas Services Holding B.V., a wholly owned subsidiary of Compagnie Générale de Géophysique-Veritas, is
primarily engaged as a holding company of certain subsidiaries in our Services segment. CGGVeritas Services
Holding B.V. had no operating revenues in the year ended December 31, 2008 and had shareholders� equity of
$1,706.0 million as at December 31, 2008. CGGVeritas Services Holding B.V.�s registered office is at Prins
Bernhardplein 200, 1097 JB Amsterdam, the Netherlands.

CGG Americas, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of CGGVeritas Services Holding B.V., is primarily engaged in the
production and sale of our multi-client data library in the Gulf of Mexico and the processing of data for clients in the
United States. CGG Americas, Inc. had operating revenues of �39.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2008 and
had shareholders� equity of �133.4 million as at December 31, 2008. In December 2008, Compagnie Générale de
Géophysique-Veritas transferred its interest in CGG Americas to CGGVeritas Services Holding B.V. as part of our
Services segment reorganization. CGG Americas, Inc.�s registered office is at 16430 Park Ten Place, Houston, Texas
77084, United States of America.

CGG Canada Services Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of CGGVeritas Services Holding B.V., is primarily engaged in
the processing of seismic data in our Calgary centre. CGG Canada Services had operating revenues of �0.1 million in
the year ended December 31, 2008 and had shareholders� equity of �53.2 million as at December 31, 2008. In December
2008, Compagnie Générale de Géophysique-Veritas transferred its interest in CGG Canada Services to CGGVeritas
Services Holding B.V. as part of our Services segment reorganization. CGG Canada Service�s registered office is at
450, 808-4th avenue Southwest, SW, Calgary ABTP3E8, Canada.

CGG Marine Resources Norge A/S, a wholly owned subsidiary of Compagnie Générale de Géophysique-Veritas, is
the owner of the CGG Amadeus and CGG Symphony seismic vessels. CGG Marine Resources Norge A/S had
operating revenues of �46.0 million in the year ended December 31, 2008 and had shareholders� equity of �58.6 million
as at December 31, 2008. CGG Marine Resources Norge A/S�s registered office is at OH BANGS VEI 70, 1363
Hovik, Norway.

CGGVeritas Services Holding (U.S.) Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of CGGVeritas Services Holding B.V., is
engaged as a holding company of certain subsidiaries in our Services segment. CGGVeritas Services Holding (U.S.)
Inc. had no operating revenues in the year ended December 31, 2008 and had shareholders� equity of $1,866.4 million
as at December 31, 2008. CGGVeritas Services Holding (U.S.) Inc.�s registered office is at 1209 Orange Street,
Wilmington, Delaware, 19801, United States of America.

CGGVeritas Services (U.S.) Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of CGGVeritas Services Holding (U.S.) Inc., is primarily
engaged in acquiring marine seismic data in U.S. waters for third parties on a contract basis, acquiring, processing and
licensing marine multi-client library data, and processing seismic data for third parties. CGGVeritas Services (U.S.)
Inc. had operating revenues of $421.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2008 and had shareholders� equity of
$423.4 million as at December 31, 2008. CGGVeritas Services (U.S.) Inc.�s registered office is at 1209 Orange Street,
Wilmington, Delaware, 19801, United States of America.

Veritas Investments Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of CGGVeritas Services Holding (U.S.) Inc., is primarily
engaged as a holding company that owns the stock in certain of our Norwegian and Mexican subsidiaries. Veritas
Investments Inc. had no operating revenues in the year ended December 31, 2008 and had shareholders� equity of
$8.4 million as at December 31, 2008. Veritas Investments Inc.�s registered office is at 1209 Orange Street,
Wilmington, Delaware, 19801, United States of America.
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CGGVeritas Land (U.S.) Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of CGGVeritas Services (U.S.) Inc., is primarily engaged in
acquiring seismic data on land in the U.S. for third parties on a contract basis and acquiring and licensing U.S. land
multi-client library data. CGGVeritas Land (U.S.) Inc. had operating revenues of $228.9 million in the year ended
December 31, 2008 and had shareholders� equity of $84.2 million as at December 31, 2008. CGGVeritas Land (U.S.)
Inc.�s registered office is at 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware, 19801, United States of America.

Viking Maritime Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of CGGVeritas Services (U.S.) Inc., is primarily engaged in
chartering, as charterer, and operating seismic and support vessels. Viking Maritime Inc. had operating revenues of
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$81.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2008 and had shareholders� equity of $104.5 million as at December 31,
2008. Viking Maritime Inc.�s registered office is at 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware, 19801, United States
of America.

Veritas Geophysical (Mexico) LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of CGGVeritas Services (U.S.) Inc., is primarily
engaged as a holding company that owns, together with Veritas Investments Inc., certain of our Mexican subsidiaries.
Veritas Geophysical (Mexico) LLC had no operating revenues in the year ended December 31, 2008 and no
shareholders� equity as at December 31, 2008. Veritas Geophysical (Mexico) LLC�s registered office is at 1209 Orange
Street, Wilmington, Delaware, 19801, United States of America.

Veritas DGC Asia Pacific Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of CGGVeritas Services (U.S.) Inc., is primarily engaged as
a holding company that owns a Singapore subsidiary. Veritas DGC Asia Pacific Ltd had no operating revenues in the
year ended December 31, 2008 and had shareholders� equity of $(2.1) million as at December 31, 2008. Veritas DGC
Asia Pacific Ltd�s registered office is at 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware, 19801, United States of America.

Alitheia Resources Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of CGGVeritas Services (U.S.) Inc., is primarily engaged in
acquiring, exploring and marketing oil and gas properties in the Gulf of Mexico. Alitheia Resources Inc. had operating
revenues of $0.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2008 and had shareholders� equity of $(7.4) million as at
December 31, 2008. Alitheia Resources Inc.�s registered office is at 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware,
19801, United States of America.

Sercel Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Sercel Holding S.A., is primarily engaged in the production and distribution
of marine seismic equipment, geophones and other products. Sercel Inc. had operating revenues of �367.9 million in
the year ended December 31, 2008 and had shareholders� equity of �220.0 million as at December 31, 2008. Sercel Inc.�s
registered office is at 17200 Park Row, Houston, Texas 77084, United States of America.

Sercel Australia Pty Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of Sercel Holding S.A., is primarily engaged in the production
and distribution of marine seismic products. Sercel Australia had operating revenues of �14.7 million in the year ended
December 31, 2008 and had shareholders� equity of �10.7 million as at December 31, 2008. Sercel Australia�s registered
office is at 274 Victoria Road, Rydalmere, New South Wales, Australia.

Sercel Canada Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of Sercel Inc., is primarily engaged in the rental and sale of products
for the geophysical land market. Sercel Canada has operating revenues of �7.2 million in the year ended December 31,
2008 and had shareholders� equity of �9.3 million as at December 31, 2008. Sercel Canada�s registered office is at 1108
55th Avenue NE, Calgary, Alberta, T2E 6Y, Canada.

Documents Available

Copies of our annual reports for 2006, 2007 and 2008, the constitutive documents of Compagnie Générale de
Géophysique-Veritas, the indenture and the registration rights agreement and copies of the most recently published
report and financial statements of CGGVeritas, including the unaudited interim financial statements for the nine
months ended September 30, 2009, will, for so long as the notes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, be
available free of charge during usual business hours on any weekday (except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays)
at the specified offices of the paying agent in Luxembourg. We publish a quarterly consolidated statement of
operations, statement of cash flow and balance sheet, each of which will be delivered to, and copies of which may be
obtained free of charge from, the specified offices of the paying agent in Luxembourg. We do not publish interim
non-consolidated statements. All published interim statements are unaudited.
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We have undertaken to the holders of the notes that we will submit certain quarterly financial information to the
Commission. Any such quarterly information will also be delivered to, and copies of such information may be
obtained free of charge from, the specified offices of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPAGNIE GÉNÉRALE DE GÉOPHYSIQUE-VERITAS, S.A.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30, 2009
(unaudited) December 31, 2008
� US$(1) � US$(2)

amounts in millions of

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 559.5 819.3 516.9 719.4
Trade accounts and notes receivable, net 591.9 866.7 712.3 991.4
Inventories and work-in-progress, net 218.0 319.2 287.9 400.7
Income tax assets 61.9 90.7 102.2 142.2
Other current assets, net 88.7 129.8 101.5 141.2
Assets held for sale, net 8.0 11.6 7.6 10.6
Total current assets 1,528.0 2,237.3 1,728.4 2,405.5
Deferred tax assets 79.7 116.7 109.2 151.9
Investments and other financial assets, net 37.1 54.3 26.2 36.4
Investments in companies under equity method 78.8 115.3 72.9 101.5
Property, plant and equipment, net 752.1 1,101.3 822.4 1,144.5
Intangible assets, net 828.8 1,213.7 820.0 1,141.2
Goodwill 1,977.0 2,894.9 2,055.1 2,860.1
Total non-current assets 3,753.5 5,496.2 3,905.8 5,435.6
TOTAL ASSETS 5,281.5 7,733.5 5,634.2 7,841.1

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY
Bank overdrafts 6.5 9.5 8.2 11.4
Current portion of financial debt 124.7 182.5 241.5 336.1
Trade accounts and notes payable 205.9 301.5 282.2 398.4
Accrued payroll costs 116.6 170.8 144.3 200.8
Income taxes liability 42.3 62.0 85.5 119.0
Advance billings to customers 24.4 35.7 43.5 60.5
Provisions � current portion 47.7 69.8 20.7 28.8
Other current liabilities 145.4 212.9 173.3 241.2
Total current liabilities 713.5 1,044.7 1,003.2 1,396.2
Deferred tax liabilities 146.4 214.3 223.8 311.5
Provisions � non-current portion 80.7 118.1 82.4 114.6
Financial debt 1,364.5 1,998.1 1,296.3 1,804.0
Other non-current liabilities 32.1 46.9 29.9 41.6
Total non-current liabilities 1,623.7 2,377.4 1,632.4 2,271.7
Common stock 216,486,213 shares authorized and
150,993,469 shares with a �0.40 nominal value issued and
outstanding at September 30, 2009 and 150, 617,709 at
December 31, 2008 60.4 88.4 60.2 83.8
Additional paid-in capital 1,964.8 2,877.1 1,964.7 2,734.2
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Retained earnings 1,137.3 1,665.4 799.4 1,112.6
Treasury shares (13.2) (19.2) (18.1) (25.1)
Net income (loss) for the period � Attributable to the Group 32.6 47.8 332.8 463.1
Income and expense recognized directly in equity 3.3 4.7 (2.5) (3.5)
Cumulative translation adjustment (278.1) (407.3) (176.4) (245.5)
Total shareholders� equity 2,907.1 4,256.9 2,960.1 4,119.6
Minority interests 37.2 54.5 38.5 53.6
Total shareholders� equity and minority interests 2,944.3 4,311.4 2,998.6 4,173.2
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS�
EQUITY 5,281.5 7,733.5 5,634.2 7,841.1

(1) Dollar amounts represent euro amounts converted at the exchange rate of US$1.464 per � on the balance sheet
date.

(2) Dollar amounts represent euro amounts converted at the exchange rate of US$1.392 per � on the balance sheet
date.

See notes to Interim Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMPAGNIE GÉNÉRALE DE GÉOPHYSIQUE-VERITAS, S.A.

UNAUDITED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Three months ended September 30,
2009 2008

� US$(1) � US$(1)
except per share data, amounts in millions of

Operating revenues 512.2 731.4 691.6 1,062.2
Other income from ordinary
activities 5.1 7.0 0.4 0.5
Total income from ordinary
activities 517.3 738.4 692.0 1,062.7
Cost of operations (412.8) (587.4) (445.1) (683.7)
Gross profit 104.5 151.0 246.9 379.0
Research and development
expenses, net (15.1) (21.5) (11.3) (17.4)
Selling, general and administrative
expenses (52.9) (75.5) (59.5) (91.5)
Other revenues (expenses), net 4.2 3.7 (1.3) (2.0)
Operating income before
reduction of goodwill 40.7 57.7 174.8 268.1
Reduction of goodwill � � (2.0) (3.0)
Operating income 40.7 57.7 172.8 265.1
Expenses related to financial debt (26.9) (38.1) (21.8) (33.4)
Income provided by cash and cash
equivalents 0.3 0.5 3.1 4.8
Cost of financial debt, net (26.6) (37.6) (18.7) (28.6)
Other financial income (loss) (6.9) (9.5) 4.0 6.1
Income of consolidated
companies before income taxes 7.2 10.6 158.1 242.6
Deferred taxes on currency
translation 2.6 3.7 (4.6) (7.1)
Other income taxes (4.3) (6.1) (47.5) (72.9)
Total income taxes (1.7) (2.4) (52.1) (80.0)
Net income from consolidated
companies 5.5 8.2 106.0 162.6
Equity in income of investees 2.9 4.0 (0.6) (0.9)
Net income 8.4 12.2 105.4 161.7
Attributable to :
Shareholders 7.7 11.2 102.1 156.6
Minority interest 0.7 1.0 3.3 5.1
Weighted average number of
shares outstanding 150,629,662 150,629,662 137,687,693 137,687,693
Dilutive potential shares from
stock-options 366,871 366,871 596,184 596,184

243,000 243,000 648,938 648,938
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Dilutive potential shares from free
shares
Adjusted weighted average number
of shares and assumed option
exercises when dilutive 151,239,533 151,239,533 138,932,815 138,932,815
Net earning per share
attributable to shareholders
Basic 0.05 0.07 0.74 1.14
Diluted 0.05 0.07 0.73 1.13

(1) Corresponding to the nine months ended September 30 in US dollars less the six months ended June in US
dollars.

F-3

Edgar Filing: CGGVERITAS SERVICES HOLDING (U.S.) INC. - Form 424B3

Table of Contents 200



Table of Contents

COMPAGNIE GÉNÉRALE DE GÉOPHYSIQUE-VERITAS, S.A.

UNAUDITED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Nine months ended September 30,
2009 2008

� US$(1) � US$(2)
except per share data, amounts in millions of

Operating revenues 1,733.3 2,361.4 1,835.6 2,809.1
Other income from ordinary
activities 6.7 9.1 0.7 1.1
Total income from ordinary
activities 1,740.0 2,370.5 1,836.3 2,810.2
Cost of operations (1,320.6) (1,799.2) (1,233.3) (1,887.3)
Gross profit 419.4 571.3 603.0 922.9
Research and development
expenses, net (45.1) (61.5) (35.5) (54.3)
Selling, general and administrative
expenses (180.5) (246.0) (182.5) (279.4)
Other revenues (expenses), net (69.3) (94.4) 9.2 14.0
Operating income before
reduction of goodwill 124.5 169.4 394.2 603.2
Reduction of goodwill � � (2.0) (3.0)
Operating income 124.5 169.4 392.2 600.2
Expenses related to financial debt (79.6) (108.5) (67.1) (102.7)
Income provided by cash and cash
equivalents 1.7 2.3 7.3 11.0
Cost of financial debt, net (77.9) (106.2) (59.8) (91.7)
Variance on derivative on
convertible bonds � � � �
Other financial income (loss) (9.9) (13.2) 2.9 4.5
Income of consolidated
companies before income taxes 36.7 50.0 335.3 513.0
Deferred taxes on currency
translation 8.3 11.3 (4.7) (7.1)
Other income taxes (13.3) (18.2) (111.8) (171.1)
Total income taxes (5.0) (6.9) (116.5) (178.2)
Net income from consolidated
companies 31.7 43.1 218.8 334.8
Equity in income of investees 5.3 7.3 2.4 3.7
Net income 37.0 50.4 221.2 338.5
Attributable to :
Shareholders 32.6 44.4 213.5 326.7
Minority interest 4.4 6.0 7.7 11.8
Weighted average number of
shares outstanding 150,797,818 150,797,818 137,498,471 137,498,471

320,760 320,760 692,047 692,047
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Dilutive potential shares from
stock-options
Dilutive potential shares from free
shares 243,000 243,000 648,938 648,938
Adjusted weighted average number
of shares and assumed option
exercises when dilutive 151,361,578 151,361,578 138,839,456 138,839,456
Net earning per share
attributable to shareholders
Basic 0.22 0.29 1,55 2.38
Diluted 0.22 0.29 1,54 2.35

(1) Dollar amounts represent euro amounts converted at the average exchange rate for the period of US$1.362 per �.

(2) Dollar amounts represent euro amounts converted at the average exchange rate for the period of US$1.530 per �.
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COMPAGNIE GÉNÉRALE DE GÉOPHYSIQUE-VERITAS, S.A.

UNAUDITED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Nine months ended September 30,
2009 2008

� US$(1) � US$(2)
amounts in millions of

OPERATING
Net income (loss) 37.0 50.4 221.2 338.5
Depreciation and amortization 222.4 303.0 155.0 237.2
Multi-client surveys amortization 150.0 204.4 186.2 284.9
Variance on provisions 34.1 46.5 5.5 8.4
Expense & income calculated on stock-option 9.0 12.3 17.7 27.1
Net gain on disposal of fixed assets 3.6 4.9 (1.4) (2.1)
Equity in income of affiliates (5.3) (7.3) (2.4) (3.7)
Dividends received from affiliates � � 1.1 1.7
Other non-cash items (2.8) (3.8) (5.5) (8.4)
Net cash including net cost of financial debt and income taxes 448.0 610.4 577.4 883.6
Less net cost of financial debt 77.9 106.2 59.9 91.7
Less income taxes expenses 5.0 6.9 116.5 178.3
Net cash excluding net cost of financial debt and income taxes 530.9 723.5 753.8 1,153.6
Income taxes paid (60.5) (82.4) (100.9) (154.5)
Net cash before changes in working capital 470.4 641.1 652.9 999.1
� change in trade accounts and notes receivables 73.3 99.8 (118.5) (181.3)
� change in inventories and work-in-progress 65.1 88.7 (22.4) (34.3)
� change in other currents assets 20.8 28.4 28.5 43.6
� change in trade accounts and notes payable (84.0) (114.4) (11.4) (17.4)
� change in other current liabilities (59.0) (80.4) (12.0) (18.4)
Impact of changes in exchange rate (14.4) (19.8) 11.6 17.8
Net cash provided by operating activities 472.2 643.4 528.7 809.1
INVESTING
Total purchases of tangible and intangible assets (including
variation of fixed assets suppliers) (130.1) (177.3) (118.8) (181.8)
Increase in multi-client surveys (191.8) (261.3) (283.4) (433.7)
Proceeds from disposals of tangible and intangible 1.5 2.0 0.7 1.1
Total net proceeds from financial assets � � 8.8 13.5
Total net acquisition of investments (65.8) (89.6) (21.4) (32.7)
Impact of changes in consolidation scope (2.0) (2.8)
Variation in loans granted (4.0) (5.4) (5.5) (8.4)
Variation in subsidies for capital expenditures (0.1) (0.1) (0.1) (0.2)
Variation in other financial assets (1.0) (1.5) (2.0) (3.1)
Net cash used in investing activities (393.3) (536.0) (421.7) (645.3)
FINANCING
Repayment of long-term debts (177.6) (242.0) (18.1) (27.7)
Total issuance of long-term debts 243.5 331.8 37.0 56.6
Reimbursement on leasing (22.3) (30.4) (5.6) (8.6)
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Change in short-term loans (1.6) (2.2) (9.4) (14.4)
Financial interest paid (3) (65.3) (89.0) (45.5) (69.6)
Net proceeds from capital increase
� from shareholders 0.3 0.4 2.5 3.8
� from minority interest of integrated companies (1.4) (2.1)
Buying & sales of own shares 4.9 6.7 (10.9) (16.7)
Dividend paid to minority interest (2.6) (3.5)
Net cash used in financial activities (20.7) (28.2) (51.4) (78.7)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash (15.6) 20.7 7.6 (5.4)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 42.6 99.9 63.2 79.7
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 516.9 719.4 254.3 374.4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 559.5 819.3 317.5 454.1

(1) Dollar amounts represent euro amounts converted at the average exchange rate for the period of US$1.362 per �
(except cash and cash equivalents balances converted at the closing exchange rate of US$1.464 per � at
September 30, 2009 and of US$1.392 per � at December 31, 2008).

(2) Dollar amounts represent euro amounts converted at the average exchange rate for the period of US$1.530 per �
(except cash and cash equivalents balances converted at the closing exchange rate of US$1.430 per � at
September 30, 2008 and of US$1.472 per � at December 31, 2007).

(3) Includes US$13.6 million related to issuing fees in the nine months ended September 30, 2009 (amendment of
Term Loan B and issuance of senior notes due 2016).
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COMPAGNIE GÉNÉRALE DE GÉOPHYSIQUE-VERITAS, S.A.

UNAUDITED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Nine months ended
September 30,

2009 2008
amounts in millions of �

Net income from statements of operations 37.0 221.2
Gain (loss) on cash flow hedges 8.9 (15.4)
Income taxes (3.1) 5.3
Net gain (loss) on cash flow hedges 5.8 (10.1)
Gain (loss) on available-for-sale investments � (22.1)
Income taxes � 7.6
Net gain (loss) on available-for-sale investments � (14.5)
Gain (loss) on actuarial changes on pension plan � (0.9)
Income taxes � 0.3
Net gain (loss) on actuarial changes on pension plan � (0.6)
Exchange differences on foreign currency translation (104.8) 49.9
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the period, net of taxes (99.0) 24.7
Total net comprehensive income for the period (62.0) 245.9
Attributable to :
Shareholders (63.3) 235.4
Minority interest 1.3 10.5
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COMPAGNIE GÉNÉRALE DE GÉOPHYSIQUE-VERITAS, S.A.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

Note 1 � Summary of significant accounting policies

Compagnie Générale de Géophysique-Veritas, S.A. (the �Company�) and its subsidiaries (together, the �Group�) is a
global participant in the geophysical seismic industry, as a manufacturer of geophysical equipment and providing a
wide range of services (seismic data acquisition and related processing and interpretation software) principally to
clients in the oil and gas exploration and production business.

Given that the Company is listed on Euronext Paris and pursuant to European regulation n°1606/2002 dated July 19,
2002, the accompanying interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (�IFRS�) and its interpretations as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (�IASB�). These interim consolidated financial statements are also in accordance with IFRS adopted
by the European Union at September 30, 2009 which are available on the following web site
http://ec.europa.eu/internal_market/accounting/ias_en.htm#adopted-commission.

These interim consolidated financial statements have been authorized by the Audit Committee for issue on
November 6, 2009.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that impact the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
that have been measured at fair value.

Critical accounting policies

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 have been
prepared in accordance with IAS 34�Interim Financial Reporting.

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements do not include all the information and disclosures required in
the annual financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with the Group�s annual financial statements as at
and for the year ended December 31, 2008 included in its report on Form 20-F for the year 2008 filed with the SEC on
April 22, 2009.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the interim condensed consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Group�s annual financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2008, except for the adoption of the following new Standards and Interpretations:

IFRS 8�Operating segments
IAS 1 revised�Presentation of Financial Statements (except amendment to IFRS5)
IAS 23 revised�Borrowing costs
IAS 32 Amendment�Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
IFRS 2 Amendment�Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
2008 Annual Improvements to IFRS (excepted amendment to IFRS 5)
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IFRIC 11�IFRS 2�Group and Treasury Share Transactions
IFRIC 13�Customer loyalty programs
IFRIC 14�IAS 19�The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction

The adoption of these new standards and interpretations did not have any material impact on the Group�s interim
financial statements.
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The Group decided not to early adopt those Standards, Amendments and Interpretations that the European Union
adopted but that are optional until December 31, 2009, namely:

IFRIC 12�Service Concession Arrangements�adopted by the European Union in March 2009 and applicable on
January 1, 2010
IFRIC 16�Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation�adopted by the European Union in June 2009 and
applicable on January 1, 2010
IAS 27 Amendment�Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements�adopted by the European Union in June 2009 but
applicable on January 1, 2010
IFRS 3R�Business Combinations�adopted by the European Union in June 2009 but applicable on January 1, 2010
IFRIC 15�Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate�adopted by the European Union in July 2009 but applicable
on January 1, 2010
Amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement: Eligible Hedged
Items Combinations�adopted by the European Union in September 2009 but applicable on January 1, 2010.

At the date of issuance of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were issued but not
yet adopted by the European Union:

Amendments IFRS 5 (2008 annual improvements to IFRS)
Amendments to IFRIC 9 and IAS 39�Embedded derivatives
IFRIC 17�Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
IFRIC 18�Transfers of assets from customers
Amendment to IFRS7�Improving disclosures about financial instruments
Amendment to IFRS2�Group cash-settled share-based payment Transactions
Amendment to IAS32�Classification of rights issues

The Group has not opted for the early adoption of these Standards, Amendments and Interpretations and it is currently
reviewing them to measure the potential impact on the interim condensed consolidated financial statements. At this
stage, we do not anticipate any significant impact.

Use of estimates

Significant estimates in preparing financial statements that could have a material impact on the carrying values of
assets and liabilities are:

� Amortization of multi-client data library,

� Depreciation and, if applicable, impairment of tangible and intangible assets, including goodwill,

� Development costs,

� Valuation of investments,

� Recoverability of goodwill and intangible assets,

� Income taxes, and

� Employee benefit plans.
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Judgments

The major accounting matters that are subject to management judgments, which have a material effect on the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities recognized in the interim condensed consolidated financial statements, relate to:

� Collectibility of accounts receivable,

� Recoverability of deferred tax assets,
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� Fair value of assets and liabilities as part of the different purchase price allocations,

� Provision for contingencies, claims and litigations.

Operating revenues

Operating revenues are recognized when they can be measured reliably, and when it is likely that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, which is at the point that such revenues have been
realized or are considered realizable. For contracts where the percentage of completion method of accounting is being
applied, revenues are only recognized when the costs incurred for the transaction and the cost to complete the
transaction can be measured reliably and such revenues are considered earned and realizable.

� Multi-client surveys

Multi-client surveys consist of seismic surveys to be licensed to customers on a non-exclusive basis. All costs directly
incurred in acquiring, processing and otherwise completing seismic surveys are capitalized into the multi-client
surveys. The value of our multi-client library is stated on our balance sheet at the aggregate of those costs less
accumulated amortization or at fair value if lower. We review the library for potential impairment of our independent
surveys on an ongoing basis.

Revenues related to multi-client surveys result from (i) pre-commitments and (ii) licenses after completion of the
surveys (�after-sales�).

Pre-commitments � Generally, we obtain commitments from a limited number of customers before a seismic project is
completed. These pre-commitments cover part or all of the survey area blocks. In return for the commitment, the
customer typically gains the right to direct or influence the project specifications, advance access to data as it is being
acquired, and favorable pricing. The Company records payments that it receives during periods of mobilization as
advance billing in the balance sheet in the line item �Advance billings to customers�.

The Company recognizes pre-commitments as revenue when production is begun based on the physical progress of
the project.

After sales � Generally, we grant a license entitling non-exclusive access to a complete and ready-for-use, specifically
defined portion of our multi-client data library in exchange for a fixed and determinable payment. We recognize after
sales revenue upon the client executing a valid license agreement and having been granted access to the data. Within
thirty days of execution and access, the client may exercise our warranty that the medium on which the data is
transmitted (a magnetic cartridge) is free from technical defects. If the warranty is exercised, the Company will
provide the same data on a new magnetic cartridge. The cost of providing new magnetic cartridges is negligible.

After sales volume agreements � We enter into a customer arrangement in which we agree to grant licenses to the
customer for access to a specified number of blocks of the multi-client library. These arrangements typically enable
the customer to select and access the specific blocks for a limited period of time. We recognize revenue when the
blocks are selected and the client has been granted access to the data and if the corresponding revenue can be reliably
estimated. Within thirty days of execution and access, the client may exercise our warranty that the medium on which
the data is transmitted (a magnetic cartridge) is free from technical defects. If the warranty is exercised, the Company
will provide the same data on a new magnetic cartridge. The cost of providing new magnetic cartridges is negligible.

� Exclusive surveys
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In exclusive surveys, we perform seismic services (acquisition and processing) for a specific customer. We recognize
proprietary/contract revenues as the services are rendered. We evaluate the progress to date, in a manner generally
consistent with the physical progress of the project, and recognize revenues based on the ratio of the project cost
incurred during that period to the total estimated project cost. We believe this ratio to be generally consistent with the
physical progress of the project.

The billings and the costs related to the transit of seismic vessels at the beginning of the survey are deferred and
recognized over the duration of the contract by reference to the technical stage of completion.
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In some exclusive survey contracts and a limited number of multi-client survey contracts, the Company is required to
meet certain milestones. The Company defers recognition of revenue on such contracts until all milestones that
provide the customer a right of cancellation or refund of amounts paid have been met.

� Other geophysical services

Revenues from our other geophysical services are recognized as the services are performed and, when related to
long-term contracts, using the proportional performance method of recognizing revenues.

� Equipment sales

We recognize revenues on equipment sales upon delivery to the customer. Any advance billings to customers are
recorded in current liabilities.

� Software and hardware sales

We recognize revenues from the sale of software and hardware products following acceptance of the product by the
customer at which time we have no further significant vendor obligations remaining. Any advance billings to
customers are recorded in current liabilities.

If an arrangement to deliver software, either alone or together with other products or services, requires significant
production, modification, or customization of software, the entire arrangement is accounted for as a production-type
contract, i.e. using the percentage of completion method.

If the software arrangement provides for multiple deliverables (e.g. upgrades or enhancements, post-contract customer
support such as maintenance, or services), the revenue is allocated to the various elements based on specific objective
evidence of fair value, regardless of any separate allocations stated within the contract for each element. Each element
is appropriately accounted for under the applicable accounting standard.

Maintenance revenues consist primarily of post contract customer support agreements and are recorded as advance
billings to customers and recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the contract period.

Goodwill

Group management undertakes at least an annual impairment test covering goodwill, intangible assets and indefinite
lived assets allocated to the cash generated units to consider whether impairment is required.

In conjunction with the marine restructuring plan, the evaluation of the recoverable value of the Services segment at
December 31, 2008 was subject to a differential analysis at June 30, 2009. This differential analysis aimed at
considering the impact of the marine restructuring plan on the recoverable value of cash generating units, with other
assumptions made as of December 31, 2008 remaining unchanged (refer to note 11 of the consolidated financial
statements in our 20-F for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008).

This analysis did not lead to any impairment in the interim condensed consolidated financial statements as of June 30,
2009.

Multi-client surveys
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Multi-client surveys consist of seismic surveys to be licensed to customers on a non-exclusive basis. All costs directly
incurred in acquiring, processing and otherwise completing seismic surveys are capitalized into the multi-client
surveys (including transit costs when applicable). The value of our multi-client library is stated on our balance sheet at
the aggregate of those costs less accumulated amortization or at fair value if lower. We review the library for potential
impairment of our independent surveys on an ongoing basis.

We amortize the multi-client surveys over the period during which the data is expected to be marketed using a pro-rata
method based on recognized revenues as a percentage of total estimated sales.

In this respect, we use five amortization rates: 50%, 65%, 75%, 80% or 83.3% of revenues depending on the category
of the surveys. Multi-client surveys are classified into a same category when they are located in the same area with the
same estimated sales ratio, such estimates generally relying on the historical pattern.
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For all categories of surveys and starting from data delivery, a minimum straight-line depreciation scheme is applied
over a five-year period, if total accumulated depreciation from the applicable amortization rate is below this minimum
level.

Multi-client surveys acquired as part of the business combination with Veritas and which have been valued for
purchase price allocation purposes are amortized based on 65% of revenues and an impairment loss is recognized on a
survey-by-survey basis in case of any indication of impairment.

Development costs

Expenditures on research activities undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technological knowledge
and understanding are recognized in the income statement as expenses as incurred and are presented as �Research and
development expenses, net�.

Expenditures on development activities, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes, are capitalized if:

� the project is clearly defined, and costs are separately identified and reliably measured,

� the product or process is technically and commercially feasible,

� we have sufficient resources to complete development, and

� the intangible asset is likely to generate future economic benefits, either because it is useful to us or through an
existing market for the intangible asset itself or for its products.

The expenditures capitalized include the cost of materials, direct labor and an appropriate proportion of overhead.
Other development expenditures are recognized in the income statement as expenses as incurred and are presented as
�Research and development expenses, net�.

Capitalized development expenditures are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. We
amortize capitalized developments costs over 5 years.

Research & development expenses in our income statement represent the net cost of development costs that are not
capitalized, of research costs, offset by government grants acquired for research and development.

Note 2 � Acquisitions and divestitures

� Wavefield Inseis ASA

In February 2009, Wavefield shares subject to the mandatory offer and the squeeze-out were transferred to
CGGVeritas, while compensation of �62 million for those shares was paid after the objection period expired. As a
result, the minority interests recognized as a financial debt of �62 million on our balance sheet at December 31, 2008
have been cancelled.

The preliminary goodwill determined as of December 31, 2008 has been revised for an additional amount of
�16.2 million, leading to a total goodwill of �25.0 million at September 30, 2009. Main adjustments were related to
Multifield assets, receivables and deferred tax liabilities on equity acquired.
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� Cybernetix

On January 8, 2009, Cybernetix conducted a �4 million share capital increase that was entirely subscribed by Sercel
Holding, bringing its stake to a total of 749,480 shares, representing 46.10% of Cybernetix�s share capital and 43.07%
of its voting rights. The French financial markets regulator (Autorité des Marchés Financiers) exempted Sercel
Holding from the requirement to conduct a tender offer for all shares when its holding exceeded 33.33%. The
consideration for the share capital increase was �2 million in cash and the incorporation of a �2 million cash advance
granted by Sercel Holding to Cybernetix in November 2008. Cybernetix is accounted for under the equity method in
our financial statements as we do not have the control.
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� Multifield

On May 29, 2009, Statoil Hydro Venture AS exercised its put option with our subsidiary Wavefield with respect to a
37% stake in Multifield for �2.9 million. As a result, our shareholding in Multifield increased to 80.97%. Multifield is
fully consolidated in our financial statements since June 30, 2009.

� Norfield AS

Pursuant to the general meeting of Norfield AS�s shareholders held on May 19, 2009, Wavefield subscribed to a capital
increase in Norfield for approximately �3.6 million by capitalizing an outstanding long-term loan owed to it by
Norfield. The capital increase was pro rata to the shareholders� existing interests in Norfield. As a result, Wavefield�s
interest in Norfield remained unchanged at 33%.

Note 3 � Financial debt

On May 21 and 27, 2009, we amended our US senior facilities agreement and our French revolving facility
agreement, respectively. These amendments, in line with our conservative financial policy, were aimed mainly at
increasing the Company�s headroom under its financial covenants.

In consideration of these amendments, we repaid US$100 million of our term loan B under the US senior facilities and
increased the applicable bank margin for all borrowings under the US senior facilities and French revolving facility by
1.0%.

On June 9, 2009, we issued US$350 million principal amount of 91/2% senior notes due 2016. The senior notes were
issued at a price of 97.0% of their principal amount, resulting in a yield of 101/8%. The senior notes will mature on
May 15, 2016.

We used the proceeds from the notes to replace cash used to repay US$100 million of our term loan B facility on
May 21, 2009 and to fund the three quarterly US$27.5 million amortization payments due during the remainder of
2009 under our term loan B facility. We also used a portion of the net proceeds to repay US$28 million of
indebtedness outstanding under our CGGVeritas Services (Norway) AS (formerly Exploration Resources) credit
facility. The remaining net proceeds will be used for general corporate purposes, including the repayment of other
indebtedness.

Note 4 � Common stock and stock options plans

As of September 30, 2009, the Company�s share capital consisted of 150,993,469 shares, each with a nominal value of
�0.40.

New stock-option plans and performance shares allocation plan

On March 16, 2009, our Board of Directors allocated 1,327,000 stock options to 149 beneficiaries pursuant to a
shareholders� resolution, including stock options to purchase a total of 260,000 ordinary shares that were allocated to
executive officers who were members of the Executive Committee (excluding the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief Operating Officer). The exercise price of the stock options is �8.82. The stock options expire on
March 15, 2017.
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On March 16, 2009, our Board of Directors allocated 516,250 performance shares to 291 beneficiaries pursuant to a
shareholders� resolution, including 46,250 performance shares that were allocated to executive officers who were
members of the Executive Committee (excluding the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Operating
Officer).

On March 16, 2009, our Board of Directors allocated 200,000 stock options to the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer and 125,000 stock options to the Chief Operating Officer. Their exercise price is �8.82. Rights to
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these options vest by one-third during each of the first three years of the plan. Such vesting is subject to performance
conditions based on the fulfillment of one of the following objectives:

� a share price performance objective relative to the share price considering the SBF 120 index;

� a share price performance objective relative to the ADS price considering the PHLX Oil Services Sectorsm
(OSXsm) index; or

� a financial indicator of EBIT objective expressed in US$ and related to the target for the annual variable part
of the compensation of the executive officers.

The options have an eight-year duration subject to the requirement, for all French residents, to hold the resulting
shares in registered form from their purchase date until March 16, 2013, inclusive, except in limited cases listed in the
plan regulations.
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Consolidated statements of changes in equity

Total
Income
and shareholders�

expense equity
Number of Additional recognizedCumulative Total and

shares Share paid-in Retained Treasury
directly

in translationshareholders�Minority minority
issued capital capital earnings shares equity adjustment equity interest interest

(amounts in millions of euros, except share data)
(Unaudited)

Balance at
December 31, 2007 137,253,790 54.9 1,820.0 784.1 (3.9) (5.1) (248.4) 2,401.6 24.0 2,425.6

Capital increase 436,346 0.2 2.0 2.2 2.2
Net income 213.5 213.5 7.7 221.2
Cost of share-based
payment 17.7 17.7 (1.4) 16.3
Operations on treasury
shares (11.0) (11.0) (11.0)
Actuarial gains and
losses of pension
plans(1)(a) (0.6) (0.6) (0.6)
Financial instruments:
change in fair value
and transfer to income
statement(2)(a) (24.6) (24.6) (24.6)
Foreign currency
translation: change in
fair value and transfer
to income
statement(3)(a) 47.1 47.1 2.8 49.9
Income and expense
recognized directly in
equity(1) + (2) + (3) (0.6) (24.6) 47.1 21.9 2.8 24.7
Others 5.2 5.2

Balance at
September 30, 2008 137,690,136 55.1 1,822.0 1,014.7 (14.9) (29.7) (201.3) 2,645.9 38.3 2,684.2

Balance at
January 1, 2009 150,617,709 60.2 1,964.7 1,132.2 (18.1) (2.5) (176.4) 2,960.1 38.5 2,998.6

Capital increase 375,760 0.2 0.1 0.3 0.3
Net income 32.6 32.6 4.4 37.0

9.0 9.0 9.0

Edgar Filing: CGGVERITAS SERVICES HOLDING (U.S.) INC. - Form 424B3

Table of Contents 219



Cost of share-based
payment
Dividends paid (2.6) (2.6)
Operations on treasury
shares 4.9 4.9 4.9
Actuarial gains and
losses of pension
plans(1)(a)
Financial instruments:
change in fair value
and transfer to income
statement(2)(a) 5.8 5.8 5.8
Foreign currency
translation: change in
fair value and transfer
to income
statement(3)(a) (101.7) (101.7) (3.1). (104.8)
Income and expense
recognized directly in
equity(1) + (2) + (3) 5.8 (101.7) (95.9) (3.1) (99.0)
Others (3.9) (3.9) (3.9)

Balance at
September 30, 2009 150,993,469 60.4 1,964.8 1,169.9 (13.2) 3.3 (278.1) 2,907.1 37.2 2,944.3

(a) net of deferred tax
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Note 5 � Trade accounts and notes receivable

At June 30, 2009 our trade receivables included a receivable of �97.2 million related to one marine exclusive contract.
This contract included a six-month payment term, with a six-month extension option at the discretion of the customer
and based on certain conditions. At September 30, 2009 we had received payment from the customer for the major
part of the receivable. The six-month extension option was not exercised.

Note 6 � Analysis by operating segment and geographic area

Financial information by operating segment is reported in accordance with the internal reporting system and shows
internal segment information that is used to manage and measure the performance of CGG Veritas. We divide our
business into two operating segments, geophysical services and geophysical equipment.

Our geophysical services segment comprises:

� Land contract: seismic data acquisition for land, transition zones and shallow water undertaken by us on
behalf of a specific client;

� Marine contract: seismic data acquisition offshore undertaken by us on behalf of a specific client;

� Multi-client land and marine: seismic data acquisition undertaken by us and licensed to a number of clients on
a non-exclusive basis; and

� Processing & Imaging: processing and imaging and interpretation of geophysical data, data management and
reservoir studies for clients.

Our equipment segment, which we conduct through Sercel Holding S.A. and its subsidiaries, handles our
manufacturing and sales activities for seismic equipment used for data acquisition, both on land and offshore.

Inter-company sales between the two segments are made at prices approximating market prices and relate primarily to
equipment sales made by the geophysical equipment segment to the geophysical services segment. These
inter-segment sales, the related operating income recognized by the geophysical equipment segment, and the related
effect on capital expenditures and depreciation expense of the geophysical services segment are eliminated in
consolidation and presented in the column �Eliminations and Adjustments� in the tables that follow.

Operating income of an industry segment represents operating revenues and other income from ordinary activities less
expenses of that segment. It includes non-recurring and unusual items, which are disclosed in the operating segment,
if material. General corporate expenses, which include Group management, financing, and legal activities, have been
included in the column �Eliminations and Adjustments� in the tables that follow. The Group does not disclose financial
expenses or revenues by operating segment because these items are not followed by the segment management and
because financing and investment are mainly managed at the corporate level.

Identifiable assets are those used in the operations of each industry segment. Unallocated and corporate assets consist
primarily of financial assets, including cash and cash equivalents.

Due to the constant changes in work locations, the Group does not track its assets based on country of origin or
ownership.
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The following tables present revenues, operating income and identifiable assets by operating segment, and operating
revenues by geographic area (by location of customers).

COMPAGNIE GÉNÉRALE DE GÉOPHYSIQUE-VERITAS, S.A.

Analysis by operating segment

Three months ended September 30,
2009 2008
Eliminations Eliminations

and Consolidated and Consolidated
Services Equipmentadjustments total Services Equipmentadjustments total

(in millions of euros)
(unaudited)

Revenues from
unaffiliated customers 400.0 112.2 � 512.2 496.0 195.6 � 691.6
Inter-segment revenues � 30.4 (30.4) � 0.6 8.5 (9.1) �
Operating revenues 400.0 142.6 (30.4) 512.2 496.6 204.1 (9.1) 691.6
Other income from
ordinary activities 4.1 1.0 � 5.1 � 0.4 � 0.4
Total income from
ordinary activities 404.1 143.6 (30.4) 517.3 496.6 204.5 (9.1) 692.0
Operating income (loss) 23.8 25.2 (8.3)(a) 40.7 112.7 66.7 (6.6)(a) 172.8
Equity in income (loss)
of investees 2.9 � � 2.9 (0.2) (0.4) � (0.6)
Capital expenditures(b) 97.1 17.6 (11.2) 103.5 124.1 6.0 (1.8) 128.3
Depreciation and
amortization(c) 121.2 7.3 (5.1) 123.7 123.8 5.6 (3.6) 125.8
Investments in companies
under equity method � � � � � � � �

(a) Includes general corporate expenses of �7.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2009 and
�9.3 million for the comparable period in 2008.

(b) Includes investments in multi-client surveys of �47.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2009 and
�94.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2008 and capitalized development costs of �2.8 million for
the three months ended September 30, 2009 and �4.2 million for the comparable period of 2008, in the Services
segment. Capitalized development costs in the Equipment segment were �0.2 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2009 and �0.6 million for the comparable period of 2008.

(c) Includes multi-client survey amortization of �61.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2009 and
�73.8 million for the comparable period of 2008.
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Three months ended September 30,
2009(1) 2008(1)
Eliminations Eliminations

and Consolidated and Consolidated
Services Equipmentadjustments total Services Equipmentadjustments Total

(in millions of US$)
(unaudited)

Revenues from
unaffiliated customers 570.9 160.5 � 731.4 761.8 300.4 � 1,062.2
Inter-segment revenues � 42.8 (42.8) � 0.9 13.1 (14.0) �

Operating revenues 570.9 203.3 (42.8) 731.4 762.7 313.5 (14.0) 1,062.2

Other income from
ordinary activities 5.7 1.3 7.0 � 0.7 (0.2) 0.5

Total income from
ordinary activities 576.6 204.6 (42.8) 738.4 762.7 314.2 (14.2) 1,062.7

Operating income (loss) 33.3 36.5 (12.1) 57.7 172.9 102.5 (10.3) 265.1

(1) Corresponding to the nine months ended September 30 in US dollars less the six month ended June 30 in US
dollars.
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Nine months ended September 30,
2009 2008
Eliminations Eliminations

and Consolidated and Consolidated
Services Equipmentadjustments total Services Equipmentadjustments total

(in millions of euros)
(unaudited)

Revenues from
unaffiliated customers 1,333.6 399.7 � 1,733.3 1,321.0 514.6 � 1,835.6
Inter-segment revenues 0.5 72.1 (72.6) � 0.6 58.0 (58.6) �
Operating revenues 1,334.1 471.8 (72.6) 1,733.3 1,321.6 572.6 (58.6) 1,835.6
Other income from
ordinary activities 4.2 2.5 � 6.7 (0.2) 1.0 (0.1) 0.7
Total income from
ordinary activities 1,338.3 474.3 (72.6) 1,740.0 1,321.4 573.6 (58.7) 1,836.3
Operating income
(loss) 54.2 108.2 (37.9) 124.5 254.4 180.7 (42.9)(a) 392.2
Equity in income (loss)
of investees 5.3 � � 5.3 2.6 (0.2) � 2.4
Capital expenditures(b) 346.6 26.4 (28.3) 344.7 415.7 14.7 (23.8) 406.6
Depreciation and
amortization(c) 366.3 21.0 (14.9) 372.4 339.4 16.4 (14.6) 341.2
Investments in
companies under equity
method � 4.0 � 4.0 � � � �
Identifiable assets 4,152.6 728.8 (243.6) 4,637.8 4,140.2 688.6 (186.2) 4,642.7
Unallocated and
corporate assets 643.7 370.9
Total Assets 5,281.5 5,013.6

(a) Includes general corporate expenses of �27.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and
�32.2 million for the comparable period in 2008.

(b) Includes investments in multi-client surveys of �191.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and
�283.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, capitalized development costs of �9.2 million for the
nine months ended September 30, 2009 and �7.8 million for the comparable period of 2008 and capital leases of
�22.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 (none for the nine months ended September 30,
2008) in the Services segment. Capitalized development costs in the Equipment segment were �1.2 million for the
nine months ended September 30, 2009 and �1.8 million for the comparable period of 2008.

(c) Includes multi-client survey amortization of �150.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and
�186.2 million for the comparable period of 2008.
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Nine months ended September 30,
2009 2008(1)
Eliminations Eliminations

and Consolidated and Consolidated
Services(1)Equipment(2)adjustments Total(3) Services Equipmentadjustments total

(in millions of US$)
(unaudited)

Revenues from
unaffiliated customers 1,816.6 544.8 � 2,361.4 2,021.5 787.6 � 2,809.1
Inter-segment revenues 0.7 98.3 (99.0) � 1.0 88.8 (89.8) �

Operating revenues 1,817.3 643.1 (99.0) 2,361.4 2,022.5 876.4 (89.8) 2,809.1

Other income from
ordinary activities 5.7 3.4 � 9.1 (0.4) 1.7 (0.2) 1.1

Total income from
ordinary activities 1,823.0 646.5 (99.0) 2,370.5 2,022.1 878.1 (90.0) 2,810.2

Operating income
(loss) 73.9 147.5 (52.0) 169.4 389.3 276.6 (65.7) 600.2

(1) Dollar amounts represent euro amounts converted at the average exchange rate for the period of US$1.3622 per �
in 2009 and of US$1.5303 per � in 2008.

(2) Dollar amounts were converted at the average rate of US$1.3631 per � for the Equipment segment.

(3) Dollar amounts for the Consolidated total were converted at the rate of US$1.3624 per �, corresponding to the
weighted average based on each segment�s operating revenues.

Revenues by geographic area

The following table sets forth our consolidated operating revenues by location of customers, and the percentage of
total consolidated operating revenues represented thereby:

Three months ended September 30,
2009 2008

� US$(1) � US$(1)
except percentages, in millions of

North America 105.8 21% 150.8 188.1 27% 289.1
Central and South Americas 55.2 11% 77.1 48.0 7% 73.6
Europe, Africa and Middle East 243.6 47% 346.9 316.3 46% 485.3
Asia Pacific 107.6 21% 156.6 139.2 20% 214.2
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Total 512.2 100% 731.4 691.6 100% 1,062.2

(1) Corresponding to the nine months ended September 30 in US dollars less the six month ended June 30 in US
dollars.

Nine months ended September 30,
2009 2008

� US$(1) � US$(1)
except percentages, in millions of

North America 348.6 21% 474.9 547.6 30% 837.9
Central and South Americas 126.9 7% 172.9 119.0 6% 182.1
Europe, Africa and Middle East 786.4 45% 1,071.4 713.5 39% 1,092.0
Asia Pacific 471.4 27% 642.2 455.5 25% 697.1

Total 1,733.3 100% 2,361.4 1,835.6 100% 2,809.1
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(1) Dollar amounts represent euro amounts converted at the average exchange rate for the period of US$1.3624 per �
in 2009 and of US$1.5303 per � in 2008.

Note 7 � Other revenues (expenses)

Marine restructuring plan

Due to market conditions and marine overcapacity, we implemented a marine restructuring plan in June 2009 that
includes the de-rigging of seven seismic vessels and a redundancy plan. We made a provision for �64.8 million as of
June 30, 2009 for the total cost of the plan. During the third quarter ended September 30, 2009, �8.8 million
(US$12 million) of the provision were used.

Note 8 � Commitments and contingencies

Capital expenditures, other commitments and contingencies

On May 29, 2009, CGGVeritas and Eidesvik amended their agreement to postpone the date of delivery of two
newly-built seismic vessels to the second half of 2011. Two loans, including one convertible loan, were granted by
CGGVeritas to Eidesvik for a total amount of �7.7 million

Litigation and other risks

On July 7, 2008, we brought suit against Arrow Seismic ASA in order to seek compensation for the loss we suffered
(approximately U.S.$70 million at the date of the claim) following Arrow Seismic ASA�s withdrawal from
negotiations for the construction of a 3D seismic vessel. The negotiations were terminated after Arrow Seismic ASA
was acquired by PGS. Discussions between us and Arrow Seismic ASA were at such an advanced stage that, in the
Group�s view, the parties were contractually committed. A judgement was rendered on April 8, 2009 in favour of
Arrow Seismic ASA. CGGVeritas has decided not to appeal.

On October 20, 2006, a complaint was filed against CGGVeritas� subsidiary, Sercel Inc., in the United States District
Court for the Eastern District of Texas. The complaint alleges that several of Sercel Inc.�s seismic data acquisition
products that include micro electromechanical systems (MEMS) infringe a U.S. patent allegedly owned by the
plaintiff. The plaintiff has requested a permanent injunction prohibiting Sercel Inc. from making, using, selling,
offering for sale or importing the equipment in question into the United States. In addition, the plaintiff has requested
damages based on lost profits in the amount of U.S.$14,672,261 plus prejudgment interest of U.S.$775,254. In the
alternative, the plaintiff is requesting damages based on a reasonable royalty in the amount of U.S.$6,185,924 plus
prejudgment interest of U.S.$374,898. Sercel is confident that the products in question do not infringe any valid
claims under the patent in question and intends to contest this claim vigorously. During 2008, the discovery process
was completed and the Court provided a claim construction opinion. The Court has found that three of the seven of the
patent claims are invalid for indefiniteness and one claim is not infringed. The parties attended mediation on March 4,
2009, but the case was not settled. It was initially set for trial in August 2009 and has been postponed to January 2010.
We do not believe this litigation will have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.
Accordingly, we have recorded no provision in our consolidated financial statements, except for the fees related to
preparing the defence.

Note 9 � Subsequent events
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On October 9, 2009, we exercised the extension option of our time charter agreement with Eidesvik for the seismic
vessel Vantage. The time charter agreement was extended for a period of two years starting April 2010 corresponding
to a total commitment of approximately U.S.$15 million.

On October 30, 2009, we prepaid US$100 million of our term loan B facility, in addition to the US$100 million
prepaid on May 21, 2009.
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Note 10 � Condensed consolidating information for certain subsidiaries

At September 30, 2009 the obligations to pay our outstanding Senior Notes are guaranteed by certain subsidiaries:
CGG Canada Services Ltd, CGG Americas Inc., CGG Marine Resources Norge A/S, CGGVeritas Services Holding
Inc, Alitheia Resources Inc, Veritas DGC Asia Pacific Ltd., CGGVeritas Land (US) Inc., CGGVeritas Services (US)
Inc., Veritas Geophysical (Mexico) LLC, Veritas Investments Inc., Viking Maritime Inc., CGGVeritas Services
Holding BV as the �Services guarantors�, and Sercel Inc., Sercel Australia Pty Ltd and Sercel Canada Ltd as the
�Equipment guarantors�.

The following table presents condensed consolidated financial information in IFRS for the nine months ended
September 30, 2009 for the Company, the Guarantor subsidiaries, the Non-Guarantor subsidiaries and the
Eliminations to arrive at CGGVeritas on a consolidated basis.

CGG Services Equipment Non Consolidating Group
IFRS Veritas guarantors guarantors guarantors adjustments consolidated

(in millions of euros)

Goodwill � 1,688.2 46.7 242.0 � 1,977.0
Intangible assets (including multi
client surveys) 0.4 456.5 4.1 412.1 (44.2) 828.8
Property, plant and equipment 3.4 332.1 38.2 446.2 (67.0) 752.1
Investment in affiliates 2,040.0 1,485.7 3.8 399.9 (3,929.4) �
Other non current assets 651.5 48.2 � 182.9 (686.9) 195.6
Current assets 600.7 314.6 195.6 1,230.3 (813.4) 1,528.0

Total assets 3,296.0 4,325.2 288.6 2,913.4 (5,541.7) 5,281.5

Financial debt (including bank
overdrafts, current and non
current portion) 917.4 995.9 1.0 267.4 (686) 1,495.7
Other non current liabilities
(excluding financial debt) (7.4) 176.5 8.0 74.8 7.3 259.2
Current liabilities (excluding
current portion of debt) 259.8 216.0 31.0 851.7 (776.1) 582.3

Total liabilities (excluding
equity) 1,169.8 1,388.4 40.0 1,193.9 (1,454.9) 2,337.2

Equity 2,126.2 2,936.8 248.6 1,719.5 (4,086.9) 2,944.3

Operating revenues 6.9 229.3 171.3 1,801.2 (475.4) 1,733.3
Depreciation and amortization 0.9 182.2 6.2 201.1 (18.0) 372.4
Operating income (loss) (9.6) 34.8 21.7 141.2 (63.6) 124.5

Net income (loss) group share 32.0 23.7 17.7 150.1 (186.5) 37.0

82.0 228.7 1.8 194.3 (34.6) 472.2
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Cash flow from operating
activities
Cash flow from investing
activities (163.3) (193.4) (12.1) (215.2) 190.7 (393.3)
Cash flow from financing
activities 185.0 (46.1) (0.3) (95.8) (63.5) (20.7)

Cash at opening 232.7 64.4 16.3 203.4 � 516.9

Cash at closing 368.9 60.3 5.7 124.6 � 559.5

F-21
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You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. We have
not authorized anyone to provide you with different information. We are not offering the new notes in any
jurisdiction where the offer is not permitted. We do not claim the accuracy of the information in this
prospectus as of any date other than the date stated on the cover.

$350,000,000

COMPAGNIE GÉNÉRALE DE GÉOPHYSIQUE-VERITAS

Offer to Exchange

91/2% Initial Senior Notes due 2016

Guaranteed on a senior basis by certain subsidiaries

for

91/2% Exchange Senior Notes due 2016

Guaranteed on a senior basis by certain subsidiaries

PROSPECTUS

We have not authorized anyone to give you any information or to make any representations about the transactions we
discuss in this prospectus other than those contained herein or in the documents we incorporate herein by reference. If
you are given any information or representations about these matters that is not discussed or incorporated in this
prospectus, you must not rely on that information. This prospectus is not an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to
buy securities anywhere or to anyone where or to whom we are not permitted to offer or sell securities under
applicable law. The delivery of this prospectus offered hereby does not, under any circumstances, mean that there has
not been a change in our affairs since the date hereof. It also does not mean that the information in this prospectus or
in the documents we incorporate herein by reference is correct after this date.
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